3rd Letter To Church

By

WBJ

7-Fold Ministry (coming soon)

A collection of churches found to be good with the 7 different Spirits of the Holy Spirit is the idea so their ministries can be shared on the website. They got me through it and therefore can do the same for anyone.

The book had to be published first by giving them something to contemplate before allowing their name to be published in this book, on this page, if they agree and...

No others I know of personally can replace these churches and will not promote anything else.

Stay Tuned!

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Synopsis6
Preface
1. Believing that Jesus Christ, the Son of God, is an atonement for our sins, we can
receive eternal life in heaven if you apply Him to your life1
2. Jesus Christ is the way to continue growth in God's holy plan6
3. By adding Jesus Christ to the equation there is light and the answer is great8
4. Without accepting Jesus Christ, life is empty without much substance of holiness, full of sin and iniquity
5. To a great extent this is out of their sight, nor do they understand that they can discover what's right with Jesus Christ in our lives
6. The enemy tries to keep us down, not believing the great gospel of Jesus Christ, twisting the truth so we will not receive our inheritance
7. The world has been searched, looking for meaning in life as life as well as meaning in our lives through trials and tribulations
8. The lord has been there encouraging growth that we may mature for His purpose in life
9. By understanding their downfalls in the way of sin, people can be reached24
10. The enemy is aware of the call of Jesus Christ and hindrances at every opportunity causing discouragement
11 The enemy tries to keep us from the light and purpose in life29
12 Don't believe the lies receiving condemnation
13. Believe in truth and receive redemption through Jesus Christ who was crucified.
31

14. Applying this belief, we have victory and can continue seeking the face of God,
amen
15. A son of light
16. This is the foundation of the call
17. We fulfill the call in our lives or fall the way of the world41
18. Time is closer to when Jesus Christ will return. Watch out, for His vengeance is also with Him
19. Pray, keep the eyes and ways upon God, for God comes to settle the score.46
20. The Lord has been with us throughout life
21. We experience the fall of man, knowing the enemy and the devices used to keep us in sin
22. The Lord has been by our side waiting for the time to fulfill His cause in our lives
23. Learning of the scripture, KJV Holy Bible, is in order to better know the Lord
24. Become saturated with His Spirit through the Word and Blood to accomplish what is at hand, joining fellow christians with the same goal — to glorify God.56
25. We may have sinned much throughout life
26. The more the transgression, more Jesus Christ, when accepted, is glorified.68
27. Repent!
28. Learn to pick yourself up quickly after falling and walk straight72
29. Sharing our experiences, hopes and insights to the world as testimony of what God will do with Jesus in our lives
30. Believe and receive the promises of God in Jesus Christ77

31. We are free from bondage of sin to do His will	80
32. God's intent for us is immeasurable. God loves us and has made a way.	82
33. The more we believe the more we can receive, amen	86
34. W.B.J	89
35. The Message was Born	95
36. A Prophet come lately	101
37. 3 rd letter to Church 9/2020 (edited 8/2025, finished 10/24/2025)	139
38. 1st letter to the Church 06/05/2013	139
39 2 nd Letter to the Church 10/2015	157
40 Writers Notes	165

Williams Testimony of Jesus Christ

11/01/2025

SYNOPSIS

Believing (knowing) we are in the final days, and would be time to pay attention to what must happen. Revelation is at hand and PERHAPS(?) mark of the 1st White Horse enters the scene believing the 1st seal is being broken, a sign of the times as written in Revelation; King James Version Holy Bible. This prophet gives testimony to what is here. There is no denying we are in those days spoken of and Salvation is only through the Blood Jesus Christ can provide. I come as a WITNESS showing the way to our Father, the only Father who art in heaven, through the sacrifice of God's only Son, Jesus Christ. Through Him do we have life abundantly along with a Spiritually divine life with God. AMEN

My message is: "If God can do ALL in my life, surely, He can do ALL in anyone's. God is no respecter of persons, none. What's for me is for you. We all have the chance at the same pay—it just depends upon how much work you are willing to put into enriching your life with Christ."

PREFACE

Before birth, God called me to be a prophet of God. After realizing this experience, I concluded, laying claim that I am a prophet of God. It is something I struggled with my whole life and still do, wondering the truth in the matter. I can't help but want to preach the truth as I know it, to the best of this ability. I've been a sinful soul learning life's ins and outs, sorrowful for my past, which is all forgiven, thankful for Jesus Christ, whom I confess as my personal Savior. This belief is what sets me free, as it does anyone who confesses the truth and lets it in as testimony in their own life by accepting His forgiveness with the Blood He shed on the Cross for everyone who believes and receives His forgiveness while repenting from their sins as a new creature in Christ.

When my identity as a prophet started materializing, my call from God broke down The Message, Believing is Receiving sentence by sentence how it applies to life. God gave a level of understanding during the time of writing as the Holy Spirit carried me along to a better understanding. The rhetoric gives warning along with the vision of what's coming, as God gave some insight—visions with words. The inevitable is announced while making right my ways, by showing people how it is done with experience, knowledge, and insight.

But most of all, Jesus Christ and how none of it could be possible without Him. It is the key to this prophet's success and yours having life abundantly, healed of transgressions which occur as quickly as you allow them to happen. It's really simple. It's the world making it confusing. I hope this will give you hope, along with insight regarding what God can do in your life by the example of what He does in mine, with Jesus Christ as my Redeemer. Having escaped the bondage a

couple of times, I believe this message can benefit others with experience and testimony, using my life as an example of what Jesus did in my life—helping them escape the bondage, coming as a pathfinder, showing the way by example. May your life change and be enriched. The Message will hopefully bring you closer to God. If you are willing to believe, you can certainly receive all of God's promises.

"Believing is Receiving"

Letter to the World;

Acts; 10:43

1. Believing that Jesus Christ, the Son of God, is an atonement for our sins, we can receive eternal life in heaven if you apply Him to your life. 2. Jesus Christ is the way to continue growth in God's Holy plan. 3. By adding Jesus Christ to the equation there is light and the answer becomes great. 4. Without accepting Jesus Christ, life is empty without much substance of holiness, full of sin and iniquity. 5 To a great extent this is out of many people's sight, nor do they understand that they can discover what's right with Jesus Christ in their lives. 6. The enemy tries to keep us down, not believing the great gospel of Jesus Christ, twisting the truth so we will not receive our inheritance. 7. The world has been searched, looking for meaning in life as well as meaning in our lives through trials and tribulations. 8. The Lord has been there encouraging growth, maturing for His purpose in our lives. 9. By understanding their downfalls in the way of sin, people can be reached. 10. The enemy is aware of the call of Jesus Christ and hindrances at every opportunity, causing discouragement. 11. The enemy tries to keep us from the light and purpose in life. 12. Don't believe the lies receiving condemnation. 13. Believe in truth and receive the redemption through Jesus Christ who was crucified. 14. Applying this belief, we have victory and can continue seeking the face of God. Amen

15. A Son of Light

16. This is the foundation of the call. 17. We fulfill the call in our lives or fall the way of the world. 18 The time is closer to when Jesus Christ will return. Watch out, for His vengeance is also with Him. 19. Pray, keep the eyes and ways upon God, God comes to settle the score. 20 The Lord has been with us throughout life. 21. We experience the fall of man knowing the enemy and the devices used to keep us in sin. 22. The Lord has been by our side holding for the time to fulfill His cause in our lives. 23. Learning of the scriptures, King James Version Holy Bible, is in order to know the Lord better. 24 Become saturated with His Spirit through the Word and Blood to accomplish what is at hand, joining fellow Christians with the same goal—glorify God. 25. We may have sinned much throughout life. 26. The more the transgression, the more Jesus Christ, when accepted, is glorified. 27. Repent! 28. Learn to pick yourself up quickly after falling and walk straight. 29. Sharing our experiences, hopes and insight to the World as testimony of what God will do with Jesus Christ in our lives. 30. Believe and receive the promises of God in Jesus Christ. 31. We are free from the bondage of sin to do His will, God's intent for us is immeasurable. 32. God loves us and has made a way. 33. The more we believe the more we can receive. Amen.

WB.J.

Acts; 10:43 King James Version (KJV) ~To him give all the prophets witness that through His name whosoever believeth in Him (Jesus Christ) shall receive remission of sins.

Jesus put it upon my heart to write a message expressing the Gospel of Jesus Christ. This is something that applies for today in a quick expression that's tangible and is on display, reminding me of what Jesus put on my heart to include. I am in love with the idea of making something that could be grasped and framed on the wall to be

shared with others. This is something folks could glance at daily, getting reminded of the fullness of the truth needed. It also allowed people who entered my house to know where I stand, hopefully moving their lives closer to Christ, which The Message expresses so well. The Message took on many changes from the beginning to the finished product. It was the best produced at the time and kept improving, going out into the world fulfilling its purpose. Jesus reminded me about being a prophet, realizing everyone could use The Message, and life started to make sense. Being through much in life allowed much to be understood. It's in my heart to share The Message to the world, defining purpose, giving love the best way knowing how and exalting the Lord in the process.

The first copy of The Message was amateur, to say the least, but had some effect in my life, as well as a few others, praise God. It most certainly changed my life, giving some stability one step at a time. I realized this is what I am to do: create a bona-fide correct message as understood, finally seeing where the prophet of God came in and the Last Day Messenger notion fell in place. I am to preach The Message that was developed, reaching people for Christ. It is a message of the last days confirmed by what the Spirit is doing today and the end times Scripture mentioned in the King James Holy Bible. I believe this is preparing a way for Christ's return. I believe anyway, continuing.

This direction is hard to discern for my life certainly complicated it, struggling with it, and certainly no passes. God has rules that do not bend becoming simple logic in life just as the King James Holy Bible expresses so well. The title "Last Day Messenger" came up throughout my experiences with God. The Message will be a tool reaching the world in a reduced version of mainly the New Testament along with the prophet's testimony before Christ. This will make it simpler to conclude in one glance. This message, The Message, is intended to

lead people to the King James Holy Bible so they can know more of the fullness of God through Jesus Christ by the Holy Spirit. It took a life of sin and experiences to come to my conclusions, and I am very thankful for surviving it, giving Christ credit for getting me this far in life. God certainly had His hand over me while going down that road and experiencing what is going on in this world today. What a sinful nature we have—some more than others. Now using my past as a springboard, glorifying Jesus Christ's name, making the difference, and adding to much.

My whole life prepared me for a time such as this, becoming solid (though I have my moments of doubt) knowing how easy it is to sway back and fall. We are believed in the Revelation stage of life and much in need of awareness that God is coming soon. God not only comes with His love and the redemption of His people through His Son Jesus Christ but also wrath upon those who reject Him. Much evil is loose today and the return of Christ is soon (MUST BE). My purpose then becomes understood. Satan knows his time is near, so expect this world to become more disorganized with chaos, distraction and destruction to keep your eye off the ball. The Message is a fair warning to the world and we should start preparing now, I am! One thing I can say without any doubt is we are in the last days.

1. BELIEVING THAT JESUS CHRIST, THE SON OF GOD, IS AN ATONEMENT FOR OUR SINS, WE CAN RECEIVE ETERNAL LIFE IN HEAVEN IF YOU APPLY HIM TO YOUR LIFE.

Jesus Christ is the way, the only way today to continue eternal life in heaven for those born after Jesus Christ's Gospel took hold in this world as it is written, believed, and received in my life. There is an eternal place for all of us, whether it is heaven or hell. If you believe there is evil, then you must agree there's another side to the coin—holiness. This world has evolved around all kinds of gods. Exactly who God is, is still a mystery. The mystery will be revealed in the end as told in the Bible. There is always a down and up in almost all religions known.

Satan knows how to blind people with lies. Satan is full of lies and deception. God is all truth and nothing but truth. God is the rule of truth and holiness, and those rules NEVER change. Jesus died for us as redemption for our sins. If you can believe that, accept it in your life, you will receive it. It's just that simple, though the world has complicated it with religion. Believe and receive the Holy Spirit and see how that can manifest in your life. Believe me when saying I am receiving when doing this work, when choosing to do it, or just putting my hands up and glorifying Jesus with praise and worship. Not only receiving the redemption through Christ but also the enrichment of the Holy Spirit. Nothing else this world has available compares with this. Thank you, Jesus, for such a good blessing words can hardly express.

You too can receive abundantly, for the Lord is no respecter of persons. What is available to one is available to all that conform to God's ways. Imagine eternity in heaven always with our Creator by the light which never fades and is all love. It sure beats the alternative—hell. God is love, and once you realize it, you can experience it. Being a prophet of God, I can truly tell you where my source comes from, letting all know the quicker you can experience it, the more you can experience it, as so many other Christians have.

Of all the religions known, know where the abundance of the Spirit comes from, because no other man-made god can do what our Holy God does. God is a living God that enlightens us with the Holy Spirit, believed can ONLY come through accepting Jesus as your personal Savior in this day. At least that is the way it has been since Jesus came into the world, and I would be interested in learning of another way if one exists. But the fact is, there's only one way to experience it, for it is also written. If there was another way, it would certainly be known in this day and age. I don't waste my time chasing pipe dreams, serving one God. This is not to say that God does not show His Spirit to whom He desires, but the source still comes from God. There is not much of a gray area known of. There is only one way, not two or three or many. Having never found the Holy Spirit anywhere else and have searched, knowing our source is in Jesus Christ. It works for me anyway, and I do not see any other way. Jesus is the undisputed champion of the world.

Many tried to get to the anointing but could not and made-up illusions to lead people away, perhaps for the sake of their own agenda. Beliefs are powerful, especially when dealing with God. Almost anything can be manifested by our imagination. Islam, to the best of my understanding, has known of the same God since the days of Abraham, the God of Abraham that showed favor making Ishmael

(the Arab peoples) into a great nation, trying to make heaven under their own steam through works like walking straight in their view. It's a theory anyway since we don't know for sure, though we continue to look into the truth. It strikes me as possible because it is written in Genesis 17:20: The God of Abraham made Ishmael and his descendants into a great nation, so what another God is theirs mentioned? No matter how close you get to God, you will not enter through the gates in which my Savior, Jesus Christ, is the only way. It's important to reunite the son with the father and the father with the son. Jewish descendants, also Ishmael's descendants of Abraham, would be wise to unite. It's inevitable, and this world is heading for a curse if we/they don't get to the truth of the matter. Though they may hear the truth, they may not accept it.

NOTES

Seems some people can't get beyond the statement that the God of Israel is or was also PERHAPS the God of Ishmael, the Muslims (descendants of Ishmael), where Allah stands for merely "God" in Arabic without a name. That's what Muslims confess, but Christians and Jews are very quick to denounce it. There was a time they knew of the true God, whether they rebelled against Him or not, and sought after other gods much like Israel did at one time. I can't even say that ALL alleged Christians serve the same God. This world is so twisted, and Satan gets the credit for confusing it. Since the King James Holy Bible isn't clear about this issue, this theory has a few scriptures to back it up, and it also makes sense. The main argument I have heard mostly is Muslims say they don't have a Jesus in their religion and therefore their "God" can't be Jehovah or Yahweh, depending on how pronounced, as we know Him by name, God of the Jewish religion which results in Christianity. The Jewish religion doesn't have a Jesus in their religion either, so that statement is full of holes because we

(Christians) certainly serve the same God Jews believe in. What people need to understand is that we "ALL" have Jesus, whether He is denied or accepted. He came to save us "ALL" who believe and receive Him, meaning everyone! Jews and Muslims choose to deny Jesus in their own unique way. They certainly know of Him and write about Him in their writings in some aspects but deny His Deity. They could start worshiping Him any time they choose, adding Him to the equation in their life (The New Testament), but in some cases, that is not ever going to happen. Know, Muslims and Jews need healing, truth, and salvation through Jesus too, regardless if anyone else wants to preach to them or not. They know God from the beginning but don't have access to His Holy Spirit, Salvation, and an inheritance through bloodlines of Abraham that went to Isaac (our promise, eventually coming through in Jesus Christ as the way sin is sacrificed today, coming whole before God). Half the battle is already won because they deeply believe in God or a god. It makes the difference between the Sons of Light & the Sons of Darkness, I believe anyway. Muslims today, in my view, have (had) a reflection of the light in darkness, much like some of their flags represent a moon (reflection of light, not the source) in darkness because it is the way they were brought up, away from the light I know in Christ today, and the same goes for any Jew who refuses to accept the truth (light). Any light in darkness is appreciated except to those who do wickedness. Only if Sarah, as well as Abraham, would have just believed (came to an agreement with God and themselves) and followed through, I don't believe we would be in this predicament, relying upon their own understanding, not letting God have His way, having dire consequences according to God's plan. Seeing a lot of Sarai (Sarah) in myself at times, having the most doubt, not letting God have His way (believing), making poor choices by relying upon my own understanding, making for dire consequences in my life (receiving). Every poor choice made has

consequences that become real in my life. I try to learn from their mistakes (if they were mistakes and not actually part of God's holy plan), as well as mine, realizing there are consequences to our actions we have to live with because of the choices we make. I have to live with some of my poor choices that just won't go away no matter how far I try and put them out of my life, still there somewhere coming back to haunt me; though I find purpose in my mistakes, making the most of it, as God reveals to me it has been Him there the whole-time encouraging change. My doubt, unbelief, attitude, perception, willingness, acceptance, forgiveness really showed. Believing God spared Ishmael and made him into a great nation, also knowing this day was coming where we will fight one another, just as prophesied by many prophets on both sides (in their own version), as we see it unfolding before us today. People get so reluctant today with the Word, thinking that some people, regardless of what religion they are or where they're from, do not need to hear the Gospel of Jesus Christ. God loves us ALL and seeks everyone, "EVERYONE," to have an opportunity to know Him better. There's going to come a time when all options are off the table, and they will spend eternity in hell or heaven without any more choices.

2. JESUS CHRIST IS THE WAY TO CONTINUE GROWTH IN GOD'S HOLY PLAN.

God has made a way to continue growing in His Holy plan, redeeming those who trust in the unseen by having faith in the Gospel of Jesus Christ. You are free if you truly believe, receiving all His blessings. Jesus Christ came into the world to save us from the consequences of our sin—believe! God made a way, but we have to believe to receive redemption while living out our days eternally in light.

Jesus was seen coming from the ancients prophesied long ago. They wrote there would be a Savior. As it came to pass, many recognized Jesus as the Messiah, defeating death and sin, thus allowing a way to eternal life in heaven. We had 2,000 years to think it over. Christ hasn't gone anywhere! Jesus is tried and true through the Spirit, guiding our hearts and souls to what God's Holy plan is. It is written what God expects of us and how we are to meet those expectations.

Before Christ, the sacrifice for sin was and still is for the Jewish religion—animals. This was in practice until Christ appeared from the dead after dying on the Cross, shedding His Blood. The Jewish religion still sacrifices animals by not accepting Jesus as our sacrifice, who ultimately is the ultimate sacrifice. The practice of sacrificing animals is still in effect for the Jewish religion because they do not believe their Messiah has already come. They're still waiting for Elijah to return.

I believe Elijah's time is returning. It must be! For the time has come closer to announcing the second coming of Jesus Christ. The

Bible says Elijah would come first, right before that great and dreadful day, sending two prophets as witnesses, knowing Jesus is near and the truth needs to come out regarding why Jesus went to the Cross. That great and dreadful day, known as the Day of the Lord, is coming quickly, knowing Jesus is coming soon. Elijah or any other witness, prophet, minister, or servant could not be without Christ today and be successful. No one can; this is for certain. It certainly would be his message expressing the key to anyone's success in the heavenly realm—it is Jesus and only Jesus. All conflict aside, it may rub some religions the wrong way, going against beliefs that have been held for 2,000 years.

God always had a plan for us before the Garden. There is a purpose for why God created us. We are here to be God's hand and mouthpiece, to worship Him and do His work here on the Earth. That is what we are created for: to worship God and be His servants, having a relationship. Everything else is a benefit that shows us how much we are loved. We are God's creation. His plan is to redeem what is redeemable.

3. BY ADDING JESUS CHRIST TO THE EQUATION THERE IS LIGHT AND THE ANSWER IS GREAT.

We have an equation in life, throwing many variables into it which complicate our lives, including coming against that which is holy. God is just; His rules do not change, just as the rules of mathematics do not change and are a universal rule. There is a process or foundation for math, rules that need to be followed to have the correct answer. Our lives are the same way. God has rules that do not bend. God does not negotiate. God sets out rules that He expects to be followed, and because of our sinful nature, made a way in Jesus so that we can become whole again to be complete before God. Putting the wrong things in our lives will only result in a negative, wrong answer. Inserting the right thing, like Jesus, makes the equation positive. It seems God's rule as light conquers darkness.

Having negative answers in the greater can turn positive when Jesus is added. The answer will be positive if you accept what is expected of you, repenting from iniquity, giving Christ room in your life. It takes time. The more difference there is between those variables measures how greatly Jesus can be glorified if you give your life to Him. It takes time to become aware of our flaws until they are revealed to us. It is a process. Jesus is here for sinners. The more debt and negativity you have in your life to begin with, the more your life will turn around, giving Christ all the glory.

A person can look at my life and the debt Jesus paid for me. Jesus paid much for my (our) life, and I feel I owe Him big by glorifying His name to the fullest of this ability. My time becomes His when I choose to follow through and must keep moving, adjusting as I go,

allowing Him to perfect His will in my life just as in anyone's life. Prophets especially need to be careful how they word things and what they say. An error could make a huge difference, no matter what was intended, and God has no error. There is no room for error, so I must examine this thoroughly and get this right. Humans, especially me, are not perfect, and we have many flaws. God is aware of these flaws and imperfections, working with us. All we do is keep adding Jesus to the equation in our life and keep moving towards the answer. Eventually, we will get it right, sometimes through many trials and errors.

4. WITHOUT ACCEPTING JESUS CHRIST, LIFE IS EMPTY WITHOUT MUCH SUBSTANCE OF HOLINESS, FULL OF SIN AND INIQUITY.

We are not aware of our sins as grievous sin until recognizing how heavy sin is in the spiritual realm, robbing us of our true potential. We must understand what holiness is and what it means to God that is how holy we can be in His sight according to Jesus. God intended for us to be holy, but mankind fell. We must make a conceivable choice to recognize our separation, lack, loss of love, and closeness. It's about Jesus making the difference for those who believe and receive His promises. It works for me anyway.

Learning this the hard way, instead of letting Christ take away my sins and repenting before God for full forgiveness, I chose to live a life of drugs and disobedience now healed. Thank you, Jesus, learning life from A to Z—oh my oh Gee now using my life for a better purpose. I was filling my life with false hopes, easing the pain of addiction, being dragged further and further from God, digging myself deeper and deeper. I tried other vices to fill that void. For shame, where would I be without Jesus? People do not know how much of a relief it is conforming to the ways of God until they accept Jesus Christ, becoming the person God designed them to be. God fills a void in my life. Jesus Christ entered my life when I believed and received Him.

Wondering how the Jewish faith survives, knowing much hardship has come upon them, and still, they will not conform. They know God but do not have access to His Holy Spirit and forgiveness, I am guessing. They have remained carnal in their thinking for the last

2,000 years. When I 100% accepted Jesus was when I became 100% connected to the Kingdom of God, putting new variables into the equation: 100% faith in Jesus Christ = all the promises of God. Coming into the Kingdom, you can feel the Spirit, knowing you're somewhere else besides this world, connected to God. God triumphs in your life if your concerns are for the Gospel. Through the Gospel of Christ, you can experience an abundant life. Any of you can experience it if you will believe it. This is for everyone, and when you believe it, then you can receive it. The more you believe, the more you can receive, meaning we all have a chance for the same "pay." It just depends on how much work you are willing to put in enriching your lives with Christ.

5. TO A GREAT EXTENT THIS IS OUT OF THEIR SIGHT, NOR DO THEY UNDERSTAND THAT THEY CAN DISCOVER WHAT'S RIGHT WITH JESUS CHRIST IN OUR LIVES

Many people don't understand whether it's atheism or some other religion keeping them away from the wholeness God intended for us. There is only one God. We learn, figuring out what or who God is and how we are to come before Him—Jesus. What's to become of us? He is the same God of Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob. Many have their opinions regarding what God should or should not be. We have a book that has been accumulating for 5,000 years plus, expressing since the beginning about the God I serve. It is a tried-and-true book that was first to impress upon us a God. It has been in our sight the whole time, but until we realize it, we may never understand. The enemy puts a smoke screen in many lives. A lot of us can say we believe in a god; we just can't agree on who that is.

To my understanding, Islam believed in the same Creator God before other people and prophets led them further from the light. It was God, the ONLY God of Abraham, making Ishmael into a great Arab nation, breaking away from the Judean heritage by not inheriting the promise that went to Isaac. So, what another God is there (was theirs)? Just because they believed in the God of Abraham at one time does not mean that they served the same God or followed the same God and didn't have other idols in their place, like the Israelites molding a calf made of gold. Most people have a tendency to vary from our true God in life by chasing lies. Perhaps that's why Muslims

try so hard to please God through works and worship, by denying Jesus' deity and His ultimate purpose here on the earth—much like the Jewish religion—while also believing in the same Creator God.

There is only one way to the true God I serve since Jesus came back from the dead the same God the Jewish ancestors declared, providing anointing through the Holy Spirit who can be touched through Jesus. Christ displayed authority over death while giving life abundantly, shining His light into the darkness, conquering it. I have tried many ways to get to the anointing, having full access to the Holy Spirit in harmony with what God intended life to be. The only way is accepting Jesus Christ as Savior. By believing, we receive favor from God through the Holy Spirit, becoming my tried-and-true experience. Amen!

No sensation compares to the Holy Spirit supernaturally touching us in a way that has not been experienced without Jesus. When I tried to approach God without Jesus, not much would transpire until putting Jesus into the equation of my life and prayers. Thank you, Jesus, for such a lovely touch that words can hardly express. We are designed to praise and worship in Jesus' name. It seems complicated, but really this world is what's complicating it. Hopefully, reading this book will open the door, introducing you to the Holy Spirit and how to obtain abundant life at that.

This brings us to the ultimate problem with the Jewish religion. Ever since the Jewish leaders denied their (our) Christ, having Him crucified, they can't accept the truth. They have suffered greatly since, by not confessing their conduct. They live apart from the truth, even today keeping their people bound to their ways away from the truth in Jesus Christ. Own up to it and repent. Then rejoice, for it was God's ultimate plan to have a Savior, and they should know that. God loves you and seeks evermore to commune with you. You are God's chosen

people, but His rules do not change. It's up to us to change and conform. It makes an interesting concept how Jesus will be preached and the 144,000 mentioned in Revelation will be saved. What did change was the way sin was sacrificed. No longer do we see the offering of livestock daily for all the sin on the altar because something has changed. Accept what has been proven during the last 2,000 years—Jesus. God's people are the apple of His eye, and He seeks nothing more than to be with His chosen people in Spirit, mind, and soul. God's children would be overjoyed, much like Jacob's son Joseph, who reunited with his family. You would think overwhelming love and joy would consume them in jubilee.

Ultimately, it shows society how just God is, even with His own people who were chosen from the beginning. Those who do not conform to His Son, Jesus Christ, have no inheritance, is my understanding, and the devil takes full advantage of it. The Jewish faith has been suffering since that is what religion does bind you to your words so that it is against the law to accept Christ. See if what's said is true, then see the irony of it all. Is that not just how Satan works? He blinds people from the truth in order to distort something else sold as a lie.

6. THE ENEMY TRIES TO KEEP US DOWN, NOT BELIEVING THE GREAT GOSPEL OF JESUS CHRIST, TWISTING THE TRUTH SO WE WILL NOT RECEIVE OUR INHERITANCE

That is the enemy's job to keep you down, whether you believe in Christ or not. Christians can be down if we are not practicing the laws of what is expected of us, living in defeat because of what is believed. Being a Christian for a long time, I have backslidden more than I care to remember. Do not get caught up on the other side for that one moment of bliss, stupidity or anger (or taking the mark of the beast). When we let our guard down, the enemy will manifest before us, trying to get us to believe something other than the truth, validating us to be in error. People need to stay focused on truth, not bending or swaying. The enemy uses anything and everything to take away from Christ and what He went to the Cross for. We are God's children. The truth has been told and is being told. We must believe it. Only then can it be accepted to work in our lives.

If you have your hope in something you do not believe, then God cannot work His forgiveness in your life or any other gift that He makes available. There is no shortage of lies being told about Jesus, twisting the truth, conforming their bibles, messages, and oracles as they wish by taking Jesus out and adding in what does not belong. If you believe in something that is false, you will miss the mark and not be fulfilled in the Kingdom of God because lies twist the truth of the Bible, conforming to their motives. There is only one way I know to

the Father, and that is through Jesus Christ, as expressed in a King James Bible. Jesus Christ is entitled to ALL the glory—no one else.

There is only one Father to confess your sins to, and it is not a priest who can forgive by confession. It might make you feel a little better, but until you confess it to God the Father in Jesus Christ, then you are not covered under the Blood—no priest needed. It would be a setup from the enemy. What would happen if there wasn't a priest around and you sinned, not confessing your error, and would live in a state of damnation eternally because of what you believed? We can have confession along with forgiveness anytime, anywhere, and in any place by reaching out to Jesus, for He is always there. Anytime we behave and keep God's commandments, putting Jesus into the equation, we get a feeling of well-being that can illuminate our spirit. There is only one truth, so what is it? Good deeds or confession to a Catholic priest or hailing Jesus' mother Mary and the Saints will not get you into heaven. They are dead but not to be forgotten. Serving Christ, and only Christ, will get you redeemed. There is no middle person necessary!

Believing I am tapped into what seems the fullest (thank you, Jesus), seeing no reason to complicate it. When I tried, it only took me further away. I have tried many paths, finding just one with the best God can offer, and don't need a middleman or woman to enhance that experience—just Jesus. Christ and only Christ belongs on the throne, and woe to anyone that distorts this for their personal gain such as money, fame, and glory, altering the truth and becoming the middleman. By believing truthfully, we can truly receive His great Spirit in full, who comforts us, touches us, guides us, enlightens us, loves us... So many tools in the enemy's arsenal keep us down and apart from God, such as a lack of knowledge of the truth. This can be

gauged by the anointing regarding what is right from wrong, if it's the Holy Spirit that counsels us.

Know that God does not coerce us but draws us in the direction desired by our actions conforming to His will in our lives. We follow God, coming to Him. God actually asks permission to draw you closer to Him by choices we make, like letting Jesus be King in our lives. This is some free will, huh? God will draw you in the direction that is desired through your obedience, which gets us closer to God. We follow in life what brings us closer to God, allowing the purpose He desires in your life. We obtain life abundantly through Jesus by behaving according to God's Word, like the Ten Commandments. We all have purposes that differ from person to person. God seeks us close to Him but can't stand the sight of a sinner, making a wedge surely between God and man. We must come clean before God by taking a stand with Jesus, realizing there is a way—believe that and RECEIVE IT!

Christ is the source of anointing no other can provide. To my knowledge, though I tried many things this world has available, I never found anything compared to the sovereignty the Holy Spirit provides. Some things experienced in life seem to come close to the euphoria but always damage your brain, body, and soul only temporal, not everlasting and influence you to sin. God's Spirit does neither. The Holy Spirit is pure, natural, and supernaturally provided through worshiping, pressing through with prayer, truth, love, and assurance, concentrating on God who is never failing. The only disappointment is what occurs when we do not conform to God's perfect will in our lives, buying into the enemy's warfare with lies and influence to not serve or worship God, falling away from grace. God is patient, giving us a lifetime to get on the mark, for I am a witness, going through many trials and tribulations. Non-believers and believers alike must

think I'm out of my mind living as a witness like many other Christians do, asking, "Are we all wrong?" If the Spirit is not known, then perhaps disbelief is prevalent in your life. God says His Spirit will be flowing powerfully in the last days, and I feel tapped in at times when doing this calling. Hallelujah, receiving abundance—and so can you—with a call upon your life serving Christ.

7. THE WORLD HAS BEEN SEARCHED, LOOKING FOR MEANING IN LIFE AS WELL AS MEANING IN OUR LIVES THROUGH TRIALS AND TRIBULATIONS.

There are many that seek something greater than themselves. From the beginning of time, humans have been searching for a higher power. Most diversity of life established in this world has a higher power, but that power was not known. All that is known by many is that it exists. People would make gods of wood, stone, metal, clay, and those like Buddha's, worshiping them as their god. The truth is unknown to them. This seems to have occurred in a lot of civilizations from ancient times throughout. So, it is not that most people do not believe in a god, heaven, or hell, but embrace wrong concepts that can't do anything for them besides maybe giving a sense of well-being, which is manifested by our nature. We are designed to praise and worship, and when we do, we feel good.

It is foolish to put one's hope into empty promises of wood, metal, clay, rocks, gems, etc., saints, dead or living people. None of these things have innate power except for the power people give them. Therefore, the lost become ultimately disappointed unless they want to use it for a doorstop or a paperweight. It holds no value except what we give it. God values the stuff we value, for instance, our money, resources, time, and devotion. One tenth (tithe) of our finances (resources) should go to His house, giving a place to dwell among His people. We had to put value on something so that it can be sacrificed tithes spoken of in the Word of God. It's how we comprise coming before Him, benefiting the community, bringing service, life, fellowship.

God loves a joyful giver that promotes His kingdom. We do it because it represents good defeating evil, so be careful where you put your tithes. Some ministries at times hijack your money for another purpose, usually glorifying themselves above God's purpose. We learn what it means to become holy by not doing corrupt actions against life but preserving it—using our resources, talent, time, money, and effort for good.

Some serve Satan, whether realized or not. The same goes if the devil gets your resources, praise, and devotion for another kingdom. Great pleasure comes to those doing evil, like hurting, killing, stealing, raping, molesting, corrupting, and the list goes on and on. They exalt themselves and the flesh, exalting their god, Satan, which lifts themselves as gods over life by trashing God's creation.

Most of my life I have been fighting in the trenches for salvation in my life, keeping Jesus in the equation, trying to do right by God's standards. Before that, I was seeking other avenues to get to God. However, the only way to experience freedom was through the Blood of Jesus Christ. I tried to find it in drugs, thinking I was having a religious experience from the effects, but it was false. False hope can be hope, but not the right hope. It is important to keep your mind clear, clean, and unaltered from intoxicants that can become misleading in your life when trying to approach God, so we know it was God and not the drug influencing us. When we mix other influences in our life while seeking God, it can and will alter our perception from true reality, leaving us confused when seeking the truth.

Things have changed considerably for me but I still carry around the stigma of the past. Maybe my toughest critic is me, by bringing it up, acknowledging my wrong, confessing before man and Jesus, freely speaking. I am not the person I once was literally a new creature since making Christ the priority in my life, fulfilling the call. It is in Jesus

Christ that I am (we are) truly free because of belief, receiving it, resulting in the message always believing in Christ and the power of the Blood. When I fell, I felt doomed, coming against God, feeling there was no way out, and cursed. That is what the enemy wants you to believe because that is his future—cursed. I can tell you: God loves us, giving His Son, Jesus Christ, showing a tried-and-true way out of our misery of sin and the curse that ails man. God knows our sinful nature all too well and needed to offer a way to come clean before Him—Jesus. I have found the truth and the way in Jesus Christ. He has set me (us) free indeed.

Ask anyone who believes and receives His promises if it is true. There is no shortage of Christians; thank God for America, where this freedom exists as the government and society try taking away what our Founding Fathers were aiming at. It is starting another revolution coming quickly, just as this rhetoric expresses what's tearing this country (USA) apart as well as the world. God made the USA under Him and His principles, allowing for freedom to serve Him openly without fear, hindrance, or persecution. That was the Founding Fathers' vision. We see today how this is becoming under attack, where laws are burdening us from openly serving God, pursuing happiness, and freedom of religion. The Constitution and my great country, the USA, were created for this. You see what happens in those countries where the true God (Jesus) is taken out. There's a lot of despair in this world in the name of god.

8. THE LORD HAS BEEN THERE ENCOURAGING GROWTH THAT WE MAY MATURE FOR HIS PURPOSE IN LIFE.

The Lord knows all too well we are destined to fall because of our sinful nature that comes from the fall of Adam and Eve, causing all to be carriers of evil. It's a flaw in our human makeup, making it a human problem. It's sin that must be washed out of society. This is accomplished through change, generations of change, bringing us to this point in life as prophecy is being fulfilled. God is just and committed to His principles. But don't ever think He doesn't love you or has abandoned you, as much as we sometimes would like to believe when conflict happens and afflicts us. God loves us very much and seeks to be with you in His fullness. But it cannot happen on our terms unless our terms are His. Be aware of God's terms: getting closer to Him by conforming to what is asked, changing for the better, becoming heaven material. This is done through trial and tribulation, which tries our faith, revealing to us our error when we don't seek God for the answers and rely upon our carnal self.

God does not bend or change. He is the same yesterday, today, and forever. It is for us to seek Him and change. Through our trials and tribulations, God has been drawing us closer if we look to Him for the answers. The answers are there in the Holy Bible, and the Spirit will guide you. God will speak to our hearts, letting us know what is right and wrong if we are open to His will in our lives. We are not perfect and can work on our imperfections when we seek His will in our lives. If anything, we need to bend and change, becoming the person God designed us to be.

As God is kept in our lives, we positively begin becoming wiser in His ways, maturing for His purpose in life. He is our God; we are His servants. We are made in His image to be His hands, His voice, to glorify Him once we establish who we are to God. We will stand above the angels when applying the Blood of Jesus, sitting on the right hand of God with Jesus in His righteousness as heirs. We can grow, being more established in His Kingdom and what our part is when open to God's direction. We learn how to act and think in an appropriate manner that conforms to God's perfect will—and that is obeying Him.

We learn from our mistakes and iniquities to be more responsive to our environment in a manner that is appropriate. We become more mature in God's perfect will, becoming responsible servants, spreading His goodwill to others. A lot of immaturity concerning holiness comes from not being in line with God's will and instructions. We must figure out what exactly God is aiming at in our lives. Through our growth, we can identify our immaturity and can conform, growing into the perfect will of God in our lives. This is how we grow.

9. BY UNDERSTANDING THEIR DOWNFALLS IN THE WAY OF SIN, PEOPLE CAN BE REACHED.

Sin is a downfall in life. Literally, all sins lead to downfall. Understanding that downfalls are a consequence of sin can help us start recognizing the downfalls in our lives and reflect upon what put us there. Downfall came upon us the day that Adam and Eve sinned against God, breaking a commandment. It was a simple request not to eat of the Tree of Knowledge of Good and Evil God had in the midst of the Garden. It was a direct disregard of God's commandment, having dire consequences. God knew the consequences, setting us up for everything that has led to today's death and destruction. God saw it and knew it because God knows all. It birthed the evil in all of us that God must wash out of society to His purity through Jesus Christ. Eventually, there will be a day to weed out the corruption that originated that day in all of us.

Opening our minds to the things of God, like eating the fruit giving knowledge of good and evil, has advanced wickedness, destroying life as we know it. All (most) of civilization could be wiped out, surely perishing with its falling souls. Who taught man to kill at such an ever-mounting rate, starting with Cain and Abel? Our knowledge has advanced to an ultimate death machine, the atomic bomb, that is ultimately becoming our demise. Why a bomb to kill when atomic power could be used as a fuel source? Because it was an evil design for killing, destroying God's good work here on earth for an evil purpose though it changed the tide of times as the USA used it for destroying its enemy that confronted the world as I believe will happen in the future when God will allow this to be released to destroy

the wickedness on the Earth by fire with fervent heat. God mentions also a natural phenomenon called Wormwood, perhaps an interstellar object that will hit the earth at a given and chosen time, causing much destruction. Man took it upon himself to try to be like God through the sin of that all-too-cunning enemy, Satan, eating of the tree that opened their eyes and ways society has developed into all its depraved behaviors. Once we establish our sin in this world and wish to do something about it by being attentive to what God seeks us to be, we can be reached while also reaching others with the truth that sets us free. Eternity in hell does not sound appealing, but a life in heaven does.

We all have downfalls which are consequences of sin. If we were perfect before Adam's transgression, then that's what God seeks for us now. It was God's intention to have a close relationship with mankind from the beginning, making the difference of what kind. God made a way to reach out to us through Jesus Christ today. It is for us to speak the good news to those who have fallen and have not stood up yet because they did not hear or believe in our Savior, Jesus Christ.

10. THE ENEMY IS AWARE OF THE CALL OF JESUS CHRIST AND HINDRANCES AT EVERY OPPORTUNITY CAUSING DISCOURAGEMENT.

The enemy is aware of the Gospel of Jesus Christ and the ministry that came after. The enemy has been diverting us away from God with other religions and notions meant to keep us away from the truth that is in Jesus Christ and God. For one reason or another, whether it was Jesus' accusers, executioners, or deniers that put Him on the Cross, they can't bear their iniquity to this day and will continue denying Jesus, placing ANY EMPHASIS ABOVE that of Jesus.

Finding it to be discouraging putting our faith in dead works. Asking deceased people who are no longer living to pray for you is empty prayer. Some faiths are very devoted people to Jesus while doing unnecessary notions, traditions, and idolatry for its members, lifting them and their clergy up high. It's their way of worship and seeing they truly may believe in Christ, amen, and are saved according to their faith because it's what you do with your belief to receive Christ. Nonetheless, there are some attributes that don't belong and can't be ignored.

Seeing other faiths as watered down or residual anointing is becoming my experience. Everything may look holy and right, deemed an act rehearsed for centuries. Maybe that's why some try so hard at it with religion. It is man's way of capitalizing on sin, being the middleman to Jesus, getting glorified in the process. Perhaps that's why they can become one of the richest, most influential churches in

the world, being their way to worship—finding Christ in there somewhere.

If my religion chose to serve and told me to stand on my head for an hour a day chanting "Jesus save me" praises, then I would be expected to stand on my head, being compliant with a religion started. A person is still getting blessed with Salvation because they're acknowledging Jesus but would need a chiropractor regularly. If a person didn't fulfill the daily ritual, they would truly have failed because of what they thought was expected. Our conscience will condemn us if we are true to ourselves and others. Thankfully, we need not anything but willingness to believe in Christ and receive all of God's promises right here where we are. Glorifying God in Jesus' name enables us to experience the Holy Ghost anytime, anywhere, and anyplace. No religion or church is needed, for Jesus is the Church and Jesus is everywhere.

My friends, I tell you the truth: we need no middleman to Christ. Confession to anyone is good, especially a man or woman of the cloth. It can allow you to feel better. But Jesus is the only redeemer that will be the ultimate comforter, so trust in Him, not man. Confession to peers is good. It is constructive to be accountable to someone. Jesus becomes our middleman to our Father, the only Father in heaven. Believe that and receive it. It is easy, not complicated.

There is only one way, one God. Notice how some have many gods to choose from. Notice how some are being drawn away from Jesus and the truth. Notice how the Holy Bible started to be conformed to the needs and delusion man made for themselves. Anything varying from the truth is a lie. Woe unto those who distort the truth and facts written, leading those into hell. Friends, beware that there are many roads to hell but only one road to eternal life in heaven. At every turn in life, we have the option to conform or be deformed in the image of

God. The enemy pulls on our self, knowing what buttons to push at the right time, leading us away from the light in life with discouragement, distractions, and turmoil. He tells us we are not worthy to be in God's presence or that there is not a presence, so continue in your behavior. Our enemy is spiritual, always influencing us with our sinful nature of the flesh.

Just because Satan is destined for hell does not mean that we have to be. You have a choice up until you draw your last breath. Everyone that has fallen short of selling their soul to the devil has an opportunity. The enemy will try to make you think you do not have an opportunity to be reclaimed before God in the name of Jesus Christ—another lie. Jesus can turn everything around if we allow Him. It happens as quickly as we allow Him to with our beliefs. If we believe we are healed in Jesus' name, then we are healed, and do not let the enemy tell you any different. Keep believing, giving it to Jesus. He hears all our prayers.

The enemy complicates our lives with lies, causing discouragement, because the lie keeps us apart from God. If there was another way to the Father, it would be known. If I knew of another way, I would tell you. Trust in the Word of God, not that of man. The Word of God has been there from the beginning. People take the Word by discrediting it or twisting it so it is not in line with God's Word, and therefore it keeps others away from our true God.

11 THE ENEMY TRIES TO KEEP US FROM THE LIGHT AND PURPOSE IN LIFE.

That is the enemy's job to keep us away from the light and purpose in life. Perhaps that is why it is allowed to exist, so we have an option to be judged by the choice we make. We have a free will, and the enemy takes full advantage of it. Satan does not have an option and is destined for eternal life in hell.

The contempt that follows is the influence the enemy puts on us to also join him in hell by corrupting anything that has to do with holiness — us. If we don't know the truth, it sets us up for discouragement and a life apart from God. God's children are happy and content serving Him through His Son, Jesus Christ.

Our purpose in life is to worship God. That is what we are created for. God gave us hands and a mouth to create by speaking His Word forever and ever. God does not ask much of us. We are to follow the commandments, which become easier after surrendering and conforming to His Spirit's influence in our lives. Though I struggle in life with issues, my issues know this is not what God seeks us/me to be. We bring condemnation on ourselves if we do not accept the way God made us, allowing us to be whole in His sight, saved from our iniquity, blessed with abundant life enriched with the Holy Spirit, enjoying life for which it has been created. God is good so good my words can't express enough the joy of serving God, open to His will in my life, following through. God has a call on each one of your lives with purpose and is no respecter of persons.

12 DON'T BELIEVE THE LIES RECEIVING CONDEMNATION.

There are many lies out there about who God is or is not. Somewhere aside from all the lies and confusion, there's truth. The books accumulating in the Holy Bible, ultimately becoming the King James Version, were first to express who God is, continuing for some time until people who did not or could not follow God came up with their own religions, prophets, kings, and public people to be their gods or representations of a god that is not the God of the Universe. Many lies have come to distort the truth and will say the books written in the Holy Bible known as the King James Version were among the first tried and known to be true. Everything in the Bible is there for a purpose, regardless of whether we can wrap our heads around what was meant, accepting the Bible for how it stands, and working out conclusively as my guide in life.

Some things are not understood, but the things that are have a great impact on my life, opening a door to our God and His Son, Jesus Christ. If anything, that's what God is conveying. Without conveying the truth, we are left to be condemned. Believe in the truth and not the lies the enemy puts before us. If we do not deal in truth, then condemnation is for sure. What a freedom to serve the Highest, who gives joy, happiness, and a future dwelling with Him eternally and the Holy Spirit. If you want to be redeemed, happy, and blessed with the Holy Spirit, then know there is only one way — through God's Son, Jesus Christ. This is the truth known and experienced, being a testimony to the world.

13. BELIEVE IN TRUTH AND RECEIVE REDEMPTION THROUGH JESUS CHRIST WHO WAS CRUCIFIED.

As it is written, believed, and received, Jesus Christ came to save the world from sin. Jesus' crucifixion was prophesied by men long ago. Fulfilling the prophecy, Jesus came, knowing He was the Son of God and was to become the ultimate sacrifice. Jesus allowed Himself to be on the Cross, embracing it so it would come to pass. The Blood shed would be atonement for our sins, reconciling us with God if believed and received. Jesus endured much suffering to be the redeemer for us, enabling us to have an opportunity to be with God. Not only did Christ make a way to our Father, but also those who believe in Him will receive the Holy Spirit, through whom comes love, life, great pleasure, excitement, comfort, substance, direction finding nothing like it, though I tried many things this world has available. It is a Spirit keeping me vibrantly content, given freely because I believe and receive the promises Jesus said would be available as living water.

Sure enough, I can testify that it is all true, and the Spirit in my life is exceptionally excellent when doing God's will and work. And when I don't, it's turned off like a faucet figuring the anointing is for service and also an expression of our relationship. God indeed loves us. It came around the month, or at the very moment, I accepted Jesus after truly believing He was the sacrifice for my sins, redeeming me before God, accepting His presence felt through the Holy Spirit. We have it freely. All we have to do is call upon Him. The Holy Spirit enlightens us to what is holy and what is not. The Spirit is a good indicator of what is expected in us, that is, if we have the Spirit operating in our lives. It takes time to become fluent with the Holy

Spirit, and all wouldn't be possible without the embracement of our Savior, Jesus Christ.

14. APPLYING THIS BELIEF, WE HAVE VICTORY AND CAN CONTINUE SEEKING THE FACE OF GOD, AMEN

This belief opened doors to a loving relationship with God, setting me free because it's truly believed, so truly received. Beliefs are what will keep us down or up. If we do not fully believe, then we do not fully receive God's will and promises with a thing called faith, as understood. The more we believe, the more we can and will receive, becoming simple logic as just stated.

God seeks to be our fullness, but we have to come to Him to get full. God made a way and all provisions to seek Him — all for His Son's glory. All we do is accept what is before us and put it to work. Once we start trusting, Jesus can work more in our lives, drawing us closer to where God is. God seeks to be intimately close with us. God has a lot of love if you are willing to be loved by Him. God already loves us and made a way for us to come before Him through His Son, Jesus Christ, and what a love it is.

I can't stress to you enough how important it is to have a relationship with God through His Son, Jesus Christ, coming here as a messenger — Last Day Messenger if understood right. That is what I did: to give the world a message about the last days, hopefully returning people to God. Having been without Jesus in life, I can tell you personally that it's the way to the Father, exposed to the light (truth), accepting it for all its worth, finding a beautiful relationship that I could not or would not give up for anything, anything. Not that the enemy doesn't try to draw me away with enticing things, or lack of faith and belief, or with doubt in my mind where I would hide from God, not letting Him have His way in my life for His purpose.

The enemy knows my (our) weaknesses and plays on them all the time. After a while, he has to come up with something new because he is defeated, as recognized because of Jesus, when applying the Blood to each and every one of my (confessed) sins and iniquities. I am not to be arrogant either because we have a cunning adversary that shows up when least expected. That is his job, and he's working it hard getting us to fall with him by any means of deceit. God is sovereign in my life, getting rewarded in this world, eventually the ultimate reward the better in God's eyes, the closer in His unrestrictive presence. Having come a long way from where I once was thanking you, Jesus, for giving victory where I am in life; and it couldn't be done without Him.

15. A SON OF LIGHT

(Originally wrote 2017 edited)

We all can be sons and daughters of light. God created us, and God is light. We choose if we are to be children of light or children of darkness in this world as our testing ground determining our fate. My understanding is that those who keep the covenant of God, as expressed in the King James Holy Bible, if they exercise their right as a Christian, can be and are a son or daughter of light. We are all sons and daughters and choose what path we will follow, whether it is in light or darkness.

In the last days, the Sons of Light men and also women devoted to carrying out God's will in Jesus' name as a priority in their lives (you will know who you are) will be subjected to fight, provoked for spreading the gospel throughout the world. It is their quest to spread the glory of Jesus Christ, magnifying Him to the world, spreading The Message (my job, for instance) or any other message exalting Christ. There will be those who will come against this belief, which is coming to pass in this, my lifetime, and arriving soon to a theater near all of us. Having a side that wishes to vindicate Jesus to the world with the authority of the Blood to those who reject the light, forcing their beliefs on people of a different religion so they will not have a free will to choose whom they serve. A war seems imminent because these forces are at play, which must come as it is written, so prepare. Believing God brought me up this way for a reason. "I am what God says I am—a messenger."

For centuries, wars were fought over religion; nothing has changed. We have an enemy that is all but willing to attack us because of our belief in Christianity and our way of life with freedom. This

world is not getting any bigger but smaller as populations grow. Eventually, we will clash, having to fight, and it is better to be on the offensive or at least prepared to defend if you're willing to fight. Stop living under the belief it is all about peace, buying time for the enemy to organize more destruction, as believed already taken place. The Anti-Christ set the stage. It is written: peace will be called for a time—seven years if recalled correctly. Ultimately, the fight is destined to happen.

Believing seven years of peace are almost over prophesied by men of God long ago. Signing a deal with the Iranians in late 2015 gave them a big boost financially and allowed them to enrich uranium unchecked, which was soon broken, enriching them to do their will, defending the Muslim faith over Christian principles in our own country. An Anti-Christ regime, like the Muslim Brotherhood among others, would do such a deal. Woe to those who support this direction, enabling a poor deal to go through, selling off this great country of God, the United States, and Israel all in the name of peace. Seems to be a "Democratic" agenda weakening this country and its allies while shrinking our military and resources so it can't fight efficiently. There is no reason to be moving out of countries at this juncture in time. But this can't be stopped along with the agenda, starting the no return as it is written.

The current president of the USA, while writing this testimony, came to light and would not fight, disguised under peace, emboldening our enemies. He pandered to USA enemies, going against the principles of Christianity and Judaism by enriching their/our enemies with finances, uranium which will eventually be used someday (it's inevitable), allowing the enemy to infiltrate my country by sheer numbers, letting the enemy go free to fight another day, provoking this mess we're in today. Believing this is becoming a concept, vetoing any

increase in defense expenses by giving it away for other means that are also weakening us as a country by going broke, putting extreme pressure on USA finances.

Update comment: look where we're at in 2024 and when did it start. I can assure you this will never resolve and only get worse. There'll be another peace deal after this one and another, but again and again it will be broken. All peace deals do is allow the enemy to build its arsenal, regroup, and rearm. I can't help but consider what I have witnessed and written is all part of the theme that will coincide with the Antichrist's agenda. Can't do anything but report the news as understood, hoping it's not out of line with what the truth really is. Seeing things aligning just as written, it is in God's hands.

We see people's motives through their actions, not their charismatic words that may have been the main purpose and objective of his administration (which is still in control, if not even more behind the scenes), executed flawlessly. Regardless of the intent, it's the result that matters, seeing this as the theme in which the enemy is pulling off in these end days. Believing a lot are fooled because surely the future is looking grim, beyond return, as Jihad begins that Muslims are bent on for starters and infiltrating, not to mention all the other influences with the intention of ruling this world with a new order like Russia, China...

Not to be dismayed. The hourglass has turned, and the countdown begins. The Good Book says we win in the end, and so believe that. This time was prophesied, unraveling precisely as written, meaning this time begins to do the will according to what God bestowed upon me before birth to do, write this book—done, complete, and well on mark. God has His way of letting me know I am on track with dreams coming true just as envisioned, having nothing to do but direction orchestrated awesomely, giving confirmation this is for real. Very

pleased doing God's work here on earth as it is in heaven, having purpose fulfilled. Struggling with my own understanding like disbelief in myself. Certainly, I believe I am a prophet (how could I not after all these experiences and influences with a strong desire to preach the truth), though I have questions of what kind, resting my faith in Jesus Christ. It's all I have, but He is sufficient. Jesus got me this far and didn't see Him stopping, faithfully believing this call to Him.

If you are not in line for what is coming or are not prepared, you will be fighting two battles. Our salvation needs to be settled within ourselves to ever continue peacefully. I am at peace, come what may, because I am saved in the name of Jesus, promised a better place, being filled with the Holy Spirit while getting there. Jesus paid the price no matter how big the price tag, for I am a witness. It is better to be prepared. You should have Jesus in your life so you're not struggling in times of conflict, already having a relationship with our provider's promises. Been told Jesus will reappear to this world bringing His reward as well as wrath as is written. He will arrive like a thief, unexpectedly, coming with the clouds to take what is His and bring vengeance upon those who are not.

God will move quickly in these last days. It is all business taking care of the harvest, weeding out the fruit that is not good to burn for eternity, existing in the heavenly realm no more. He comes not only with His reward to those who served Him, ranking in His allegiance, but also vengeance to those who reject Him, following their evil ways. Anything that is not of Jesus is condemned to those who are accountable. It is important for every missionary and servant to spread the word to all the world by using our lives as examples of what Christ is about. Rallying the troops, the Sons of Light, after all, feel it's my call, so believed blowing the rallying trumpet.

16. This is the foundation of the Call.

Everything that was mentioned in the first part of this message, The Message, what is considered, seems to be a two-edged sword of the Word called tried and true. Just like the first half, the message is tried (Jesus) and the other half is true (a witness's testimony, mine, about Jesus and what was inspired to also include), going out battling the evil with this sword of the Word, being victorious. I believe this sword to be powerful, ready for spiritual warfare. What do you think? The truth cuts like a knife.

This is the foundation of the call to Jesus Christ. This foundation has been laid by God, who showed in the days before His Son what was, is, and is to come. As Jesus came into the world to save us from sin, to those who believe, receive the redemption for which He was crucified, giving access to the Holy Spirit with eternity in heaven. We put our foot on a solid foundation that does not dispute when tried. We have a precious thing called life, which should be cherished, not abused and misused for Satan's purpose. We are here for God's purpose. The call is accepting Christ in our lives—nothing more, nothing less. Once we accept the call, many more calls can be put on our lives.

It is amazing that in the Christian, Jewish, Catholic, and even proclaimed by Muslims as their god, the four main religions, God, for the most part, is Jehovah God "Yahweh," declared by Abraham. This is a controversial understanding that some do not agree with, which cannot explain how or why, because the Bible isn't very clear, in which many scholars differ. Differences are what keep us apart, fighting each other over creed, understanding, and religion, starting

with Ishmael, a son of Abraham, enhanced by God to be a great nation with favor. So, at one time there's no doubt that the God of Abraham was the God of Ishmael. Somewhere in the midst, there is truth, so it's not that we err in knowing of the same God. God is mighty, recognized through many cultures and religions. God showed His might that is undeniably sovereign. There is no other God like Him.

Though we may or may not know of or serve the same God, regardless, good deeds alone will not get you into heaven. Accepting Christ and only Christ will, and that's why it's important for all to hear. What it boils down to is denial of who, what, and why Christ was put on a cross. Also, who put Him there, denying any wrongdoing by seeking another way to the Father because people reject Christ, not putting Him where He belongs! No matter how close you miss the mark, a miss is still considered a miss and is bound for hell according to the Bible. Christ went to the cross so we will hit the mark, not fumbling around looking for the way in darkness.

17. WE FULFILL THE CALL IN OUR LIVES OR FALL THE WAY OF THE WORLD.

Everyone has a call upon their lives. We either fulfill the call of Christ in our lives, or we do not make it to heaven, as it is written—the call is Jesus Christ. Without accepting His call, we will fall the way of this world, which is destined to burn. Surely, time will consume this planet, as all things have a beginning and an ending. God knows the time and how, along with why. Also, this world is a great creation, and I can't see God not preserving it, allowing for many more generations to continue. Quoting from the Bible, this tells me a new earth and heaven will be. What exactly this consists of is not exactly known, knowing that God is going to cleanse the Earth. We see how vast space is today, confirming that our Father has many mansions. Confirming in this message to the world that it is so, and you are fully warned: this is what is believed and will be, since God says it is so according to the Word known. Fulfilling the call by telling the world what God puts on my heart with much passion concerning this book and its content. The time is coming quickly, and I believe we are in the Revelation stage of life just as prophesied—would have to be!

The call, Jesus Christ, is to repent from our sinful ways and give God the respect that He is worthy to be given by doing His work, spreading the good news, and acting according to His laws. We are privileged to get another chance in life and another until we get it right, for I am a living testimony that no matter how many times you fall (miss the mark), Jesus is always there to pick you up. God keeps those who conform to His will in life with everlasting life for the overcomer who abides by the laws of God with victory in Jesus Christ. God seeks a people who are holy to commune with for the rest of eternity. This

is our testing ground, so where will you stand when judgment is passed? Tilt the scales on your behalf, for that is what Jesus came for, so you will have victory if applied.

18. TIME IS CLOSER TO WHEN JESUS CHRIST WILL RETURN. WATCH OUT, FOR HIS VENGEANCE IS ALSO WITH HIM.

Since the beginning, we've been told of a Messiah (Jesus) who will come, saving all people who call upon Him saved from the wrath that will be poured out against sin in this world, hell. Jesus came to do just that: save us from the wrath of sins this world will have to contend with. This means hell for those who do not believe and receive, rejecting His purpose. There will come a time that gets closer by the day, whenever that day is, known as the "Day of the Lord." He will come here with the clouds like a thief, unexpectedly. No man or angel knows the hour—not even the Son, so told. Much has come against God. This stubborn world has, is, and will be bringing much wrath upon itself that will be vindicated with authority God speaks of according to the end-time prophecy. Watch out! His vengeance is expressed in Revelation, and it's not a pretty sight for those who will taste it, believed to be in my lifetime.

We see the world getting more disorganized to the brink of all-out war. There are signs and wonders announcing that the time is getting closer. Prophecies are coming to pass at a greater pace because the time is near. We have rumors of war and false teachers representing Christ, swaying you from the truth with a religion that is not true Christianity. Much destruction comes in the form of earthquakes, famine, floods, droughts, and sickness. Israel has returned to its home ground, Jerusalem, "70 years ago," believing, starting Daniel's prophecy as the seventies (70's) countdown according to what is written. Wickedness is increasing. The enemy is on the loose, causing

havoc, persuading people to fall away from God and exalt themselves by doing evil. Governments of different countries are coinciding with each other, banding together as a force, bringing in the one world order.

Just like this war lingering. Technically, the USA is still at war since 9/11/2001, regardless of whether a president or society can admit it cowering down, enhancing the Muslim regime to do their will, not to mention the great power of China, a communist country, that is backing (becomes) our enemies. It's by no accident. The answer will be, "Oh, we didn't see that coming—sorry, America." Keep thinking about it, and it may come to you how a man in control of a superpower is enriching our enemies in the process by doing nothing while making deals with our sworn enemy, assisting them to do their will. The technology today seems right in line with Revelation, besides all the other obvious signs. One that sticks out most to me, as of now, is the fact that God has a prophet here, mentioning the last days, putting the pieces together with The Message, getting this world in order, and believing I am preparing the way for Jesus.

Certainly, knowing we are in the last days, close to the climax of the story coming quickly to an end. That is why I am laboring consistently and persistently at this job. My enemy does not sleep with its agenda. It's the effort to bring this message, The Message, going out, warning everyone what's coming quickly. I am a messenger—Last Day Messenger, as understood.

Be joyful, not sorrowful, for our Lord Jesus Christ is nearby. Get yourself right with God and be glad because you can't do anything about any of this anyway, so be joyful, not sorrowful. We are promised a better place, and God is true to His Word. Nothing is too hard for God. If you read through The Message as it's broken down, you will find I was a mess that's been straightened out and what a mess that

was! Now, having victory in the name of Jesus, being a witness that Jesus Christ is the answer in my life and surely in yours. It works for me and can for you. This is a great day for those who receive Jesus and all His goodness, believing in Him, witnessing the Revelation. We are in the days of awe.

19. PRAY, KEEP THE EYES AND WAYS UPON GOD, FOR GOD COMES TO SETTLE THE SCORE.

Pray, and pray much. Soon, God is going to make His presence known, leaving no denial about what is taking place, seeing the calling cards unfold in front of us. Satan knows too well, and that's why we are in a time seeing much destruction and disorganization coming, don't you? In my dreams, I see the roots of destruction coming from the south, north, west, east, and within. The world is becoming a powder keg, ready to go at the least spark. The setting for Apocalypse is in sight, and we're heading for trying times. God will show His wrath to those to whom He objects by their rejection of Him. This will continue until His vengeance is satisfied, for it is His. As the populations grow, food dwindles because of no rain with much heat, causing shortages. It's better to be prepared. We must pray much, keeping in favor with God as He starts the beginning to the end. It will be bittersweet. REPENT! We are in those days, finding it no surprise that God has His prophet here, testifying with much passion about what's coming, along with zeal, praising and glorifying Jesus with a book showing the only way known.

Be careful of false prophets; they come to you as sheep but are wolves in sheep's clothing. They will look holy, they will speak holy, they will act holy to gain your trust, to misguide you intentionally or unintentionally to worship the false Christ who comes first, right before the real Christ returns. The false prophet will have you believe this is the real Christ to worship him. It's very important to know who Jesus is as described in the King James Holy Bible. Many people want to deceive you, having you believe in their own theories, theories that

are not written to misguide you, to have you believe they have knowledge of an inside secret, trying to boast their intellectualness as though they have special knowledge. Or that you must go through them to reach any kind of relationship with God by paying money or supporting their cause. Be careful of those who say that they have all the answers and that they know all the answers. My experience is that these people don't have all the answers, coloring the Bible as they dream up. The only answer is Jesus Christ. Get to know Him through the King James Holy Bible. This message, The Message, merely introduces you to the Jesus I know and came to believe in who sets me free indeed referencing the Bible to all my knowledge with the help of the Holy Spirit, discerning truth, noticing how people differ. There's only one truth...

A very good example is Revelation 6;2. Out of a small (1) verse, many people have come to many extremes to explain this rather than say they don't know, or it's just a hunch. For Satan is certainly dividing the church with alternate messages, starting since the Word of God was pronounced and written, to disrupt the plan. With so much division in the Word proclaimed by different pastors, there is a separation of truth and a lie, for there is only ONE truth! They will have you believe what they say, no matter how wild the idea is, so examine it and see if it is in the Word of God, or does it even make sense? Who told them that? God left it mysterious for a reason and reveals it through the Spirit. (M.M.) I can give hunches and theories sought through the Holy Spirit and not a demonic spirit. I won't add to the Bible. It is left mysterious for a reason. The Holy Ghost will reveal it in due time, and it'll make sense, not vividly wild with imagination or assumptions making sense as it is written and on time for God's purpose.

Many can't explain handed-down information from one person to another. Be careful, men of God and men not of God, what you add (+) to the Bible shared to others, for the enemy would like more than ever for confusion, division, and distraction, so people will be entertained with delusion while he pulls off his attempt to take all he can. I see that happening a lot today filled with smoke screens and mirrors creating delusion. It certainly disturbs my soul to hear such things, for my beliefs and theories differ greatly from the mainstream notions due to the call on my life and certainly not following the crowd along with their itchy ears. God says don't let any man take your crown from you Revelation 3:11 (including yourself by not claiming or giving your crown away)—for we surely will be tried. We all experience a battle for our soul, and all that matters is where your soul goes when you retire.

20. THE LORD HAS BEEN WITH US THROUGHOUT LIFE

The Lord has been there every step of the way. We have had God throughout all of life and eternity before humanity existed. The things of God were written in stone, something our forefathers wanted understood since the beginning, so know our Lord experienced through the ages. God gave us the Bible, Jesus, and the Holy Spirit as reference that God is with us, loves us, and seeks nothing less than a sinless relationship with us. God is always there, and we are always here. It is how we position ourselves to His closeness and what it means to be closer or closest through Jesus Christ. How close becomes up to you. Not knowing much about other gods people create and what those gods give back (if anything but a sense of well-being). But once you see the light, there is no denying the Trinity, for surely, I am a believer.

Surely this world is full of splendor, teeming with life that God, and only God, could have created, all made uniquely for us so we can have a relationship with Him and live life in a habitat suited for man. Along the way, man fell, and the consequences that came after are the result of today full of sin, death, and separation. Jesus was purposed for that very fall that separated God and man, making the difference.

It is easy to have a relationship with Lord Jesus Christ by seeking Him out with the truth which sets us free indeed, leading to the Holy Spirit's counsel guiding us to who Jesus Christ is and what He means to a believer.

21. WE EXPERIENCE THE FALL OF MAN, KNOWING THE ENEMY AND THE DEVICES USED TO KEEP US IN SIN.

Many can relate to the fall of man. We all experience it. As Christianity is put to our lives, we start to understand how far we really fell by being honest with ourselves and open for repentance. I come here as testimony no matter how far you fall, reach out to Christ, for He is the redeemer. If you truly believe, with Christ all things are possible. The enemy knows our weakness, our flesh. People are a tool for Satan to corrupt so evil deeds can be done through us for him. We are trapped in the indulgence of the flesh, which keeps it corrupted. To sell yourself off as a slave to Satan, you exalt him through your actions, glorifying the things that are against God's perfect will in life. Satan takes advantage of us to defile ourselves, influencing others to do the same. There are many devices that keep us in sin. The lack of knowledge, the truth, may be the biggest tool in the enemy's arsenal. With lies, the enemy can insert all kinds of ideas and thoughts that pull us away from the grace of God.

Coming here with good news, my friend you are free indeed if you believe. There is a way out, and that is conforming to what is expected of us from God through Jesus Christ, and we have life abundantly. Life is all that you make of it to follow your dreams and inspirations. God is more interested in your character, well-being, success, and feelings than anything. He loves you, cares about what happens to you, and makes a way for all things to be possible for you (that is if you believe and receive the truth). God created man for relationships. What kind of relationship is really up to you, and only you. No one can do it for you. It is up to you if you want to be bound

to this world with the devices of sin when Jesus comes, or make it to a new earth and heaven God promises.

22. THE LORD HAS BEEN BY OUR SIDE WAITING FOR THE TIME TO FULFILL HIS CAUSE IN OUR LIVES.

The Lord has been there every step of the way, appealing to us so we will come to Him and serve Him. We can have an everlasting life with joy in our hearts while getting there. The more we keep Jesus in our lives, putting on the armor, the more the enemy can't touch us. Do not expect the battle to be over until we die. We are of flesh, so we will always have temptation but can deal with it better when handing it over to Jesus. Jesus is our comforter if allowed to be expressed in our lives. Jesus is our advocate if we allow Him to be so. Jesus has a cause in every one of our lives. We have to seek Him to figure out exactly what that cause is. Jesus has been there by our side, seeking for us to have a good relationship with God. It's what He went to the Cross for, so it would be determined where we will end up after judgment. We all have a call, and that is to accept Jesus and be a walking testimony of what Christ will do in life as we spread the good news by using our lives as examples.

I can testify that the Lord has been there every step of the way in my life, allowing me to fall as far as wanted, as He will do with you, because of the free will God gives us and is committed to His principles. God will only intervene when we call upon Him if He answers your prayer or not, or not on our timing but His, if He does anything. God knew the problem man created and how to fix it, giving the ultimate sacrifice—Jesus! That is what God accepts—Jesus, our promise that God did everything needed and covered everything in one shot on the cross, Jesus... and therefore nothing more needs to be done except for you to receive it by how you approach your belief in Jesus.

If it wasn't for Jesus, I certainly would not be here let alone here writing a book appealing to you with what I was inspired to write about! God had a plan while in the womb for me, as He does for you. God is no respecter of persons, none, meaning we all share in the same reward. It is what you make of it... and it is just that easy if kept simple.

23. LEARNING OF THE SCRIPTURE, KJV HOLY BIBLE, IS IN ORDER TO BETTER KNOW THE LORD.

By reading the King James Version Holy Bible, we can learn everything that needs to be known and expected of us while teaching who God, Jesus, and the Holy Spirit are about. We start to experience it becoming our testimony as it develops in our lives. The Holy Bible, King James Version, is considered the whole truth that is to be embraced. Anything besides what is written or preached that's not in the King James is considered a snare to keep us from coming into the fullness of God, keeping us from the mark. Notice how the Holy Bible is the foundation of some religions that claim to be the way but twist it, having people believe something other than the truth. This keeps us from our full destiny. God spoke, saying, "Anyone who adds (+) or takes away (-) from the original book is condemned." It is clear to whom those religions, preachers are, and I can assure you, believing in a religion that is false will not get you into the Kingdom.

Serving God is a way of life spiritually, not religiously, as some believe. We must know the truth to be in His presence. It is about Jesus, period. And any influence to take away from that is considered false. Satan is here to deceive. If the Bible leads us to a healthy relationship with God through His Son, Jesus Christ, then Satan tries to use the Holy Bible, twisting it so that you will be led away from the light and truth in life about Jesus with notions that don't belong. My friends, we should get back to the basics. Know that anything contrary to the King James has been added or taken out would be considered false. I do not necessarily know everything about any religion that conflicts with the King James Version. Studying the truth, and

anything that is not in line with the truth, then will be considered false. Certainly, I do not spend my time learning false religions to sway you regarding the differences. My job is informing you to be aware of issues today with the truth known to me that will keep us apart from God and what unites us. Having compassion for you to put myself out there with the truth, no matter what comes of it, for I am blessed and will defend my faith. I am passionate about serving my Lord. Nothing else is needed — just the Holy Bible, King James Version, as our reference.

Revelation 22:18–19

18 For I testify unto every man that heareth the words of the prophecy of this book, if any man shall add unto these things, God shall add unto him the plagues that are written in this book.

19 And if any man shall take away from the words of the book of this prophecy, God shall take away his part out of the book of life, and out of the holy city, and from the things which are written in this book."

24. BECOME SATURATED WITH HIS SPIRIT THROUGH THE WORD AND BLOOD TO ACCOMPLISH WHAT IS AT HAND, JOINING FELLOW CHRISTIANS WITH THE SAME GOAL — TO GLORIFY GOD.

We are to fellowship with one another, to keep ourselves accountable to a higher purpose, coming together and glorifying God by exalting and magnifying Him together. We give God much honor to be in His house with His Holy Spirit flowing through His children, being together as one, shouting to the world that we are saved. We sharpen each other for the good fight, keeping keen to the enemy's ways.

It's about Jesus, period, and what He represents to God when we apply His blood to our iniquities. Looking into Genesis, I realized that the first sacrifice was when God clothed Adam and Eve with the skins of animals. Something was killed to benefit us so we would not feel naked after eating the fruit of the knowledge of good and evil. It became apparent that the sacrifice of unblemished, innocent animals was the offering to God, showing that we accept His covenant and that it was to be done for the forgiveness of sins. As populations grew, so did sin. The altar became a bloody mess and could not keep up with all the sins. It's clear something else was needed, as God had Jesus in mind from the beginning, waiting for the right moment in time for His Son to come into the world. (And surely, He is coming again.)

In the time of Abraham, God commanded him to take his son atop a hill to sacrifice him. Abraham followed through till the very moment God made another way. Because of Abraham's faith, he was favored,

putting God before all flesh, knowing God was going to make a way. We see how personal sacrifice to the Lord is there is a price to pay for our sins, whether it is one of your best stock or your beloved son. A time was prophesied that God would raise up a Savior, and we find His Son, Jesus Christ, is the ultimate sacrifice accepted by God. As of today, that still stands as it has for 2,000 years, testifying to all that it works and that God truly forgives because of the blood that was shed for us. I truly believe that, enriched with the great Holy Spirit, along with all other gifts like salvation.

We are also here to praise God, glorifying Jesus, accepting the ultimate sacrifice. It is what we are created for being God's hands and mouth to sing praises to Him while doing His work. Unfortunately, man fell and has been separated from God because of the deception Satan brought that day with sin. God is just and does not sway, conforming to our iniquities. We continue being separated until we come before Him. God loves us immensely but lets us know the penalty for going against His will by disobeying His commands is death and separation. God seeks to be with us but can't stand the sight of the sinful nature we carry. God is holy and just in His ways. If anything, we need to change our ways and strive to be good in His sight.

Your beliefs are powerful. Do not be misled by putting your beliefs or faith in something that is false. Sure, it may work for you with a "false" sense of security, but that's what it is — false. We can put our higher power into anything, like a doorknob, and have faith that it will do something for us. Beliefs are powerful, and for a time we may truly believe that doorknob is the way. Ultimately, they will realize that the doorknob will only be a doorknob. Even though it is a dead concept, they hang on for the rest of their lives, believing the doorknob is the way. What does the doorknob give back besides

opening a door? Perhaps the mechanism of the door will make you feel safe when locked, so hold on to the idea that it is your higher power. We can put our faith into almost anything, finding some benefit, keeping us feeling enlightened. But that doorknob can't provide everlasting life with Father God, being touched by the Holy Spirit.

25. WE MAY HAVE SINNED MUCH THROUGHOUT LIFE.

God will work with us through our iniquities but not in our iniquities!

Giving testimony of the conquering Blood of Jesus that sets me free, hopefully setting somebody else free. It truly was Jesus healing me, and for He gets all the glory. Thank you, Lord, for deliverance. I changed, believing I can help somebody else change. We have a sinful nature that comes hand in hand with our lives. The origin of sin with Adam and Eve was the Tree of Knowledge of Good and Evil, which God commanded not to eat thereof, causing death and separation from God, where they felt ashamed and were hiding from Him because of being aware of their nakedness. At that very moment, they were separated from God, His grace, and their relationship... one sin leads to another and another and another. God had to separate them from the Garden where the Tree of Life also was, so they were not in forever sin. It was the benefit for Adam and Eve not to destroy themselves anymore and to make a change for repentance. The first sin was going against God's will and commandments (disobeying), and the results had devastating consequences where we spiritually and physically die. They were excommunicated from the Garden so they would not eat of the Tree of Life and be in a state of forever sin. They (we) have to die for this action according to the Word.

This particular tree may (?) have had psychoactive properties, opening their eyes, causing them to be aware of sin and hide from God. Drugs like cocaine, derived from the coca shrub a very innocent-looking vegetation until you eat it (not saying that is the Tree of Knowledge of Good and Evil, but maybe something close to it) influence people to be disobedient, where they would lie, steal, kill,

cheat, be adulterous, hide from God, feel ashamed, separate from God, not seek out God, be afraid of God for what was done, feel condemned, run from God, hide, and blame others for their problems as Adam blamed the woman. Not being accountable, corrupting the soul, causing them to do things they wouldn't normally do, altering their relationship with God. There is nothing good associated with coca, and evil abounds abundantly, especially when consumed.

By worshiping the flesh, which becomes the god in place of the real God's Spirit, one can see how that would unleash someone to break all the commandments eventually, physically and mentally changing people's DNA, genes, and brains, and not having a good relationship with God where sin becomes a norm once we are separated from God and affects every aspect of life. This change in our human makeup can be passed down to our children, corrupting their DNA and genes, causing them to be carriers of evil by no fault of their own. Once we open our minds to these things, we are forever exposed. It is better not to go there in the first place, opening our minds to sin. For any responsible father (Father) would be wise to tell their children not to do certain drugs like coca(aine), because it will do nothing but cause destruction and death in your life. It is a good example and could be the very origin of sin or something close to it and seems to fit. We all have it naturally within. Certain outside influences, like coca, can release these normal sensations like adrenaline and dopamine, making us feel good when we worship the flesh, which is temporal. God can release these same sensations supernaturally, known as the euphoria of the Holy Spirit, which is done through worshiping God, which is eternal and free!

And on the contrary to popular opinion about the Tree of Life and those things that are good for you, not bad, influencing you to sin, where God gave us to heal ourselves with. Cannabis, in my opinion,

is certainly objectionable (not saying cannabis is anything remotely related to the Tree of Life), knowing personally some of the benefits and therefore not condemning anyone who is trying to better their life. I believe people need to be free of this controversy. It's not for everybody and certainly can be abused, as anything else in life. There are many different chemicals (400+) in cannabis that could be isolated and used for certain purposes that should be studied. There is much value in a simple plant that grows easily. If you don't need any healing, amen, but don't condemn anyone who may have, for instance, MS, cancer, pain, or any other serious illnesses like convulsions, especially the children. Don't let people suffer in the name of ignorance and corruption of the truth. "FIRST OF ALL, NOT ALL CANNABIS GETS YOU HIGH!" Cannabis gets my stamp of approval, not finding much harm in it. My experience is cannabis is also good for dealing with addictions, regardless of what any person may say to the contrary. Cannabis is a lot easier to get off of once putting time and distance between the addiction you were dealing with. It's really all in how you use it, why you use it, and how much you use. Today, cannabis is very potent, and people do not need much at all, and I see how people could abuse it. Doing anything in excess is harmful for you, like eating food, drinking too much water, or drinking coffee... People that need opiates and cannabis to exist don't condemn these people, alienating them from God, making people feel isolated and alone because of someone's belief, especially at their end of life or dealing with chronic issues in which it may help quality of life. I heard a lot of badmouthing about these things, which do affect society. It depends on where you get your truth from and also how you deal with the truth.

I don't care what person out there tells me Jesus did not turn the ordinary water, by request of His mother for the celebration, into the best alcoholic wine drink man could ever come up with. Anything coming from Jesus would have to be the best! Everyone was

impressed, including the man holding the celebration. I don't care about the opinions people add from the pulpit for whatever reasons, who distort the truth, usually having ulterior motives. Alcohol is bad when consumed in excess and causes many social problems. When done in moderation and on occasion, I don't believe God has any problem with it as long as you don't start sinning and breaking God's commandments during the process. Sometimes people get deeper in prayer. The Bible says Jesus prayed fervently during the Last Supper, and wine was present. Jesus was known to drink wine as expressed in the Holy Bible. Throughout the Bible, wine is expressed often and was a big part of society. I by no means am encouraging alcohol or cannabis; it's better to be without, completely sober-minded. To some people, it is a detriment to consume any alcohol because they can't stop, and it usually always results in severe intoxication that ruins their life and everyone else's around them, making poor choices. A lot of recovering alcoholics that I know of have found relief in cannabis, just saying.

Nowadays, in a lot of states cannabis is available legally, safely monitored for quality, benefiting the state with money through taxes, which my state is one of them, and therefore not breaking the law. Cannabis, for some, helps with chronic pain management as a safer alternative, and when used in combination with pain medication, you find you don't need as much by intensifying it safely thus using less. I'm speaking personally from experience, not any other reason, like a lot of other people who have no idea what they're talking about except to demonize it and usually have ulterior motives, like the alcohol companies, pharmaceutical companies, drug rehabilitation centers, the law because it cuts into their profits and the pulpit. Also, it's very easy to grow and a lot easier to stop than the original need such as addiction.

It is better to be of sober mind. It's not my prerogative to be advocating for these things, but my experiences and what I know have concluded it's safe and not a sin, especially when using it for medical purposes or really any other purpose. I believe people need to be free of this controversy because there is a lot of people out there giving their opinions and demonizing people, especially from the pulpit, because of their own feelings or education. Sometimes forgetting stuff like trauma and being happy can be a good tool in helping people with Post-Traumatic Stress Syndrome, for instance, also depression. Laughter and joy are not bad things and are good for the soul. It certainly influences healthy appetites for those people who are perhaps at the end of their life, weak and malnourished. If things help and don't hurt them physically or spiritually, there's no reason for people not to be allowed to make up their own mind if they are struggling. Some things, like mental illness, can be made worse, so it's not for everybody. You may have adverse effects that don't agree with you, and if you feel like it's a sin, then a person should not be doing it. Like anything, it affects people differently especially with all the different strains having a unique quality of its own. Ideally, it is something God created and obviously has a lot of potential, as we are finding out and a lot safer especially when eating it.

And to throw one more out there, tobacco has no other benefit besides to steal, kill, and destroy. Nothing good about tobacco, and it has no medicinal value. It is very addictive, maybe one of the hardest things to quit because it's socially and readily available, giving its place to be acceptable, becoming one of the most tragic and devastating consequences of addiction. It's better not to go there in the first place. I can tell you, smoking cigarettes, the Spirit will not flourish, and if anything, will keep you from being touched and/or dampened down. You can be doing everything right to be receiving God's Spirit, but that one thing can and will keep you from

experiencing the Spirit, has become my experience. This I know, unfortunately, through experience.

I don't care about the lies and manipulation people try to influence others with their personal thoughts or beliefs. I'm open to everyone's opinion along with biblical input, as long as it's the truth and not being manipulated for ulterior motives. I just care about the truth, whatever the truth is! Anytime anyone starts distorting the truth for whatever reasons, it causes problems and division, along with confusion right in Satan's element. I believe people need to be free over this subject because there is a lot of controversy, and I'm willing to contribute my insight regardless of the backlash.

As of today, I don't need it as much, and I'm thankful when I did, I changed for the better and put distance between old behavior that kept me separated from God. I have come a long way! Thankful. God is always giving vision that He is going to do a work through me. I'm not going to lie about my past and will be as open and authentic as I can be, using my experience along with knowledge about life as I come to know it.

The only real passage for redemption is through honesty about our past and mistakes while making a change by giving to Jesus. That's why 12 step programs work so well because you're admitting your error with a group of people that care and want to help with their own experiences. We can't change what we don't deal with truthfully. You can't change what you don't confront. It's better to be upfront and honest and tell it like it is, hopefully helping somebody else through your testimony. Without being real and honest with your problems accompanied by sin, whatever sin it is, you cannot move forward.

Never letting go, I held onto the vision and all those dreams. Finally realizing that this world is a battlefield for your soul and the devil doesn't play. Now that the destruction was seen, I would write

about it, helping people get out of the grip. It is something known all too well, and I am passionate to let others know of the joy of being free. Much happiness was found when I came to God, doing His will in my life. "I am" fulfilled and content serving God becoming that person God intended—Priceless!

It was not worth it. It still affects me today and will throughout my life. Some things can be fixed, and some we have to live with because of the choices made. Regardless, we have a comforter that can get us through anything this life can throw at us. This, in part, is "The Message"! Once we recognize the destruction, we can start picking up the pieces and build again. It takes time, but with Jesus drawing us closer to Him away from our iniquity we can get there quicker. Jesus will not lead you wrong. He will lead you to the Father with the great reward of the Holy Spirit, but most of all—Salvation.

I have found nothing to compare with the Holy Spirit. The Holy Spirit is love, joy, excitement that touches your body and soul with feelings of well-being, electrifying through your body, making your hair stand up while shedding tears of joy. Oh, what great joy! We have to seek and accept it, letting it in by surrendering ourselves.

10 Commandments as it was written to Moses (B.C.)

- 1. You shall have no other gods before Me.
- 2. You shall not make for yourself a carved image or any likeness of anything that is in heaven above or that is in the earth beneath or that is in the water under the earth. You shall not bow down to them or serve them, for I, the Lord your God, am a jealous God, visiting the iniquity of the fathers on the children to the third and the fourth generation of those who hate Me, but showing steadfast love to thousands of those who love Me and keep My commandments.

- 3. You shall not take the name of the Lord your God in vain.
- 4. Remember the Sabbath day, to keep it holy. Six days you shall labor and do all your work, but the seventh day is a Sabbath to the Lord your God. On it you shall not do any work— you, or your son, or your daughter, your male servant, or your female servant, or your livestock, or the sojourner who is within your gates. For in six days the Lord made heaven and earth, the sea, and all that is in them, and rested on the seventh day. Therefore, the Lord blessed the Sabbath day and made it holy.
- 5. Honor your father and your mother.
- 6. You shall not murder.
- 7. You shall not commit adultery.
- 8. You shall not steal.
- 9. You shall not bear false witness against your neighbor.
- 10. You shall not covet your neighbor's house. You shall not covet your neighbor's wife, or his male servant, or his female servant, or his ox, or his donkey, or anything that is your neighbor's.

God must wash out of society with choices through the purity of Jesus Christ. God had to separate us from the Garden, from the Tree of Knowledge of Good and Evil and the Tree of Life, giving us an opportunity to be redeemed. This very fall has changed us and our relationship with God to this day, opening our minds to the things of going against God and His commandments.

Therefore, we are born into a world of sin, having a sinful nature carried ever since causing death, sickness, and separation, becoming depressing. God knew the problem man created in the Garden for

ourselves. We have to deny ourselves this sin and make a choice not to continue doing that again to be responsible for our temple. God draws us to Him through sacrifice, giving humanity a chance to be redeemed.

Adam and Eve learned things the hard way, much like everyone else. Falling more than a few times, I learned to pick myself up quicker by inserting Jesus into the equation of my troubles. It is better not to go there in the first place, for life does not need to be any harder. Sure enough, the Lord came through as always, but I needed to walk straight to continue getting out of the mess I was putting myself in. Regardless, we have a comforter that can get us through anything this life can throw at us. This, in part, is The Message.

Once we recognize the destruction, we can start picking up the pieces and build again. It takes time, but with Jesus drawing us closer to Him away from our iniquity we can get there quicker. Jesus will not lead you wrong. He will lead you to the Father with the great reward of the Holy Spirit, but most of all—Salvation.

I have found nothing to compare with the Holy Spirit, who is love, joy, and excitement that touches your body and soul with feelings of well-being, electrifying through your body, making your hair stand up while shedding tears of joy. Oh, what great joy! We must seek and accept it, letting it in by surrendering ourselves to God.

26. THE MORE THE TRANSGRESSION, THE MORE JESUS CHRIST, WHEN ACCEPTED, IS GLORIFIED.

The more we sin, the more Jesus Christ can work in life, healing us of our transgressions. The more transgression, the more healing, paid in full with one shot on the Cross by His blood that was shed. It reminds me not to keep sinning. Out of respect, I try to keep from sinning. But it is not by works that we are forgiven; it is by our belief and faith in what Christ means for all of us.

The more sins we have, the more difference Jesus can make for us. Such a price paid in my (your) life brings respect, realizing that Jesus loves us very much, seeking us to come clean and be with the Father. Jesus allowed Himself to be put on a cross for atonement for every one of the sins that's brought before Him. We have to recognize the sin to bring it before Him, and that may not always be easy.

Jesus is worthy to be believed, praised, exalted, glorified, and then we can receive. It comes in that order. Until we believe and glorify His name in our lives, we will not receive forgiveness or the Holy Spirit. Realize that without Jesus I would be dead or amount to nothing. Though a call was on my life, it cannot be done without Jesus.

Jesus is entitled to the glory, all the glory, for it is His. Jesus endured much to be our Redeemer. Glory be to His name, for He is worthy. Thank you, Lord, for fulfilling your call, showing your glory in my life by magnifying His name to the world. That's what His holiness is about in my life—all glory. Glory to His name, for I am the victor in His name we all are, by a choice we make. May my life do good all for His glory concerning the second coming, for I am a

believer and following through as such, glorifying His name. This makes me complete, becoming the prophet God called me to be, believing I am preparing a way for Jesus in a book. With Jesus, I ride high!

27. REPENT!

Definition; to make a change for the better in remorse of one's sins. A change of mind.

We must recognize our behavior that results in sin. Sins start in the mind, which is attached to the body. We surrender to those things that drive us to sin through our actions. We must have real remorse for our actions against God and must want to stop, conforming to God's way, making it a conceivable choice. We must change our minds about how we will conduct ourselves concerning the sin in our lives. Until I repented of my sins, I could not move forward. We need to have a conscionable, conceivable desire to not go there or fall back into the grip Jesus gets us out of. Repentance is a lifelong process. I have to repent from my old behaviors every day. It stares me in the face every day, but once repentant, adding Jesus to the equation is when real healing can be obtained with strength to say no. Eventually, repenting (saying no) becomes a way of life without second thought.

The more we separate our bad behavior, the easier it gets every day. When we are being healed from our sins, we feel the difference, feeling healthier, closer to God, knowing we have done the right thing. This keeps us moving forward, away from that which is repented of. The further we get, the easier it becomes to continue repenting. Some of us may have a lot of things to repent of. Jesus can handle it all if you allow Him, but you must give it to Him. It is better to be aware, so do not put any more things in life to repent from. When we become aware of how actions hold us accountable to the law and how we come to the fullness God intended in life, it becomes easier to identify the right thing to do. Not that there won't be storms and challenges in life. We start to weather the storms in life better by putting Jesus in the

equation of our troubles. We can come out better than if we try to handle them ourselves; we have someone to reach out to. Serving God is a conscionable decision we make every day if we're going to allow Him to be sovereign in our life. We must change that behavior which keeps us separated.

28. LEARN TO PICK YOURSELF UP QUICKLY AFTER FALLING AND WALK STRAIGHT.

Sometimes picking yourself up is easier said than done. It is a process that is learned and acquired through diligence at least it was for me. We all fall, some more than others. Having experienced my share, I learned not to stay down. Jesus gives me the strength, will, and opportunity not to stay down. If I ask Him for a hand up, He is there. Sometimes I was not lifted up as quickly as I wanted, left to stay down on the ground for a spell to realize what it is to be down and how much I did not want to be there. Use everything in your life as a trial and a rock to stand on with knowledge of what to do and what not to do; sometimes it is the hard way more than the easy way. Too many easy ways result in no lesson learned and a pass. How much does it take for us to learn not to do it again? If God does not give you a hand up immediately, realize why you are down and what made you fall. Keep seeking Him to pick you up as quickly as possible. Usually, depending on the circumstance, we can get up quickly, brush ourselves off, and reflect upon what made us fall, learning how to avoid it in the future.

To learn how to get up, you have had to fall. Falling many times, I learned to pick myself up quickly through the power of Jesus. That is not where God or I wanted me to be. It took a long time to believe my position as a prophet of God and did not receive it, still struggling with it. Not until I fully believed did, I fully receive the full revelation. But I wondered, "Lord, how me?" When I started believing is when I conformed to God's plan in my life, being obedient. That is how He will work in your life. God loves us all the same. What a love it is. My

life is an example—a living testimony of what Jesus can do, no matter how many times you fall, for I am a witness.

Unfortunately, some falls can be permanent or disabling, needing to be careful where we walk or stumble. We are fortunate that we have Jesus, who heals us that is, if believed. With Jesus, we can usually get right up because our Lord does not want to see us down. If we allow Him to pick us up, it becomes a conscionable, conceivable choice of ours allowing Him. It is your choice if He picks you up. Jesus is faithful, never failing, always there to pick us up. If we do not allow Him, then down we will stay. Once we are picked up, we need to walk straight and not venture into those areas that cause us to stumble and fall. The more you fall, the more damage can be done. We all fall and have the ability to prevent it with Jesus in our lives. It becomes easier to identify those things that make us fall and help keep us up where God seeks us to be.

Don't be deceived into thinking that you cannot lose your salvation. I know it's a popular concept, and I can almost follow it, but I also understand that those in the end days that take the Mark of the Beast can and will lose their salvation. It's a choice, and the enemy knows it and will be aggressive to make you take this mark so you will serve him. I don't exactly know what the mark is. I can listen to many different scholars, and I'm not sure they even know for sure. I know it's coming because the Bible tells me so, though. These are the days to be paying attention because God is fulfilling His Word!

29. SHARING OUR EXPERIENCES, HOPES AND INSIGHTS TO THE WORLD AS TESTIMONY OF WHAT GOD WILL DO WITH JESUS IN OUR LIVES.

What is left for me after all these tribulations, trials, and the forgiveness of my sins, opening a door to a wholesome, content, loving relationship that's found in our Lord Jesus Christ? I am to share my experiences with you to let you know you are not alone, using my life as a testimony which is working out conclusively. We all have issues that need to be dealt with. As true people of God, we should share insight and testimony regarding how good we really do have it.

It is our responsibility to fund the Church with tithes, 10% of our income, increases, and other key times to come to the Church with offerings above the tithes. God does love a joyful giver, and in turn, we receive more joy. You can give as much as you like to the Church. If you believe it's a sacrifice, then a sacrifice it is. The sacrifice of something you value, not always money, is a way to show appreciation of the ultimate sacrifice Jesus made for us. Tithing and giving is a principle of how God works. It is what's required to keep us in the fullest of His fullness and the Church plush for God's reason. When we give, it releases our conscience of what is rightfully God's, therefore releasing our abundance. It was a law that has been given before Christ and should be expected to be followed today. That's how our churches, TV stations, and media operate to reach us (YOU).

Our conscience is what sets us free when we do the right thing, rejoicing, knowing we are in line with God's will and instructions.

This is a great feeling. When you give, realize it is for a bigger purpose helping others get to Christ through the Church, giving a place to worship. You start to be truly fulfilled, recognizing the ways of God and how to achieve it. God laid it all out in the Bible; some preachers and those with other titles try to exploit, enriching their motives, not necessarily the Kingdom of God, or being about their own ideas and direction, not so much God's.

Coming as an example of what Jesus did, giving testimony of what has already been done in my life. It is Jesus Christ, tried and true in my life. My whole life was a constant battle up and down, not really putting Jesus to the full equation. What's meant is I wasn't wholeheartedly accepting Jesus in life as everything that can do everything. Some issues I did not fully give to the Lord, wondering why that little thing held on too, grew right back into a full-blown sinner again, right back where I started from. Be confident Jesus is our everything, so give Him everything, and everything will be wiped clean. It takes work because our flesh is in constant battle with the carnalized thinking. The battle becomes much easier with Jesus as our advocate.

Cannot express enough how much of a freedom it is when finally surrendered it all to Him. It started as a seed of hope that grew every day as it was allowed to grow. As it grew bigger in life, so did the anointing and more of it, coming to the point in which I was in full agreement with Jesus and my destiny, sharing the good news. Life has not been the same since—thank you, Jesus. The call is to share the good news, letting all know what Jesus did for us. My tab for sin was quite large and did not think it possible it could be repaid in full, but it was paid—thank you, Jesus. Life is restored to its original purpose. What kind of life do you want with Jesus in your life?

Then it dawned on me all iniquity disappeared, receiving the redemption for which Jesus was crucified. My life is basking in God's anointing of the Holy Spirit. It is something that is given freely and does not have to ask for it just praise Him, and it is received by staying within the boundaries of not falling into sin, continuing to be pleasing to God. Surely tried the boundaries, seeing it is a well-defined line that must be recognized. We should strive to be the best we can because God will show us what best He has for us. With God on your side, who or what can come before and against you? Nothing is too big or small. We will still have trials and tribulations with a constant attack from the enemy. But it will become much easier to handle when Jesus is added to the equation. God loves to show you His mercy and the delight He has in you with Jesus as your redeemer. It is up to you what you do with it.

30. BELIEVE AND RECEIVE THE PROMISES OF GOD IN JESUS CHRIST.

We serve a mighty God that is Creator of everything before us, as far as the universe reaches. That is big. Satan is limited to this world and where he will stay until God puts him in his ultimate place, is my understanding. So much about God is a mystery, and don't assume anything not knowing about, going by what the Good Book says. When Father God says He has many mansions in heaven, be sure and believe it. The key to believing is receiving, is believing in Jesus that He, and only He, can save us from our iniquities before God, keeping us in the Book of Life. It's Jesus and only Jesus, as expressed in the King James Version Holy Bible, that can provide the Holy Spirit to the children of God today. Through Him, only Him, do we live abundantly for God's purpose with much love.

It came to me in 2006 the three words "believing is receiving," put together in sequence, changed my life. Had the principle down but limited myself so much in regard to what is believed. It took time for this to grow in my life, taking baby steps, believing little by little, not getting anywhere fast. Then it dawned on me that my belief was the key to success in my relationship with God, and I started to take on more belief, noticing that more was received from God. God used that as a way to draw me closer to Him, as He does with everyone.

I did not fully understand the concept until the Holy Spirit drew me the way I am supposed to go, receiving the fullness of God, following the anointing, sensing it was big, knowing we serve a big God. This had a great impact on my life, and hopefully many more by sharing testimony. That's when I started getting in the Word more, learning about God's promises. If I believed the promises, then I could

receive them. Pushing forward, I started being excessive with the concept, and then, only then, acceptance was brought up in this world as a witness to what Trinity means in your life and mine. When believed to be His prophet of God, it was then, only then, started acting like a prophet of God, doing what a prophet of God does. My life has changed considerably—thanks to Jesus.

It was a long growing process with pains of iniquity, straddling the fence most of my life, fortunately not getting caught up on the other side, though I had a lot of downfalls. The enemy knew what would become of me if I would just stay the course and not give up. The enemy fights tooth and nail and he still tries, but I am bulletproof to the enemy's ammunition when keeping Jesus first in my life. Much spiritual warfare molded my destiny, proving myself a victor in Christ. The devil tried hard, still does, but here I am, not too shaken, firm in my stance. Believing God had a fence around me, protecting me from the evils. He will do this in your life also, but allowed to experience it. If not for knowing Christ from an early age, I probably would not have made it this far in age.

The option is always there to throw in the towel, but that little bit of hope from Jesus kept me going. I keep pressing on, making ground that can't be taken. Knew the truth in Jesus because the Word was in our family, taught at an early age. My teens are when everything really went downhill quickly after being introduced to hard drugs. Would have never made it without Jesus in my life, though sinned much. Thankfully, did not falter permanently, giving up this destiny. Putting Jesus in the equation enables me to fight off anything the enemy throws at me.

If there was another way, God would have told us. If I found or knew of another way, I would tell you. After searching the depths of this world, I can testify there is no other way to the Father than that

found in Jesus Christ. Nor was this learned from a book but was put to practice, learning for myself personally. Everything that has been given to me was asked for, asking God, "Am I still your prophet?" Having many opportunities to walk away but could not because of the truth, knowing how important it is that the world heard it. Hanging on, letting Jesus have His way in my life. Very thankful for the choices made and will tell you it is full of richness, with the Lord being spiritually loaded.

I would not give it up for anything, not for riches, anything for I am blessed in Jesus' name, AND SO ARE YOU! We all can be victors with the same reward. It is funny, but my brothers and sisters can have as much freely as they want. It is all about love, of which the enemy has none, except for the evil that is committed. God is no respecter of persons, none. It's how we position ourselves to receive fullness. God's reward is all the same, though I know of a double portion perhaps Elijah's portion obtained through relationship and service.

31. WE ARE FREE FROM BONDAGE OF SIN TO DO HIS WILL.

Sin is a binding contract. We all sin, falling short of the glory of God. But God loves! He created you, seeking a holy relationship with you. God recognizes our faults and downfalls (sin), knowing our weaknesses. God has great plans for us. In the Garden of Eden, Satan stepped in and caused man to fall. Satan is always trying to get us to exploit that which is holy, us, and everything else God created. We are holy temples of God, standing above the angels as heirs to the Kingdom when applying the Blood, and the enemy wants to destroy, trash, abuse, and have his way with us. We allow him through our actions, our hands, our minds, our thoughts, and our ways. It is a battle. Satan wants you to glorify sin through our temples body, mind, and soul. Our flesh weighs on us, causing us to do all kinds of actions against God, resulting in sin. But the shackles are off, and we are free from the bondage of sin to do His will. His will is that we be free from sin, becoming that person God intended us to be.

We find the restraint of sin is work and surely a difference as sin is recognized. Some people do not want to recognize being in any way accountable for their actions, making excuses like saying there is not a God. Or they believe in something other than what the King James Version taught as a Christian principle. It would be nice to write our own rules, conforming to our needs. But it is not our rules but God's rules. The atheist remains blind, straight down the path to hell. Their eyes will open one day, and in the name of Jesus, every knee will bow. Coming here as a messenger with warning, announcing what must come, knowing the time is surely near. All one has to do really is watch the news and know. Truly I am free from my bondage to do His will

according to the destiny written in Williams Testimony of Jesus Christ— Last Days Message. The writings before you are a good example that we can be conquerors, free to do God's will in life, and that is serving Him.

32. GOD'S INTENT FOR US IS IMMEASURABLE. GOD LOVES US AND HAS MADE A WAY.

The Lord seeks to have a relationship with us. God is holy and designed us to also be holy. We muck life up with sin like a dirty menstrual rag, making us disgusting before God. God seeks a relationship with us, providing His Son as the ultimate sacrifice for our sins in order to have our fellowship, but He can't stand the sight of all the sin we carry. There had to be a way to come clean before God, as a way is made. Thank you, Jesus. By practicing what the Good Book says, putting Christ into the equation, we have the opportunity to become whole before God, as it is written.

It takes work keeping our temple clean. It's a struggle for me because of the heavy load acquired in life. The load lightened up one repented sin at a time. We start coming into fullness by taking out the bad and putting in the good. In the process, feelings of happiness, contentment, and joy make the walk become easier. Eventually, we can have all God intended for us. We were not put here to be miserable, angry, alone, or without life because of the circumstances of our fall. We all fall, some more than others. God desires for you to know that your sins will be forgiven if you call upon His Son, Jesus Christ leaving it your choice.

Once the door is opened for the enemy to leave, we give God room to come in. God can counsel us while blessing us. Once we start coming into the fullness of Christ, we can experience the euphoria of the Holy Ghost that has been promised through worship. Getting to that fullness, we have to recognize what keeps us in God's presence and also what keeps us out. Once we become fluent with the Holy

Ghost, God can draw us wherever He seeks for us in life if we are open to His will. Ultimately, He brings us closer to God. We all have a part, and that is to worship God through His Son, Jesus Christ.

In the time of my great grief and sin, I made it because I called upon Jesus regularly. It was/is a struggle with a lot of hardship coming my way, bringing all on myself with Satan's help, who is more than willing to pull on us, keeping those who aren't saved in his grasp, keeping us away from God. Satan is completely separated and wants us to also spend life here on earth and eternity in hell with him, completely separated. Not only did God make a way for us to get out of our past miseries, but He provided a way we could live life abundantly with joy and happiness. Life is to be good, not always perfect—having life immeasurable, thinking what a huge price was paid.

I get sorrowful sometimes, thinking why Christ was nailed on the Cross in my life. After realizing this, I want to not plead the Blood with a new sin. Feeling free of my guilt, shame, and iniquities because that's what Jesus went to the Cross for, but I am in debt to the Lord personally speaking and paying back through service. Jesus holds the deed to my soul, paid in full, asking nothing in return except for me to believe and receive His love. Ask any Christian if they have a joy deep in their hearts. If they do not, something is wrong. Life will always throw stuff at us, but we are protected when the armor is applied. We have to put the armor on every day, says the Bible, but I'm not ever like taking mine off, it seems. Life, for certain, is not always easy, becoming a struggle.

Very aware of the devil close on my heels and why run like hell getting away. The devil is there every step of the way, thanking Jesus for escape, running to God, getting this out now. My time has started; there is no return. That is what happens when you play with fire—the

Holy Fire—putting heat on your seat to move, move, move like a drill sergeant bark's. There is a job to do, taking nothing for granted, blessed for another day, and will be posting my thoughts because this material is not mine. It's God's and will not covet His work, taken to my grave without sharing.

My faith has me acting like this, knowing God can do all things, getting me this far, and can't see Him stopping now. Also know my enemy is waiting for me to fall down hard again and can't promise I won't because of my sinful nature. It would be naïve to think any different, knowing how many times I've fallen already, but anchored in Jesus, firm with His stability, weathering the storms in life much better. Every new word I pray belongs to Him and is not mine, for His purpose, not necessarily mine. My iniquity gets washed away in the process, refining His goodness in my life. I really need to get hustling, wishing I had some professional teammates to practice and train with. It's a team effort doing the Lord's work, working for the same goal. My team's name, I believe, is The Sons of Light!

The enemy gets the better of me sometimes when I (we) let my guard down. He knows precisely when and how to attack, having too many close calls to know life doesn't play, assured that the devil has been trying to have me (you) locked up in jail with lies, to have me (us) killed, to lose my (our) mind. He desires to distract me (you), hindering my (our) movement—these are some of his techniques. Therefore, I'm focused on getting this book out right now because tomorrow isn't promised, letting The Message do its job NOW, forever holding its place (peace). It may not be perfect as it stands right now, but it will do the trick. Until those errors are identified, it will stand and will continue refining this to perfection if time, grace, and aptitude allow—trying my best. That is all God really asks of any of

us recognizing our flaws and learning what to do about making it better.

33. THE MORE WE BELIEVE THE MORE WE CAN RECEIVE, AMEN.

Much freedom comes from relieving my sins' weight when pressing into Christ's presence, enjoying a euphoric experience no drug or experience can compare to—the Holy Spirit. The closer you are to God, the closer you are to abundance. It's simple logic in life: the apple doesn't fall far from the tree and under the right conditions, can produce an orchard in time. God gives us much time, a lifetime to make right our ways, producing abundance for His glory.

The Holy Spirit is natural and free electrifying, exciting, overwhelming experiences of love with insight, vision, and knowledge when resting upon a person. It's spiritual and most certainly not defiling. All one has to do is press in; putting Christ into the equation will be given freely if you are in line to receive.

We can receive great pleasure serving God. This is nothing new under the sun, and content serving God in the name of Jesus, becoming devoted, not addicted to my source. God does not fail and is freely given without any limit. All we do is raise our hands to Him and get blessed—easy as 1, 2, 3. We are designed to praise and worship; it's what we put into it. God gives much free will, making it our choice.

If I did not believe in Jesus Christ and accept Him as Savior, I would not be here, let alone writing this, appealing to you. Truly Christ is believed, and so truly my sins are forgiven. It's great not carrying all the baggage around, feeling the weight of sin fall off, realizing there's no need to struggle. We all fall short in our walk with God falling far from the mark and what is expected of me in life, recalling failing miserably many times, but I'm getting better, closer to the mark. God continually allows us to keep zeroing in on the target until

we get it right. It took half a lifetime to get consistently on the target of what God is aiming for in my life. The closer to God we get, the closer the target gets bigger, easier to see, especially in the light.

It takes time to be a good archer, understanding what influences his arrow to be precise on target. Life is always challenging us with new things that alter our direction. We get consistent by being persistent with our goals, being on the mark and knowing how to get there, battling current circumstances that get us off track. Feeling as if I finally made a mark on the target regarding what God is aiming for in my life and now yours, I can say it is done—going out doing His will. We become a good shot, getting better, being consistently on target by using experience, not letting this life get us off the mark with all the devil's distractions becoming wise, knowing what influences the arrow to strike the bullseye.

When we do right by God's standards, life starts to ease up. Be faithful, knowing you are not alone, having an interactive relationship with God. God will always be with you and not forsake you, for I am a witness. All we do is call upon Him. Whether it comes fast or redundantly really depends on you. It depends on what you are willing to believe and do. Beliefs are what keep us up or down; also, what set us free from the bondage of the mind.

God does not stop growing in our lives unless we don't allow Him. We can read in the Bible how great men started off as sheep herders and fishermen. Even an enemy that was against the gospel became one of the most prominent disciples in the Bible. Now that's deliverance and perhaps why Paul expressed often having that much difference added, equaled abundance. I believe Paul became thankful in a sense when he was locked up, for he surely was free (internally), having nothing else to do but God's will producing a good portion of what's written in the New Testament, sharing every moment of his life

glorifying Christ. It's obvious that's what he loved to do, and what better than from confinement where there wasn't anything else to do but that. It took that environment to produce the faith instilled in him. God's ways are not our own.

Or, where would John experience the Revelation if not a prisoner on an island, excommunicated from civilization because of his belief in Christ? Having Christ and only Christ to rely upon can make a very devoted servant that sometimes tastes of God's divine power. God showed His power to His servant, John, as a true believer in Jesus Christ, receiving the Revelation Jesus Christ showed him and commanded him to write. We find Revelation is right on time with this day and age, spoken exactly as it is written, regardless of whether other signs are read correctly or not. In part, Revelation—a very complicated book of the Bible—is understood with what I can wrap my head around, being our guide through this murky time.

Life is unfolding just as spoken by prophets long ago. God is true to His word—believe that. Look around. Notice any similarities? I do, and it's working out conclusively, opening the door for this time and purpose God bestowed upon me. It is in our hearts already what the right thing is. We have a conscience, well, most of us. When we lie, it can usually be detected because of our nature that lying is not what we were designed to do. One sin will lead to another, taking you down that road further and further from the light until there is complete darkness. Open your mind, body, and soul to God, allowing the light to shine. For God is the light, and Jesus is our access by the Blood He shed. Closer to the light, brighter, warmer, also seeing our iniquity and how ugly as well as disgusting our sin really is. The more we see, the more we can deal with it. A surgeon needs a bright, dependable light at all times to do his work start to finish. Life is simpler in the light don't you agree when a flashlight is needed to see around us?

May you be blessed with The Message broken down to the best of this understanding, written about what God is doing in my life and now yours. I am a servant fulfilling destiny according to the will of God. It is my duty and determination to serve the Lord to the best of this ability.

34. W.B.J. (continued)

This book and Believing Is Receiving Ministry Facebook page and many are about Jesus. The idea is to have many other avenues to get the word out and will be explored, for all this is moving His Kingdom forward. I'm thankful for having the opportunity to fulfill the call before me. It's lovely sharing time with the Lord in this capacity being in love with God and I will seek more service when I finish writing this. The only answer I know is Jesus covered under the Blood, free to do His will.

My life has been a journey, and I wouldn't give much up for nothing defining experiences that can't be taken away from me now and used for a better purpose. Wishing didn't open my mind to those things, knowing all too well the knowledge of good and evil surely not perfect by any means. My life was all over the map with drugs, fueling iniquity and crime to support the use, filling my life up with lies. I am free today, thank you Jesus, believing it's what molded this prophet God can use for today.

Becoming solid like the rock in my life made me aware of the many evils that corrupt the soul and how easy it is to fall. Relying upon this rock to not fail, for an assurance of its stability in my life, wishing some things in life were different, accepting the consequences of my choices. We all have a past. My past is full of iniquity, shame, and

guilt all from sin but I am also healed by Jesus, knowing the difference. Again, very thankful that Jesus has taken all that away. Having so many downfalls, I wondered how God could ever use me. But here I am, giving hope to the non-believer and believer alike, fulfilling the call, amen, healed of afflictions, showing others the way with the key that is found. Amazingly, not lacking in much and feeling restored to the original purpose. My cup runneth over, hoping this will be shared by others so they can also taste the anointing. Let not one drop of anointing go to waste. All we have to do is believe and receive all God's blessings. It's so simple, man had to mess it up with religion. As you may see, I am free, and so are you no religion needed, just Jesus.

Learning to write the hard way in public, including grammar. I would have stayed awake in grammar class as a child, knowing all this. As disastrous as this sounds, I was staying accountable to my peers and self, with nothing to hide every step of the way, showing to myself and others how some of the bad crept in along with the good. Facebook, among other venues, offers the stage to vent in public what God is doing in my life, broken down by figures that can reach many (my bow). Each step is closer to my destiny; the devil can't take it away. Hoping greatness comes to your life from this spiritually loaded message, broken down in a book for all to receive. Be joyful, for the Lord is nearby.

(Continued)

Realizing this was God's will and, until I was ready to fulfill all things, couldn't advance forward. It was/is God's timing, not mine, for His purpose, not necessarily for mine. I tried producing out of sync with God's timing for my purpose and found myself out of line with God's will in my life. I wrote out my rough drafts that were not finished, making them public, thinking they were finished realizing

they weren't, needing work Grammarly and dramatically, also taking my influences that crept in. Knowing God's Spirit, who counsels me what to say, draws me closer to where my destiny lay. I found out talking about Revelation does not necessarily make many friends, but it's not friends I am necessarily trying to make, looking for true brothers and sisters in Christ.

Calling the Army of God to wake up and stand fast for what we believe in. Spiritual and physical warfare is increasing, and the horizon looks bittersweet. It's better to be prepared and focused on what is going on around us. You should realize the day is dawning on those days spoken of in Revelation, King James Version Holy Bible. Coming here as a prophet of God to enlighten you to what God put on my heart to share. It is my duty to be a witness to the testimony, sharing my experience with you and hopefully moving your life closer to God.

Did God not warn us of these days? Do you think peace is the answer? Not that peace wouldn't be ideal, but peace will not remain in these days. The only peace that will be granted is allowing the enemy to build its arsenal bigger to conflict the world with. Much like watching ISIS, a branch of Muslim ideology, grow because of lack of attention helping usher in the new world order by weakening us as the United States. Muslims, communists, the Antichrist are trying to change the dynamics our founding fathers (who happened to be Christians) were aiming at, getting away from Sharia Law or any other law that is anti-Christ (of another religion). This country, the United States of America, is a nation under God, in Jesus' name, and derived from Christian values.

When "Christians" needed a refuge, no help was given watching people suffer for weeks on top of a mountain in Iraq without much effort to help. You can't fool me about where the current President's

heart lies when writing this portion of the book, while sending sweet nothings to the Iranians, enabling them to do their will and that is to wipe Christians and Jews alike out of the picture. It's been their desire to fight since the days of Ishmael. Nothing has changed, and they hate us.

When it came to people that would be more likely Muslim, the Syrian refugees were invited with open arms. Not that there's anything wrong with that, but it lines up with an agenda that's devaluing the USA messing with our principles and way of life. I believe they are trying to overthrow our government, shanghaiing us by sheer numbers, their votes basically to place the USA under Sharia Law or any other law in conflict with that which the USA was born under. It's the perfect Trojan Horse, allowing more enemies' ideology to destroy our democratic Christian culture. No wonder people are arming themselves as the government tries to take our weapons and ammo away, thinking, how perfect is that messing with our Second Amendment rights in the process while allowing the thugs in, hmmm... We see what it's starting to look like under the "Democratic Party" messing with our borders by opening them up, robbing the values and democracy this great country, the USA, is built on by infiltrating the voting pool. It is destroying the Constitution's purpose by overreaching with the majority votes, doing as one pleases to get more votes in, which seems to also be weakening us, trashing democracy.

They try to convince themselves of a false belief or wishful thinking, making the situation grow into a worse dilemma as technology and an abundance of weapons continue to be manufactured for one purpose—ultimately to be used to destroy people. Everyone is involved, meaning the north, east, south, west, and within ready to conflict the world, wishing it didn't have to come to war. Peace would be ideal, always, but it's not always peace, and we have to take it as it

comes or not. If God's Word of His Son, Jesus Christ, is to be spread throughout the whole world, then it may cause some disturbance, especially in those areas that are anti-Christ of another religion. A war is brewing, getting close to climax. It would not take much to manifest into a world war. Think about it, am I not making sense? Look around the world today. Not suggesting fighting, but really, we will find we have no alternative. There is not a peaceful solution; realize, for it is written that we are heading for a bigger fight than this world has ever seen over religion, principality, and ego.

Have we not been preaching the last days in the Church? Is it a big surprise to anyone that a proclaimed prophet of God is speaking of the last days, believing am preparing a way for the coming Lord? Ignoring the issues before us will not make them go away, it will only make the sting that much more. There is no pleasure in expressing this to the world, for it is a hardship and will probably be till the day I die. It is not easy being responsible for this word from God, and I must press on. It's not for me to judge God's business in how it comes or why it comes just to be that servant doing my job, releasing the message, and confronting as many souls as possible. Pray much, get yourself right with God, knowing what's about to come as a dream told, envisioned in my head, which is written. I have done my job when it is finished.

Revelation comes twofold, with much glory to our Heavenly Father's Son, Jesus Christ, and much wrath to those who are not of God's Son, Jesus Christ. That is the way of knowing it, because that is the way it is written; therefore, the way it is being told. God confirms by His Holy Spirit in my life those who are not of God through His Son, Jesus Christ, have no inheritance. They scoff at us, using everything in their arsenal including lies to disprove me and anything Christian that is holy, iterating prophetically. Someone had to fulfill

the call ending up being it, choosing to be it, fending for the Lord as spokesman, believed to be preparing His way. Having every opportunity to walk away but refusing. Pressing forward, for the Gospel is at hand, knowing the truth intimately, expressing it passionately. Letting the world know the intentions laid on my heart, hopefully displaying well for the Kingdom of God, for all this is moving His Kingdom forward.

35. THE MESSAGE WAS BORN

As life started to come together with the good things of God in life, I tried living life as God was drawing me to. I entertained the idea of going to a Christian college around 2006. I had to write up a cover letter detailing what I thought of God and my desire in life to serve Him. I wrote it out, reluctantly not sending it in because of all the errors in grammar and decided I was not ready for college. I studied the letter, identifying something about myself, like where my heart, passion, future, and destiny lay. I would leave it out in order to keep thinking about it as God intended. It was something tangible that was seen every day in front of me on one page. Looking upon it, studying it often, figuring what falls in line with what King James says about the Gospel of Jesus Christ, and wanting a reminder for myself personally. The Message transformed many times, eventually filling the page when finished so that it could be seen in its entirety of what thought needed to be said in one glance.

The Message covers everything that's needed to be known about Salvation in life while giving warning of God's return to serve sentence as promised, for it is written. Be aware that we are in the end days, opening the door to be realized. After the concept came to pass, realizing what a great message to share with the world, life hasn't been the same since fine-tuning The Message into what stands today.

The Message transformed many times. It was something God was working with me on. It took time to keep evaluating, assessing, making sure it fell in line with the gospel, as well as what God put on my heart to also include, transforming into what's called The Message. I always had an idea, as a prophet of God, of having a bigger purpose but never confirmed it completely, so did not receive the full

revelation of exactly how, what, or why. Life flashed before my eyes in dreams since childhood, seeing key moments about my life before they happened. My dreams surely came true, just like they happened, though it was not always apparent, knowing a higher power was at work, would have to be making a believer out of me.

As The Message zeroed into what's considered complete by letting in and pushing out that which should not belong, as well as in my own life, it took years to finally make up enough ground to stand solidly and stake a claim. I give credit to those men and women of God that helped pull through this, claiming this destiny as shown by acceptance as a prophet of God. This is The Message and how it applies to life today, as well as in my own life, showing people that don't know and those who know already to know better. The better we know our purpose in this world, the better we can achieve that reason.

In the beginning, when I started coming around again in late 2006, I was getting back into church, molding The Message to what is acceptable. It was a slow process because I was backsliding practically every day with something or another, with a flash of brilliance occasionally. It was a tedious start but had a call coming closer to fulfillment. The Spirit started to wake up in my life again, and I was confronted with both holiness and the devil staring me in the face. Reaching out for holiness while the devil tried keeping me to the ground with all his might. It was a struggle, a long struggle, and I barely got free of the grip of the devil never to put myself in that position again. Thank you, Jesus, for victory.

When looking back, I know the devil used anyone and anything against me, seeking to keep me from this destiny. As soon as I started pressing in, the enemy started to fight back, and fight we do. God made me an achiever, so faith tells me my enemy will not have me until all is needed, said, and done. God will have the last say in my life. Putting

the armor of God on to protect me, never to take it off again. I'll never know what hour or minute the enemy attacks, though I fear him not. The Spirit within me knows no fear.

Around Thanksgiving 2006, just about the time The Message was a seed, I stopped by a local church because I heard from the pastor during service, they were cooking the Thanksgiving dinner and needed all the help they could conjure. Being a chef, and usually volunteering or working Thanksgiving, feeding the less fortunate, I came with my chef knives in a clear case, showing up after walking from work where I was a cook not far away, figuring this was a great way to meet people. When arriving, I noticed there were a lot of children and teenagers, guessing the adults were cooking, and I stated my business of wanting to help. I was told it was all taken care of and the elders couldn't be bothered, so I left.

As I was walking home, two detectives stopped me, making a big deal, aggressively putting me up against the car, asking about being at the church with my knives. I told them the story, and nothing came of it. The police said they told me not to go there again—a lie, or they certainly did not make it clear. I can assure you if they told me not to go there again and I heard it; I would have stayed away. So, I returned the night of the feast feeling blessed by the Spirit, not causing a problem at all. Except apparently, they didn't appreciate my presence. Moments later, I was escorted in handcuffs off the property in front of the whole congregation and guests, a very large crowd. The police said I was told not to come back.

It was an honest mistake. I am guessing, perhaps to justify the arrest, when escorted off the property in handcuffs for trespassing, I was brought up on charges of trespassing, went to court, found guilty, and told not to ever go back there. Imagine the irony me being a prophet, having a call, looking for a church to fellowship with, and

giving God credit for all that happened because obviously that was not the church I belonged to or wanted to belong to after getting to know them personally. I did not fight it unless I hired a lawyer I couldn't afford. I got a public defender that allowed me to work a plea deal, along with the court's miscarriage of justice, railroaded from the start. It's on my record as testimony and I figured there are reasons for everything. They played their hand to the fullest, showing how corrupt the judicial system is. My background did not help with all my petty crimes, stressing "petty crimes" from my past. But that's not what church is for to have police in their congregation that dictate to the church who can come or not. For shame on you.

Believing God allowed it to happen as a testimony, so testimony it is. It was purely a satanic move. A hatred was in their hearts that caused them to not want me there, and they didn't even know me. The enemy sees me as a threat to his kingdom, for whatever reason, would be a good guess because it always happens when we get together the enemy shows himself by the attack because of how I was attacked. Maybe again prophets don't belong, at least not this one, but I didn't announce myself as a prospective prophet; regardless, it would have to be the enemy. These sorts of experiences played a big part in spiritual warfare and had recurred amazingly in the same court seven (7) years later, and also not allowed at another church (kind of). God keeps no one out, does He?

During that time in 2007, I was getting off the drugs, with some respectable clean time, trying to get back into church, cleaning my life up, putting sights on my destiny, which had to do with that message I kept working on with a Divine plan on a grand scale to share with the world. It is finished, pleased to say, amen, and can say it is done; Thank God, the dream remained the same because after that experience with the local police department and church, I fell hard,

very hard. I was very turned off by my experiences with the church and may have been disgruntled with God, not being strong enough to realize it was the enemy's warfare trying to prevent me from succeeding with this destiny spreading The Message, promoting the Kingdom, SAVING PEOPLE is the idea! Because of that, it seems life took a tough turn.

The enemy knows when and how to attack us at our most vulnerable times, always persuading us to turn around and not pursue God but the flesh, along with its desires, having me believe God didn't want me or that I didn't belong in His family or His alleged house, taking another bout with the devil. Sure enough, it was intense, putting myself in another dilemma with bad people, places, and things.

The church I serve doesn't deny anyone for any reason unless you are just... (I believe no one should be not allowed in a church for any reason because that is what the Lord's house is for, especially those who need conversion). Some will not ever change and will remain my mortal enemies because they will never be convinced that Christ is the way and will fight it passionately. So not all are redeemable and are already sold out. God, help me reach those who need to hear Your Word and experience acceptance from society, helping them with opportunities to change their lives around like mine, using my life as testimony. I was there remembering what was felt and needed, and in return wanting to provide that to the lost, showing that God is the answer through His Son, Jesus Christ, along with compassion that can heal people along with Salvation, love, and anointing, but most of all TRUTH, in which the enemy has none, can't handle it, and tries to quiet God's sons and daughters who carry His Word and truth (light).

I knew I had a future with God if I would conform. Of course, I needed a church to fellowship with, being fed and taught the Word with better support. After that experience in 2007–2010, I went back

to falling again, and fell I did, almost did not make it out of the devil's grip this last time. The devil tried me hard, feeling there was no way out, doing some stupid things. Thank God I did not do anything having any real aftereffects condemning me any more than what already was. That's what was/is needed the most in my life—church. Of course, it was my choice not to find another church or go back on drugs, but that situation did not help. When I needed church the most in my life, that happened and gave me a bad impression to this day, having since become a bigger fan of televised and W.W.W. preaching from the security of my house and where and why the 7-Fold Ministry became a concept. Amen!

I will compliment those who reach many around the world spreading the Gospel, reaching me. It was televised preachers that pulled me through again. I was not strong enough or wise enough to fight the devil, because the devil has a great interest in not letting me get to my destiny for such a reason as this book, along with The Message and my drive to spread it at all costs, believing it is my goal, task, and job. I was worthy to do what God was showing me but had to conform, repent, and serve to receive, and of course BELIEVE!

Throughout that whole time, every night I asked Jesus to please forgive me, feeling bad, sorry, worthless, pathetic, falling to the depths just to get up to do it all over again. It was a vicious cycle because I was chained to my addiction to hard drugs (cocaine) that drove me apart from God. Carrying the scars in my mind and body of abuse of power along with physical disabilities acquired from authority and the devil, I started thinking it was useless, defeated, holding bitterness toward church and authority.

36. A PROPHET COME LATELY

I have had a connection since the time of my birth, perhaps having a rough birth and almost not making it, holding onto a vision that seemed to come, believing that the first month after I was born or before (?). Perhaps my mother and I were spared death, recalling standing before a light saying, "Promise to carry this out" (?). It's all I remember. There was a soldier having that recurring dream during the era in Vietnam, maybe W.W.2 (I think?), wondering why that particular scene keeps playing itself out in my dreams. I can't explain and won't attempt to, having strange out-of-body experiences. There was something sometimes guiding me in my dreams, actually pointing out stuff about my future, telling me to remember. Remembering one particular time, we were moving quickly from place to place, perhaps because I am a light sleeper, and surely it did happen, coming to pass just like shown but it wasn't easily apparent, except through a point of view from up in the air. It made sense if I was to look down from that same perspective and saw the same symbol that was pointed out and told to remember.

To be specific about this very dream and experience, it will be only fair that I explain what happened. I was about 15 years old, and we were fixing to move back to my home state. Before that time, I had a dream. I was standing in the air maybe 100 ft (?) above a piece of property with someone unknown at my side telling me to remember something specific about this scene. As I looked down, I noticed a telephone pole configuration in the walkway because it was a duplex house, and from up in the air, it looked like a telephone pole—the sign that I chose to remember. At this time, we (mother and I) didn't have any idea what house we were moving to. I certainly did not know this was the house we were to be moving to. My first time seeing it was the

day we moved in. It was foreseen that this was the house we were going to be living in and was told to remember. If it had not happened like that, I would not have exactly remembered, thinking it was just another dream, another déjà vu moment experienced and not thought twice about it. One day, sitting out on the step, I kept thinking, "This is so familiar. I've been here before..." and it hit me like a ton of bricks when I saw the telephone pole configuration in the walkway.



(The people who know me and know where I lived at that time you will not see that telephone pole configuration anymore, for it has been changed since then. It used to be 2x4s lumber with stone gravel as the walkway.) I looked up where I saw it from, and it is certain that I saw this place before I moved there. My mom and I had no idea this was going to be our home at the time. From there, this unknown person that was guiding me and telling me to remember went to visit a soon-

to-be friend of mine's house, looking from the back of his yard down to his house, and then we went to another friend's house and were looking at his house from the roadway with a long driveway. This is how I remember things being my testimony and I'm sticking to it. Dreams always have a feel to them; it's how you know you've been there, by bringing you back to the memory. When you experience that same feel, experiences, smells it's the best I can explain it taking you right back to the dream. I was sleeping and visiting these places before knowing about them. I ventured to many places in my dreams. I had no idea that was going to be the house we moved into or that these were going to be my friends, but something or someone did, as they pointed this stuff out to me, telling me to remember, perhaps for this *very purpose for the book I don't know. I have had a lot of out-of-body* experiences, more in my youth than I do now (that I remember). That's the only time it happened like that being in the moment, interacting with my dream as a sobering thought. Most of the time my dreams have a mystery; they're hard to figure out, having a déjà vu feel about them. It's like trying to tell someone how to paint a picture of your vision, like a Pictionary, and telling somebody to decide what it means. Around this time, I recall being inquisitive about this very time travel, a peek into the future and being told to remember about this future and how it was all possible. I remember not too long after it was shown to me about this traveling in my sleep, recalling taking off one night in my sleep that seemed to be a long journey. I ended up at the place where we started from. Like a door to another dimension, I remember knocking on this door. Knocked and knocked until somebody answered. I was persistent, knowing I was at the right place, wanting to figure out what was going on. The one (or whoever) on the other side seemed to be surprised that I found my way back. I questioned time travel where I saw into the future and wanted to know how it was possible. It was shown to me to be as simple as an equation

shown on a big, very big blackboard full of equations laid out in sequence. I was told I could study it all I wanted, as long as I wanted, but couldn't write anything down. I remember studying the blackboard for a little bit, trying to recognize the symbols and... not recognizing anything except that it seemed a complex math solution, and finally gave up on studying it.

Sounds like a wonderful dream. Really weird how it all went down. It helps me pay closer attention to my dreams because I believe they're always telling me something. Perhaps it's proven to me that I am a seer of the future, and the prophet notion is a fact. It all adds up to me between testimony, experiences, dreams, the Holy Spirit, and how to access the Holy Spirit through Jesus letting me know that God is the Almighty, all-knowing, and all-seeing.

That was a long time ago, not remembering anything about it except that. My conclusion is that time is relevant. Time travel is as simple as an equation and can be figured out mathematically. I'm not sure why any of that took place perhaps to show me that I was not imagining or having déjà vu about certain time travel and that it was real. That was the only time it happened like that, but it certainly was all that was needed to make a believer out of me. I should have realized then that a higher power was definitely at play and should have started changing my life then. That was in my late teenage years. I guess I had to go make a muck of my life before I could make a change for the better traveling the path of redemption, showing others.

I try to pay attention to my dreams as much as possible, knowing that somebody or something is trying to tell me something and witnessing a lot of things have come true. That's the only way I can explain being a seer of the future of what's been shown to me, usually in dreams. I saw things in my sleep, and sure enough, after a couple of days to years, they would come to pass. Some that were seen are

coming to pass right now. There are some events still to happen, not all are pleasant being fulfilled, having nothing to do with anything but direction in life orchestrated awesomely, making a believer out of me. I'm assuming that it's just another characteristic of what a prophet is.

I knew God from the time I could verily remember, not sure if I was actually saved at that time or behaving like a Christian should (a very troubled child in a sense). My mother endured much, and I am very thankful she stuck with me, for it would not have been possible without her motherly love and support. She also knew, for she was told, that I had a call to God and saw the good in me through all the bad that was expressed in life. It took half a lifetime to finally come around, getting on the mark as God intended. The more conformed I became, the more God had His way in my life, leading by His Spirit when I was aligned to receive His goodness, leading to this book and revelation. There's no denying the victory in my life so it can be in yours—believe that!

Being in my pity and mess, I was watching a spiritual program around the middle of 2010 and heard a message pointed at me by Mrs. Joyce Meyers on the television screen saying, "Do not give up because God has a great work for you (me)." I felt it and have been a bigger fan of televised services since because of experiences. It was a message for me and everyone else, getting me motivated literally. I watched Mrs. Meyers every day, being part of my schedule with a great word because she happened to be on the three free channels cable provided since I couldn't afford the bill among other preachers helping me get out of the grip of Satan. Thank you, Mrs. Joyce Meyers, for your service in Christ, being part of my deliverance. I will always speak highly of my sister in Christ and will always give her due surely getting an A+ in my book.

I started to conform again at that time, putting down anything that pulled on me, even cigarettes and all the other drugs I was taking that made me fall. It tore me up. My flesh, the mind, and nerves more than anything screamed for drugs, feeling depressed and unworthy. But I had something to hold on to—Jesus. I knew the true God through Jesus and experienced the Holy Spirit before in life, knowing that after a bit of conforming, all would be restored and restored it is. God has given me something to hold on to —THIS. But I needed to conform, and conforming I did. In turn, I want to give the world something to hold on to—THIS. If they believe this is God's will, they will be reaping the benefits, much like by reading this book. Seeing a good thing directed by God finally released, seeing the simplicity of it all. It wasn't simple getting to this understanding thanking God for the purpose for my life because there was nothing easy about it. Seeing the finished product of this beautiful piece orchestrated by God and only God. In processing this, I do have to weed out my influences, and that can be challenging.

Life has changed considerably since that moment in life (thank you, Jesus) for making it possible through Joyce Meyers Ministries and the others. It was not easy getting to this place in life. It took time to develop distance between that lifestyle and what God was inspiring me to be—prophet. It involved the necessary steps to endure this world from that viewpoint in life, which so many others are trapped in: guessing, giving testimony, hoping for freedom to those who need to hear this word. Nothing in my life is by mistake except the choices made with mistakes according to this predestined life. I made many, many mistakes, wondering how such a breaker of the law could turn that around to bring glory to Jesus Christ. Here I am, turned around for Jesus' glory, as can occur in anyone's life, for I am a witness giving an example of the divine power of the Blood.

Giving hope to the believer and non-believer alike that no matter what struggle in life, God can change it around by applying Jesus to the equation by simply repenting from behavior that keeps us from God, by recognizing the behavior that draws us to God. Some learn life the hard way, much like myself, hopefully benefiting those who also see life the hard way, needing a way out. In the process, I learned abundance that's for everyone who complies with the truth. May your life be closer to God, enriched with the Holy Spirit through the redemption of Jesus Christ!

37. 3RD LETTER TO CHURCH 09/2020-11/01/2025

For surely the time has come. Not necessarily my timing but God's and it is not about me, but more about Jesus, His great return, and this testimony, being a "WITNESS" for Jesus Christ, believing, preparing for a time such as this surely His time is getting closer. God's timing is always impeccable, right-on time for the times, "ALWAYS," being He is the author of time. Therefore, this would have to be right on time, designed for the times, is my best guess! A crash course in Trinity, making the Bible more understandable so people can be introduced quickly, effectively, and correctly.

I could believe a lot of things that would and could set me up for a big fall, that is, if I believed it and/or received it. What the truth is beyond me at times, even after all this, not knowing what to do besides keep moving forward, fulfilling the call, believing God's purpose in life, being successful in the goals envisioned no matter what it looks like, seems like, feels like carnally, always keeping me reaching, producing, seeking, fulfilling. I have concluded since I am in this deep already, dominating a good portion of life actually my whole life really seeing no turning back was perhaps the game plan all along. Any doubt brings on hesitation and depression (all Satan's tools), learning to ignore it, staying focused on what the Word of God says with the truth which sets me free certainly not man's, including mine at times, buying into the enemy's influences, becoming my own worst enemy as well if I listen to it.

But also listening to God and His Spirit, paying attention to dreams, reading signs, fulfilling the duty and why I really need to get this right. There is no room for errors, which over time amounted to

many, refining the light found in there somewhere and erasing the darkness which crept in that didn't belong, taking over fourteen years to perfect, very thankful for the pastors, YOU, getting me through it. This all started back around 2006 with three words: "believing is receiving" (a seed, a thought, a concept some of you may recall because I shared it and not sure it was received except for a few), put into sequence to this day, has grown into this finished product being through many trials, tribulations, mistakes, books, messages, experiences, churches, convictions, years...

Going back on hard drugs in the midst before these last 14 years (2007–2010), not handling the warfare experienced from a church/law better, turning to worldly things, not God, being perhaps disgruntled with Him, knowing now it was the enemy's attack because I didn't care, feeling hopeless, defeated, disowned starting with a thought, turning into a 3 ½-year escapade which just about didn't make it out this last time being tried hard on many fronts, and learned not to do that again. For surely, I can testify that I will not do that again for any reason, knowing allowing this mere thought opened myself up for a great fall. It started with a thought allowed in by entertaining it, and before I knew it, was completely sold out again, all from a thought because of a series of circumstances the enemy inflicted, and not being strong enough or wise enough—teaching me well.

Regardless, prophecy is happening, all lining up for one thing, REGARDLESS. I would rather be a crazy prophet on fire for God with this vision, glorious call, with great belief, than a quiet mouse. Not letting people hear the truth would be the sin (my sin according to some, and maybe a few preachers depending on what was said), also selfish and inconsiderate if I didn't do my job, it seems. All this Spirit and inspiration wasn't for nothing; the anointing is for service, making

the most of it, and will be looking for more when complete. Believing God charged me to do this, so therefore it is done. Amen.

There is a Facebook page, "Believing is Receiving Ministry — The Message," started in 2014, and a recently developed page called Last Days Message / Williams Testimony of Jesus Christ and also @ www.lastdaysmessage.com with more to come for anyone's review and could use your judgment and comments, please, because I trust your judgment more than many and also would appreciate your criticism. Seems I am always turning this work into the church(s) as God directed and believe I was looking for direction, if anything, hoping for criticism so I could get this right. Making it real with history, looking for a grade from my peers (teachers, and now know why (I think) when being tested the teacher cannot say one way or another until finalized, finished, turned in, perhaps, because anything else would be considered a rough draft, NOT FINISHED) whom I trust and respect. So, if receiving this letter means trust in what you have to say, I will always value it, being a permanent part of the page with memory. Personally, thinking it is dynamite stuff, if not atomic would have to be and will let the work speak for itself and how it is moving.

With the epidemic, this is becoming a valuable tool for reaching and delivering people to the churches like yours via WWW ultimately to the Lord is the idea, winning souls for God, opening the floodgates, so make room. Though the epidemic of 2020 has passed, do know another one is coming because it was way too successful. The already found or the profound also could use this word, couldn't hurt, because we always can grow more in God, seeking His relationship through truths, Jesus, prophecies, prophets, the two witnesses who should be on scene soon, sermons, preaching, churches, and don't forget the

Spirit, which God said would be powerful in these last days all verified in one place, keeping closer to our Lord.

The lost, afflicted, and unknowing like Israel and the rest of the world who need the truth and nothing but the truth because many preachers, even the elect, have the Bible represented effectively until getting to Revelation 6;2 (for instance) and start getting in the weeds, if not completely out of the ballpark. Total conjecture of man's imagination from one end of the spectrum to the other, blasted all over the place because the Word of God doesn't say and believe me, I have searched. A lot of scriptures in the Bible are clear, and many people of God share the same view and are very consistent. But certain scriptures like Revelation 6;2 become a good point to start from and see how inconsistent a person can be through preaching and beliefs.

After looking into this inconsistency that is very well stated through many different Christian organizations differing greatly in some sects why? If you really want to know what's in a pastor's heart whom you want to receive guidance from, ask them what their belief is about Revelation 6;2 and see how they answer it—if they answer it. I would suggest reading it in the King James Version Bible, since the King James is the original Bible foundation of many other different versions and interpretations (their view and what they are suggesting) that do differ along with many other scriptures, or even have taken out certain scriptures, so be careful in cross-referencing.

Having about seven churches (the head) is plenty enough for what is in mind, keeping it simple, along with their Bible studies, added to many more others good preaching and sermons from other good preachers (the body) that will become preached, relived, and given more life to "7-Fold Ministry" (coming soon, hopefully depending upon how well the other ministries except this testimony). It's been said that there are seven spirits of the Holy Spirit, which I believe can

be manifested through these ministries. Especially with the World Wide Web, TV, and other media, there has become a wide group of very talented people that are obviously inspired by the Holy Spirit, who reflect the truth and can help promote this concept of saving souls. My job is to promote The Message and book, pointing them to these ministries—simple! I plan to be effective and am motivated, along with God's will, will be done. For surely all this work is for a reason, and I can't see not continuing as the plan, as it's being revealed to me. If God is in it, then it will be successful.

That's the idea and hopefully, ministries understand what my motives are, which is reaching as many as possible so they have an opportunity to be saved. And if God's not in it or not accepting my testimony, then I will not be successful. The whole idea is to be successful. There has to come a day this work comes to fruition or fails. As long as I am doing everything, I believe I'm supposed to do and try, it is all God really asks of me. What is there to lose? What is there to gain? Everything! Besides, this is what I believe I am called to do and therefore doing would be my best guess. This did not come from my own accord or understanding. It certainly isn't something I just thought up one day thinking it would be a neat idea. Something draws me to do this, and I credit the Holy Spirit, what else could it be? That's what happens when the Spirit of God gets on me. I want to preach and spread joy through the truth I know that sets me free, gives me life, and I believe it will do the same for anyone else who is open to this. The work is already done, including the churches, because these are re-lived messages that got me through it in the past and therefore can get somebody else through it—that's the idea. Simply stated!

I have been watching some of you for a long time, 25 years now and more, giving credit for getting me right with God, along with

others preaching seen on TBN and other Christian networks that would like to exploit. I would like to see a Sirius station, preferably sponsored by TBN, with these preachers, Bible studies, and sermons, radio stations people can listen to while driving, walking, working, basically anywhere a www signal is available. (what a day-dreamer!) Websites and other media magnify these houses of God with their word, which is already completed. With THIS book that's digitally free, along with my tenacity, drive, and desire to make it happen, it will happen if the churches are in agreement.

I don't know what you believe, and I'm glad I waited, now that it all has been revealed, FINISHED revealing everything about this ministry. Having not heard from you has become a lot of the experience in the past, and now I'm thankful because I didn't need any distractions just the good word (truth) preached. God made it clear here just lately it wasn't the right time yet, giving the pastors something to contemplate, practicing this newfound position, giving me somewhere to turn in the work to be accountable for (14 years) while not disrupting your services or time with something that wasn't finished (a rough draft) while sharpening it to completion.

Besides, a lot of darkness crept in that didn't belong due to my immaturity in this new found call and counselled over time what should be taken out, also what should stay. If I did not share these rough drafts with the churches, I may have never thought about improving it, and may never been thought of as much because that mess couldn't stand. As messy as it was, gave me something to work with. It is hard to sell a picture when many of the pieces were missing. But I can surely say it is done. Amen. (9/2020 -11/01/2025 3rd letter to Church)

It is the finished product that is admired and what counts that will be doing the job. So, until it was finished doing its job, it couldn't be

counted, and anxious to get this out of my hands into the WWW is a good start, for it is FINISHED. It seems to be the most notable thing to do, believing it is serving my fellow man and bringing God's dream and the visions given to me bring true, doing a job I apparently love to do, AMEN. But most of all, to provide truth that needs to be heard and directed from talented preachers such as yourselves.

Wanting nothing personally in return, including money for that is not what drives this, also complicating it, because this was freely given; therefore, it will be given as freely as I can give it, and it is a great joy to produce, knowing God's Word should never be sold. Besides, I get great joy when people get saved through this testimony. God always makes a way. If it is His will, then Thy will be done!

Believing is Receiving, The Message broken down, has been freely given and always will be added to this work, in which I can say it is done and will make as freely as I can give it. It crosses my mind to make a very high-quality book which costs considerable and make it available along with cheaper books that can be reduced considerably as affordable as I can get it with the other free avenues people can get this word should surely cover it.

I'm not rich by any means, except rich in the Lord, and live on a limited income at the moment becoming my sacrifice to set this off like "10 packs of dynamite, anybody got a light?" This will be reaching far, very far into the world is the idea. I think of those ministers that preach free on cable TV that helped me get out of the grip. If it wasn't for them, I'm not sure what would have become of me, for I was teetering on the edge, and I give them much thanks for their contribution to my walk. Digital books are easy to share unless in certain formats, and will be available.

But physical books, as I'm finding out going through a publisher, have to have a barcode and ISBN on it (doesn't have to a have barcode

or ISBN but the distributing part becomes very difficult), for instance, therefore will have to be for sale if used on popular distribution sites at the lowest price if not free. The idea is to make these paperback books as affordable as possible so they can be shared in jails, prisons, and anywhere else people enjoy paperback books. It's a very tight wire to walk trying to figure out. There's a possibility this sizzles out like a dud and... I will always show my optimism until actually seeing it in full fruition; not because of my efforts.

Know the devil is just not having it, seeing the push back and how people are, or have been influenced by others whom opposes this very word, won't succeed if God is not in it. Regardless of man's influence because experience tells me the devil is /has worked really hard to discredited anything iterating prophetically (me or anyone else) about this time because he doesn't want to hear it, see it, or anyone else to so can pull off his plan. It is going to be interesting how this will all pan out. Time will be the revealer and therefore stay tuned, because I believe a lot is at the crossroads. Something has to give sooner or later coming certainly and I vision great things will come of this.

No matter what comes against this will prove itself the victor "IF" it is Gods Will, will be done! Man can't stop it no matter what he does. It is a real struggle, at least for me, and will continue coming like a freight train is all I know to do or I am sadly delusional. I try not to care either way because it is a real possibility. God says it's not my battle and already receiving my reward and will get what's coming to me will have to take credit for this work—good, bad or indifferent and will be judged. If man had anything to do with it can't put themselves in my shoes, and will not set myself up with expectations because of people's lack of vision or understanding, including mine at times. So will just do it and God will do the rest. God help my soul because this direction is hard for me (sometimes), and anyone else to discern.

Anyone who profits off the Lord's Word besides tithes and their services provided to the community is becoming the middleman, always, usually having to do with money, it seems by selling prayers for hire or selling a represented word from God, if it's the word, know that is not how God or His true servants operate. People who do such are not as interested in your relationship with God but more in what they can get from it. I won't roll like that, because I know it is something people need to hear, especially the poor and they shouldn't have to pay for anything along with free Bibles in any language available with this book, it will hopefully reach many if I have anything to do with it spreading fast and free. With a PDF copy or something that can't be edited, anyone can turn this digital book into any language through translation apps, along with digital Bibles online and apps that allow you to listen to the book. I believe I can reach many is the goal.

Once a website is built (Last Days Message, & 7-Fold Ministry) and this work is available along with other ministries and their contributions, all that's left is the promoting. If I know anything about myself, I know that this will be accomplished. I'm finally at a point in my life where I believe I have a good product and keep going over it, picking up on little things that need to be changed and if you're reading this finished book then know this is it, written by me, no other person, responsible for the complete content including grammar; also it is right on time for the times. I would not let anyone edit or touch this except for the book design. With so much technology and apps will make this very easy to exploit.

My testimony is my testimony, unlike anyone else's, and may vary slightly in some aspects from other people's beliefs. What's important is that Jesus and the Holy Spirit are presented correctly and effectively so people understand how easy it is to have a good

relationship with God. Hopefully, my testimony gets right to the point, making it clear and easy how to have a relationship. Once getting these people acquainted with God, I need to point them somewhere with ministries I've come to know and trust will keep them in will be the 7-Fold Ministry coming soon is the vision.

Understanding ministries also TV stations like TBN have to make money, for this is their livelihood, seeing a good thing, and I'm very thankful for reaching me (us) and can certainly reach the lost. Fortunately, I am not relying upon, but accepting, outside finances to promote this through perhaps sponsorship and advertisement, believing it will promote itself while directing its direction when put in God's people's hands. Being down that road having a book published and had to sell it because I went through a publisher where the publisher made more than the writer just did not settle well. Pulling the book off the market because I could not live with the idea of selling this alleged word from God in its present condition, I learned from my mistakes. God said, "Write a book," so I wrote a book, and He didn't say anything about tying it up with a publisher where selling it and losing my rights to do as I please with it—my error.

I am searching every option to give this book away as freely as I legitimately can give it. My intention is to get this into people's hands as easily as I can give it. And people who can afford high quality books and also appreciate its function will buy it because there is no other like it and surely this beautiful word from God(?) deserves a beautiful presentation, if not the best that can be created. Beauty is in the eye of the beholder and therefore you will love it or as the enemy has come to hate it because this testimony divides with truth that cuts like a two-edged sword. Thank you in advance.

What it costs to promote this will be my tithes to God and this ministry. Books do cost money to print, and I will have some printed.

With confidence, I know I will find a creative way to make it happen and consider some possibilities. Once people see the light and that it is good, they will hopefully also be motivated to get this word into others' hands (ears), where countries forbid the Bible and Christianity by controlling the WWW would be a good start, along with a King James Version Bible in their language as well.

What is in mind to get this started doesn't cost that much exploring the options, letting the work do the work and the talking for me, for really not much more needs to be said. All that needs to be done is promoting it, making it happen or just forget about it (it is not that simple) because I cannot necessarily do this on my own anymore with the book's completion, and I will need the church's backing. Without the church's permission, I can't print their name or church in the book or website, legally speaking, making it even more complicated. I have to finish the book before sharing, of the first pages will be left blank and available until further updating with the churches I would like to promote through 7-Fold Ministry (the vision of a collection of ministries of 7 if not more).

I don't know what any other ministry would see that it hurts by promoting their ministry and saving souls. I can absolutely see why ministries that may have any variance to what was mentioned wouldn't want any parts of it, whether it was the truth or not—a nice catch 22. For only one answered the call among the many who reached out since this ministry started Joyce Meyers Ministry by simply giving permission to use their name as an approved ministry when writing the 2nd book who helped deliver me, knowing they could deliver someone else.

The devil really already cooked the alleged books by distorting truth, regardless of my thoughts, because if it was true that this ministry (it is a hunch and what appears to be revealed to me) is in part

of Revelation 6;2 (is the consensus), and what some say about the 1st White Horse, then they would be saying I am pointing people to the Antichrist by these very ministries that I was trying to promote and just a thought, because again I don't know... nor does anybody else, is my understanding. Don't ask me why I keep referring to Revelation 6;2 besides what is put on my heart to understand. Unless you know something FOR SURE, please share it with me, because if anyone needed to get this right, it would be me.

I believe Revelation 6;2 is a move for God and somehow feel part of that with this very testimony. My understanding and concept are a lot more pleasing and acceptable than what other people may say. The only person or thing that would want to get that mixed up would be the devil, as he always does when it comes to God's people and the Bible. If there's confusion in it, know it's the devil. There's a reason God keeps things mysterious until revealed. It's still a mystery to me being revealed, because really, I don't know. I could very well be wrong about all of this, or it could be true. I don't know how The Message broken down could be considered derived from Satan. Who am I to judge! Maybe I'm introducing heresies that I'm not aware of. Or, God didn't call me to do this and... It's "my" testimony.

I can see the controversy already. Only thing I can think of is God didn't want it revealed until its due time and man has been guessing ever since with their vivid imagination. I have heard pretty profound things from very prominent pastors, shocking me because with so many different interpretations figure someone has to be wrong. What's the truth, what makes sense, and besides I ask who told them that —God?

What I believe, I believe in. I wrote it out believing it's there for a reason. It took a lot of evaluating, going through, asking God. I'm not sure it's hurting anybody, and if anything, it's helping. I know the

enemy has much contrary to say, as he usually does in anyone's testimony. The idea is to get as many souls introduced to the truth that sets us free. I'm sure Catholics, Muslims, Jewish, or any other religion besides Judeo-Christians have something contrary to say because of the way they were brought up. Even my Judeo-Christian brothers and sisters may have something contrary to say because of the way they were brought up. So, I will keep on believing and receiving this destiny according to Christ. If it's not hurting and it's promoting, doing its job, amen.

That's where the conquering with The Message comes in. We are more than conquerors in Jesus Christ, which is very biblical and also makes sense, doesn't it? Regardless of my views or anyone else's, if this is true, then it means Jesus is coming right around the corner, is my best guess. No man or the angels, not even Christ, knows the time, but when you see these things happening, know time must be getting closer.

Only selected ministries who make the grade no others can replace them and there will be no others will I point anyone to because I don't personally know them, which takes time... can give the devil credit for cluster-messing it up. It is really getting my curiosity how this will turn out, and time is always a revealer. Not because of my efforts, but because of others' participation, seeing that devil in the details. Anyone else see it? And know that any children of God, through the Holy Spirit, will be revealed, trusting in the Spirit, not man. It is not my battle that will fight, for it is the Lord's if it is His will, then Thy will be done. To me, it makes sense. I can't help the calling that God put upon my life, which I accept and will do to the best of my ability.

Having enough fighting going on in my life as it is, and can't help but wanting, going, to put a hurting on the enemy with this book and

KJV Holy Bible (a beautiful combination) at all costs, no matter what the repercussions which usually causes many problems in life, making no wonder why the warfare for we have an enemy that fights hard back and has tried, and wouldn't doubt is trying, to kill me. And no, that isn't being paranoid, just honest, knowing every dog has its day, someday, maybe, and we will see. Taking nothing for granted, blessed for another day. God help my soul, and will probably go out in a blaze of glory, for Armageddon is getting close, and so am preparing for such, BELIEVE THAT!

Once getting people on track through networking on Facebook and other social media, and websites give someone a place to sort their soul out, hopefully winning people to Christ in whom they can be called a brother or sister in Christ. Will ask for one month, if not a few (5) hours it takes to get through it all, also of their time a segment of 33 messages comprised from The Message a day to reflect upon (and to think along with your input, please, if moved, for this is your page too, to minister if you feel moved and know you have insight), because sleeping on it helps prepare a person for the next day with something new, with a new start, if they're willing and can't make a camel drink water unless they choose to.

It is not asking much to read and reflect upon The Message broken down, and a great benefit for the soul (is it not?). Most people are on social media, the WWW, and it would be a good start, for surely there are many to be reached so can comment on, ask upon, and with the right churches to point them to, along with KJV Holy Bible digital scriptures to back it up in any language. Getting their nose in the book just may do the trick, as was the goal to achieve. God gave a task with vision (dreams), word, Spirit, JESUS, instruction to make it happen, making the most of it, for God designed this to be successful. Or did

He? This is a serious matter not to be taken lightly! All in His timing is the rule of thumb, and time is always a revealer.

It is important the world hears the truth about Jesus Christ, God, Holy Spirit, so they can know them better because Jesus is coming soon and would have to be, and why this was inspired to be done! Of course, they need the truth with this respective message best known as testimony. As you know, there are always two sides to a story—truth and non-truth. It is important where you get your story from (including current news stations), for some don't know the truth, claiming they do, or manipulate it to sway people for whatever reason.

Asking you to look at "The Message" (this sword of the word), and it can be done through Facebook page "Believing is Receiving" Ministry preferably, and where in part this ministry will operate. For it is your opinion that counts to me anyway and sure to others. If you have any comments or encouragement, or even discouragement, you would like to add, please add.

Facebook has allowed me to watch the many people come and the many people go and wonder what that one thing they saw was that caused them to unfriend/unfollow the "Believing is Receiving Ministry" page or not comment. Again, not my battle but God's. I'm curious what that one thing was. I realize when speaking for God, you can't have any errors. I can't even say that there aren't any in this book, even though I went through it with a fine-tooth comb. I don't know if almost counts. The Message has updated 9/2020–9/2024–10/2025 (ironically finished 10/09/2025 and turned over to the publisher the same day a peace deal was made between Israel and Hamas), getting brighter, erasing any recognized darkness found, keeping it simple and to the basic rules and forever holding its place in the Kingdom, turning the work in, looking for my grade, asking God's mercy for anything that may be wrong.

On social websites, and other social websites in mind allows for any to comment on, so all can look into it explored by completing The Message as it continues growing with others' comments, letting it go wherever it goes (grows) as long as nothing is changed in the original, Message, broken down and written in Last Message/William's Testimony ofJesus Christ (a)www.lastdaysmesssage.com, will have to stand, for there will be no other editions except adding Bible scripture shortcuts that have to do with the Word where it is mentioned in the King James Holy Bible. Having a lot of plans if life gives opportunity.

The ball is in your court. My job in part is complete, delivering it to the churches as directed by God—done! And leave it up to you what you do with it. If I understand this right, this does a really good job getting people in church, "your church," with the truth, making all the easier for you pastors' job designed for the times, does it not? Or am I just sadly delusional? Not that I won't try (tried), but this really can't be complete until pointing them to the churches, because once getting them in, need to keep them in. They have been found to be good, and only seven are needed, for there are many good preachings out there and can be part of it, also providing services and past services that are already done. And to think the best is yet to come. I think anyone who wants to be part of it and carries a good message that encourages people with truth can be part of it. We have many, many good preachings out there that should be shared with the world.

Be sure no man deceives you, for many come in the Lord's name, saying Jesus is the Lord, fooling the elect if it were possible... and why putting it all in this book, exposing myself to the light, truth, and history, resting my faith in Jesus Christ, laying it on the line, having faith. What a strong delusion it would be that God didn't call me to make this all up and it would amount to a pile of garbage or be under

the devil's control... asking myself relentlessly, also the churches, if there is word from God you have. It certainly is making a statement and could very well fit with possibilities. It certainly is not my intention to mislead anyone or follow a false Christ.

I am not perfect by any means and do not claim to be. As farfetched as it seems, knowing it was God who sent it, having all these years to think about it, knowing there is no forgiveness for false prophets, really not getting anywhere in the last 14 years except finishing this book for the third time, accountable for its entirety (including grammar), from the first to the last. There certainly is no truth in the devil, so what is the lie and what is the truth?

All that matters to me, really, are the treasures in heaven, not here on earth, and thank the Lord for life giving something to live for because there was a time I didn't want to live. Glad I didn't give up on this destiny as much as I was tempted, being at ease knowing what a good thing this has turned out to be, serving its purpose forever to hold its place. As soon as this letter was complete, realizing the book was done, the anointing dissipated, coming back to carnal ground (happening like this also when the last two books were completed), learning this is how God operates and the third time is going to... Stay tuned! Left with this understanding to struggle with because my mind just can't comprehend it all, and why I will be seeking more anointing that can be done through service, reaching for the next step in this journey to be completed everything makes better sense while in the Spirit, agreed?

Speaking of the truth that sets us (me) free, reaching people for Christ is the work seen ahead. And, if you have anything to add, it would be nice because it is not always easy discerning this direction, knowing the Holy Spirit, which has seven different Spirits to the churches, and I would like to elaborate on with another person's

trusted view is always appreciated. It is the truth and nothing but the truth. Whatever the truth is, is what I (we) seek, speak, and keep.

All you have to do is be you, providing some past ministry you think would be beneficial, and I will be doing what it is I do both of us PROMOTING THE KINGDOM getting people closer to God by pointing them in the right direction, a direction that has been tested, tried, and known to be true! From my past 14 years+ of experience with you folks, you got me through it, so you sure can get anyone through it. And to think the work is already done, along with your weekly services.

Having thought about the 7-Fold Ministry for a long time, figuring how it would work, and with new technology, apps, and programs plus my belief, desire, and vision seeing it come to pass opens the field. I know the devil will try his best to keep this from transpiring and perhaps why has been influencing the church with ulterior messages causing confusion. I can see this go either way because I see some church folk dug in deep already. This would be more for people who don't know Christ YET and are not predisposition with something embedded. Like they say you can't teach an old dog new tricks depending what they have been taught and believe. Time is always a revealer! I figure I will do everything I'm supposed to do and God will do the rest if it is His Will.

A service a day, along with other insight from these selected ministries, will surely give folks the best opportunity to know the Lord like I do and open themselves up for the best God has to offer, like I know of... but it needs to be available, knowing people are hungry for the truth because so many lies are out there. It would be nice to have a grand central station with the same Gospel, truth, and fellowship (family) worldwide we ("I") can get to at any time with a solid Word of God "7-Fold Ministry" with no other bologna to ever contend with,

cluttering the mind up with what could only be considered lies. The goal is to set people free, bombard them with truth, hopefully rubbing off on them, for surely knowing the feeling of bondage of the enemy and how important it was for people to hear what will set them free.

People all over the world, with Israel as the focus, in reach of The Message, will need a continued word of God once getting them in, and found at least these ministries are solid with the truth, who is filled with the Holy Ghost, trusting will continue keeping them in with the best chance possible. A house can't stand divided, and see there is much up for debate, which feel will confidently defend, going out on a limb. Perhaps a limb will be hung from seeing how vicious religious folk and the enemy is because they can't stand what is considered the truth, the truth known with some speculation of things that are not seen with theories, as with anyone else's input to these questions would also be considered THEORIES that may differ.

The only truth that is not certain is what kind of prophet or person of God am I called, wondering what my official title is, or name, and did I represent God, Jesus, Holy Spirit, myself correctly. But most of all, is this hurting Jesus' cause or helping? Am I a false prophet, or do I carry the truth with purpose? God must have had purpose in the way He designed me/this and allowed life to go through with such questions, experiences, coming to the truth that does not fail.

All I had to do was not publish, erase it from visibility, run from it, pack it up, and this all could go away, never to think about it again, AS MUCH AS THE ENEMY WOULD LIKE THAT, which was contemplated often, and God wouldn't allow it, for that page would have been deleted at one time in my life battling the devil and his lies that entered "my" mind being the cause of most of it with what is believed. Yeah right, I think about this every day, all day with thoughts on God, sometimes in dreams, and can't forget, deny... eager to do

this job in what was born to do, and get this over with, for surely weary needing to get this out of my hands, but not until it is ready, into the World Wide Web for starters and can build from there like adding scriptural shortcuts to a digital book along with many other shortcuts in mind NEED HELP, thinking God, where is my helper(s), knowing God has a helper. But won't, as much as was tempted, coming a long, long way and will be judged, scaring me for the Lord I do fear, because surely it will come up, so will make the most of it, defining the purpose in life, knowing this is what I am to do—getting done.

Following my heart, knowing it is the right thing to do, claiming my crown, not letting any man take it, including me by giving it away or not claiming it because of disbelief or someone else's belief, following dreams and inspiration serving the Lord. It is difficult discerning this direction, but all the time, Spirit and work, what was its purpose, beside fulfilling prophecy one way or another, witnessing testimony, pointing people to God is the goal, so what is it hurting besides a few people's pride, ego, and understanding? It is just WORDS! Words that are lived by, for it is the tongue that we will be judged by what's confessed "BELIEVE" from internal; heart, soul, thoughts, PREACH, prophesied... especially what is written in books!

Really, all has been said that is needed in the book, so won't repeat as repetitive already have been, clearly covering it all, thickly applied (SOLID). The 1st, and now this 3rd letter, is for all the church(s) now, and the 2nd letter was more to an individual, but generally it is for individuals that heard say, or have something to say through social media, web, TV, books... to the effect of Revelation 6;2 for a starter, confusing me, and surely the rest of the world prompted to introduce myself, making it a part of the book. I believe Revelation 6;2 is the start of sorrows, beginning with a powerful move of God to remind and redeem what is redeemable before the return of Christ is coming

soon, and anything afterwards will be Gods judgements as He starts the opening of seals and blowing the trumpets signaling a time where war, pestilence, natural disasters, and the Antichrist are coming so be prepared. Some (few) believe the same, but the majority, in my opinion and experience, doesn't and wonder where they learned their knowledge and from who.

I was totally on board with a pastor, and still am except for that, after hearing a sermon on such, baffling me, shaking my head in shock, because if I buy into that theory, for that isn't a life for me or want to represent, for surely it doesn't fit, does it! (And no, that is not an actual question (?), not for me anyway, because love my Lord very much and vice versa; Anyone who opposes that would be the liar, is all that is going to be said.) And certainly, wouldn't want people directed there to hear that, for it isn't the truth if the Bible does not say... and will not say either way but a possibility it could be.

Somehow, I believe my ministry is in part with Revelation 6;2 preparing for the return of THE REAL Christ (is the idea or I am sadly disillusioned). We all have a part preparing a way for Christ to return, who is coming all the sooner. I know God called and prepared me for such a time as this. It is not in my own understanding and appears to fit right on time as God reveals His mysteries. I have to evaluate: am I wrong? Am I deceived? Am I possessed by a demon or Jesus? I am in the boat just like anyone else left to evaluate what's before me and now you, searching for the truth knowing the hardships that will come soon after. Of course, this is just a theory, because God does not show the whole picture, left mysterious for a reason.

It just may be all these (yours, 7-Fold Ministry) pastors' beliefs and just have not heard it yet from them, and would like to know your past views, which are probably recorded, to compare to your present if at all, and anything changed. Or, others paid for Revelation

prophecies that are for sale, and would never buy it to find out NEVER ever (heard enough) and having a good grip on it already don't want to be influenced by someone else's opinion or preaching that has to be paid for. Thinking about trading this testimony for their testimony, for surely, we are in the end days, and it would be best to get people in line with the truth... and so would like to know, because it is a very important time to get in line with God's truths, not the enemy's lies.

This job is finished when allowing the book to do its job by publishing, delivering to the church, hoping to cause a stir. It has for me really getting attention, consuming my life and what I love to do. I have considered packing it up, hiding what was done because I have doubts, and probably always will, because God doesn't show the whole picture sometimes, leading with His truths, Spirit, and circumstances. Because if I knew everything, it would alter the outcome (just like God keeping things mysterious for reasons, sealed up until unsealed).

It is funny how I easily forget, losing faith (sight) in myself even after all that was done and created. Glad to have something to reflect upon, for it wasn't wasted time or in vain, and I can stand behind it. When reading through it, I see all the good (light) that could only be inspired by God's Holy truth and Spirit, which keeps amounting to more, knowing this is what God was conveying so in time, with due diligence, this will be perfected, completed, and eventually serve its purpose, promoting the Kingdom forever hold its place in history.

Having found the key that truly sets me free and can do for them as well. It was this very diversity that allowed for the insight by finding the key, making a huge difference, amounting to raw testimony that many can relate to so they have the key also, reaching people of any addiction, sinful nature, demon, denial, or lies wherever they are in life. All is credited to Jesus, forgiving me (also you), healing me (also

you), loving me (also you), drawing me (also you), making "us" heirs to the Kingdom as children of God. It is all what a person does with it, meaning to reach all, having purpose to know the enemy and the devices that keep people bound to hell, and what sets a person free no matter what you've done, for nothing is too small or big for God. It comes to be great testimony, witnessing the true nature and power of God, conquering the enemy in my life, and therefore, hopefully, many, many lives more.

Networking the Word that is already created can reach many in this time of need under this direction, aiming the bow, wide and between, with these arrows— 33 (already shot and in progress to its targets) meant to penetrate anywhere who has ear and means to listen, reaching far, very far. Coming out of nowhere, and usually the archer is the first on the scene of a battle, spiritual or carnal apparently, for surely motivated. Can't stop God's Word; the devil never has, but only corrupts it, giving other ideas besides the truth; also, by quieting his prophets, preachers, and servants. The truth is all we have, all we need, and all that is to be preached, sought, explored, and embraced to the best of this understanding. When the Holy Ghost confirms something, then it is confirmed and trusted to not lead a person wrong.

The apps that are used read the Bible in every different language and can turn text into any language, like this book, that can be listened to by the push of a button so they HEAR the truth, like on Google Translate, with Israel in sight, knowing it was for them in mind when writing this so they know the truth. Not sure how it will be received; if it has any reminiscence of experiences with churches so far, I am in big trouble, for the synagogue(s) of Satan will not, is not, and will not ever accept this testimony, thirsting for the prophet's blood, reminding me about Elijah... No wonder I feel like running and never turning

back but here it is, putting up, not shutting up, facing the music, torn between all Satan's lies and God's truths.

I love church and have been a bigger fan of WWW preaching in my own home or anywhere in reach of a signal, i.e., driving, working, walking... anywhere, anytime, or just about any place. Finding people (me) are comfortable at home (maybe a little too comfortable, but feel safe), or wherever they feel comfortable watching, listening, participating thanks to WWW that goes just about everywhere besides in an actual church, "yikes" but have my reasons and can participate via WWW and vice versa, where I can also be reached, opening the field, participating every day. Right in my element, it seems, knowing people are hurting and can give them the answers I know working for me all through the WWW is a good start.

So, in part, this ministry, which is written in a book preferably physical books are at cost only (I am finding out are not cheap especially for a good high quality book this deserves), which more than likely will be free (freely as I can give it), always digitally free, and will print a few books, ideally will amount to many, because books stand the test of time, unlike eBooks which need electricity to operate something people are privileged to have or WWW access like those who are incarcerated. Books also have a backside the synopsis on the back cover which can be considered something that was sealed and unsealed by opening it.

Facebook pages and other web pages in mind do this job beautifully, effectively, and surely can do the Lord's work with ease now that it is finished, coming out of the closet so to speak, seeing a world of technology that will be used. Nice getting some rest, knowing for the moment I can say IT IS DONE, seeing a lot of work ahead, moving quickly, Godspeed even, for experience tells me this is going to hit a nerve to some, knowing to get as much done as quickly as

possible before... to be continued. Ready or not, here Jesus comes has something to do with it.

Struggling with the belief is one of the most difficult understandings ever having to deal with and when completely on board, watch out, it's deadly to the enemy while uniting God's people to their full potential, including mine, with Israel in sight. It took 50 years of many, many experiences to reach this point, thankfully following through, for surely I would have become lost when not fulfilling the call, very lost, and love this purpose that suits me well, running with it, doing what I love to do, and that is showing people the way so they can have a good relationship with God, using this life, creating the testimony before you as an example, to be basking in God's approval of "well done" is the goal.

I am a conqueror in the Lord Jesus already, and so are you, all of those who believe and receive the victory, and will go out to conquer more in other people's lives, defeating the enemy, having 33 arrows for spiritual warfare, already shot and in progress to its targets. Someday the enemy will have their way, but not until it is all said and done (the only person that seems to be stopping this is me and the enemy's influence). Perhaps all the controversy made by many other high-profile people on record, including the Pope, will be the fuel to blow this up quickly, seeing some method to the controversy.

Usually not running from a fight, not this one anyway, standing this ground with the armor of God, realizing, believing the enemy can't touch or hurt spiritually until God is done with me, no matter how close the calls are, for surely having many close calls, thanking God, KNOWING God can do it because witnessed it, KNOWING God will see this through if it is His will, KNOWING we all die sooner or later, and would have been gone long ago, so KNOWING there

must be purpose, KNOWING...all too much the Lord is large and in charge, and WE will also be when allowing Him to be ruler in our life.

No telling how, when, and where we will get hit AGAIN, not that we haven't been hit already with the virus, for instance also 9/11, just in the USA not to mention all the other attacks worldly. Was by no mistake, showing how focused people are for control, power, at what cost, and extreme. The next election in 2021, as any and every election, is very important to this country, the USA. It is almost like we are damned if we vote for this person and damned if we pick the other. We are just damned because this will never correct or get better only worse if not handled properly, losing faith in the options available. For one is surely the enemy's choice and has been since last in office just follow the millions sent to his family.

But at least one is predictable, knowing it is in our country's security best interest, showing great return beyond the Democrats', Worlds', and Americans' comprehension, including mine, and impressed with a politician that does what he says. He was/is falsely accused many times because the other side is full of deceit, turning this country upside down by chasing lies, creating lies with investigations, controlling the narrative, while feeding more lies by keeping the focus of them in what took place in the last administration running into the most recent, keeping their leaders out of jail for... exposing the lies, weaponizing government, for that is what liars do. Also, cling together, having a track record of pulling the wool over people's eyes to keep their power, which is destroying America by putting her up for sale or rent, allowing it to be taken over for the new world order where the Mark of the Beast will be implemented here in the USA is the idea, believe that, forever hold the future!

Think the other side cares? No, I don't think so. It is power at all costs, because there is a lot to lose if the truth comes out, so are very

focused! Their candidate after candidate is severely flawed, wondering how such flaws are so promoted, and that's the best they have... It is all about the D after their name. It is all about control of this superpower, and China, among others like Russia, and the enemy's ideology is finding its way back in, wishing these investigation(s) would reveal the truth ABOUT EVERYTHING, not the lies spun, so people can make their own conclusion.

It's like the difference between night and day. These two parties are totally opposite and therefore both cannot be right. Nobody's perfect but for the most part, if you have been noticing and paying attention like I have the Democrats run on lies. Anyone who listens or participates with the agenda of lies, creating lies, spreading lies, supporting lies, believing lies will find out sooner or later you were had, used as a pawn, and may be easier to lie to yourself.

Anyone that doesn't think Donald Trump is an exceptional president getting the job done, running circles around his predecessors, doing exactly what he says getting this country back in shape in a very short period of time are deceived whether you agree or not. USA cannot afford another disaster like Obama / Biden orchestrated and people are lining up to perpetuate the agenda. look at all the chaos in late 2025 and who is instigating it by promoting anarchy. As of 11/01/2025 the government has been shut down for almost a month because Democrats don't get their way to for instance give free health care to the illegal immigrants, they need to keep them in power and why they were allowed in. Donald Trump is becoming an excellent president in my opinion—but he is not perfect and see a few things becoming concerned about.

New York City is so close to become a communist, socialist city ran by a non-Christian who is Muslim will be a cancer to America whom the Democrats are full-fledged behind, how did that happen! It

is the start of letting the enemy in with MORE of a foot hold that will not reverse, not that they're not already in the Government pushing this anti-Christ agenda usually doing with Muslim faithed people.

In my dream I saw bluecoats fighting The redcoats in our modern-day streets everywhere (close combat) on every street with modern weapons. I also saw heavy weapons pointed at our colleges in disguise from dorm rooms (dreams anyway). You see violence already happening and if not handled right it can become worse quickly. This is the start and I don't believe it will slow down so prepare, I am! I keep all these things in the back of my head and keep the favor with God and have peace. Something's going to spark this off and you will have no choice but to fight, defend yourself, or be taken (jailed), die, become slaves for the Beast...is the idea.

Once this enemy is allowed in, or by force completely (which a lot came over our borders lately SERIOUSLY and the cause of a lot upset already, just what the Democrats wanted, chaos), will not go away after getting its foothold and will be the oppressor if not careful, because it is their desire to make us slaves and to serve the Beast. We see what it is like over there, thinking the mark is already used in concentration, work camps for people of faith, any faith in a God, wanting to be the god in their life only, erasing any Word of God—reminding you of anything?

Until Jesus comes, who is coming all the more sooner, things will continue getting worse, going down that road, because the enemy is very focused, OBVIOUSLY taking the attention away in a quick moment, controlling the narrative, seeing how this virus crippled the world, knowing more is to come in other forms of attacks from many directions, with much devastation is the idea. The Bible also tells us this. Ahhhhh, I know why some (most) people don't like prophets

trying to silence them, because they know the truth, insisting upon the truth, and all they settle for and speak.

Big trouble all around and just will not go away. Realize we are dawning on the days, and much is at stake in a most important time to this country, USA, as well as the world, for the devil surely is trying to take over at ANY cost, for the cause, NEEDING power NOW to pull off more destruction, control, the new world order where the Mark of the Beast is about to be implemented eventually because the Bible tells me so knowing it is coming, seeing its possibility. Just be aware and open your eyes and ears and can say you have been warned... and totally understand the out-of-sight-is-out-of-mind concept people prefer to live by.

Big tech now is censoring things they don't agree with, and maybe they won't like what is said, knowing many, on top of many, on top of many, won't agree because of what they have been told and how my thoughts differ. The Word of God is clear about those who add to the prophecy of Revelation or anything else in the Bible. So, if Revelation/Bible does not say and people filled it with conjecture of man's imagination, know that it can't be trusted. My THEORIES, which are explored with insight, don't claim to be fact.

It is always good to approach things not certain with optimism, for my views differ extremely from what MANY have already preached and blasted all over the web, television, books, sermons, really confusing me (and the rest of the world, including my mom—she will be 2nd to the 1st (me) to receive this testimony as soon as it is ready, for surely has caused disagreements, caring for my mom very much and NEED for her to hear the truth to the best of this understanding ASAP).

Also, those close to me, who actually know me, hoping this book will open their eyes, feeling that passionately about it, and surely, they

know I'm not that person some preachers painted a very despairing picture of, and perhaps why work so hard at this, saying the devil is a liar. Then again, I could be very wrong about all this with a strong delusion which would have to be sent by God regardless. For I care about them, as well as EVERYONE, really, not wanting them hurt anymore by lies the enemy provides; but love and truth in what my Savior does. Seeing the battle ahead, but it is not my battle, for it is the Lord's, resting comfortably that His will be done according to His Word and this work, facing fear bluntly by fulfilling this call.

God didn't bring up a fighter who stands his (this) ground, certainly, who doesn't know the meaning of backing down, for it is not in my (Holy Spirit's) vocabulary and will not be used for such a time. There must be a reason, for it is He that created me, knowing it suits this purpose well... READY as will ever be, before not able and already pretty broken. Thank you, Jesus, for this victory, with Christ (we) I am everything, and without Christ (we) I am nothing.

It's time, folks—would have to be! Time to get your priorities straight concerning what is about to take place right around the corner is the best of guesses. Looking back in the last 14 years, many writings concerning the future (my hunch, in what God is saying) are right on track, hitting the nail on the head, so feel strongly about this—all of this really and believe why my testimony has come to light.

It is done thinking Lord, what an impressionable, inspirational, delightful read. Well, for some knowing the enemy has much to say contrary, and should put fear in them if anything. Introducing you to the Spirit that created this, which was in abundance to write, so therefore should return it back to the reader; my inquiring mind would like to know and therefore will put it to work and see. All this, which is surely counted as a miracle itself in my life, having substance, and

could only come from Him as I searched for the truth. You will know them by their fruits.

Any time a person acts as advocate, representing as the Lord's spokesman, know God is no one to play prophet or teacher with, for there is no hope for false prophets or teachers. Weighing heavy with much consideration, can say, "It is DONE." —11/01/2025 regardless of anyone's input, favorable or not! For it is God who is my judgment that only matters.

A prayer—God help my/our soul and lead us not into temptation, for we are hungry for a fresh word from heaven. We thank you for your truth (WORD) and Son, Jesus Christ, making us whole again in Your sight, allowing us to be heirs unto the Kingdom, unlimiting our potential to be sons and daughters of God, revealing your truths in what sets us free indeed, is, was, and will be forever, as this prophet's testimony stands as complete.

May God bless (receive) you even more becomes the experience, that is, "IF YOU BELIEVE."

38. 1ST LETTER TO THE CHURCH 06/05/2013, (EDITED)

{This is a narrative salvaging as much testimony as possible. The letter sent to the Pastor, among another preacher, was a mess with lots of typing errors, also with darkness that crept in that did not belong. Could not possibly expect them to take it seriously, and how God made me accountable for words, provoking a grammar class before publishing any more work, has SURELY paid off. Also added comments to this first letter because of the developments that have occurred, updating the results. Mainly, the substance remains. It's just written better, along with comments regarding what was taking place during this time. This is what the 1st letter should have meant and looked like if I had taken more time refining the work to make it more acceptable. Rushed the book before its time and wished I would have waited until now to present the first letter to the church. Then again, it must be part of the script, happening this way because dreams were prophetically seen before happening, lining up precisely, accepting it's all part of the process. I have also concluded that if I hadn't written the first book, making it public, I may have never entertained the thought of writing a better one. Couldn't let that mess be the last say according to destiny as written. God does work in mysterious ways. Believed and obeyed, doing as God asked, or guessing I was out of line, jumping the gun, giving my position away, moving quickly, fixing errors.}

Because I believe I am a person of God, I feel I can open up to you with the vision of how things are seen and believed. After obeying God, I became aware of the content of this letter and concluded to be careful about what's being told. Prophets must be careful with their words. After reading all that is written, I paused, realizing Revelation

is at work, anticipating someone to receive The Message and the movement that's presented. It is a concept eagerly being expressed within me, written down, provoked through the Holy Spirit to produce work. You are the first to witness this view, presented today and released, believing God's will be done, receiving The Message.

Getting lost sometimes because the future is not certain in some areas of life, though some are. One thing that's surely known to me is God's pouring out His presence heavily in my life, overflowing into yours if you receive and believe the work before you. I may believe too much, or in other words, may have bitten off more than I can chew, envisioning as a knight to the Holy Spirit when kept right with God, allowing Him to do His purpose in my life and now yours. It was seen before anyone even knew of my existence. My grandmother told my mom she was to have a son and he (me) is to be a prophet of God. Grandma said that is what God told her. Sure enough, my mother found out she was pregnant, and I do consider myself a prophet of God.

The devil tries to say I am a false prophet and should stop before going to hell. Is that not just like Satan? How can I deny the Holy Spirit? Getting drenched in the Spirit, crying most times with tears of heavenly joy—what else could it be? Doing God's will, speaking the truth and light in my life is getting harder to contain. It's getting brighter serving God, bringing forth the truth known. The belief is great, with glory unto God that serves my fellow man.

Seeing how television and networking via the World Wide Web will be my main tools for learning more of God's Word through His great televised preachers. Even as a child, I sought church on television, practicing preaching like the man on TV. It was my desire to learn the truth, though it was learned mainly the hard way—going the wrong way in life by process of elimination—thoroughly schooled.

If you could witness the experiences I've had with some churches and how the devil works through people in the church to reject the light and truth so spoken. It has been vicious but revealing in many different ways. Believing God allowed it to happen, seeing the church for what it really became in all its bent ways. It seems my whole life has been in the trenches, fighting for salvation in my own life because this walk didn't come easy. Being a veteran, I can use the experience to help others know where to go, what to do, and what to avoid. Enduring many things in order to become solid and devoted to those who serve the Lord Jesus Christ. Having seen life from many perspectives and ready to divulge what was learned. Satan tries to shake me, though here I am, not too shaken, ready to make a documentary while getting on with goals and endeavors I hope to achieve.

Over time, The Message, "Believing is Receiving," has been developing into what stands as complete today. It is a message that has been made tangible, changing the lives it touches. The Message is a masterpiece in its own right, asking your criticism with honesty that you may discern what concerns "Believing is Receiving." The Message is a gift to the entire world if accepted.

Seeing The Message is not a welcome sight, and by no means lecturing anyone. I'm just doing my job. People take offense at what is written, thinking I am teaching them something they already know or don't want to know. Some people's ego and pride will keep them from growing any further with God. I write down to let all know where I'm coming from and what is believed, feeling charged by God's Holy Spirit to reach out to you, introducing myself. The Message is a treasure for me, and I believe it can be for the rest of the world.

The Message means a lot to me and a few others, but maybe not so much to many others. For instance, my mother's copy was in a

closet for some time because of my stepfather's influence, not agreeing with The Message or the messenger. So, I found it hidden away just as the enemy would like it—with no purpose. My mom could really use that message as a reminder, just as everyone can. The Message keeps on giving. That is why it's displayed where it can be seen every day and can be reminded. Surely it is a struggle of principalities at work, and I have witnessed them my whole life. The Message is on display now, praising God for my mother, making its presence in her home—amen.

There is a mixed bag regarding how The Message affects people, along with the aspects it has in my life. I surely trust my own mother. She knows, but not to the extent expressed in this letter. I would like to have shared all the results but didn't feel the time was right yet. Now knowing why—because it's not my timing, but God's.

The Message was mowed over till what stands as complete. Now that it's finished, I can't help but share its purpose and don't feel the rest of the world believes like we may do. Seeing, believing the whole concept, reassured with the anointing of God's Holy Spirit that is good, holy, and correct. In being a better servant, receiving more of God's love, brighter and brighter as the days pass. Having a lot of love and anointing at times, then knowing what to do with, wishing to share what's also known as living water and how anyone can obtain it. You may already know, but asking the Spirit to reveal to you like He has to me. Somehow, feeling this letter might just do that. Praise God and seek to grow on that, sharing the wealth of the anointing found.

Now is the time to get doing what God has shown me to do, seeing a build-up of anointing dammed up, about to be released for God's glory. Tension mounts getting bigger, stronger, ready to show force. Believing I have the ability to release God's great Spirit, feeling a true agent for Trinity as this word releases the move for God. Does anyone

else sense Jesus is ready to come all the sooner, waiting for the Church to take position, making up the body? I am, as a "Last Day Messenger," meaning the Day of the Lord is closer, feeling charged, favored in the sight of God, and pleased to do His work.

The Church needs to come together, putting down walls of denomination, ego, pride, self-righteousness... It is about Jesus and what He did. PERIOD. I pray for the coming of Christ, anticipating His great return, hearing trumpets, wanting to start blowing it. Our/my enemies are in full force trying to sell their propaganda off as the word of God on almost every other street corner, any denomination you like. We just need this message, The Message, to reach everyone with a little counseling, breaking that demonic spirit with the truth The Message speaks of in Jesus Christ so well.

No more hiding, becoming hard to contain the light. The light is meant to shine brighter and I will not hide it in my life. It will shine, God willing. Cautiously reaching out, feeling in a sticky position right now because there is an array of different responses regarding how The Message affects people, preachers, and the enemy. By witnessing the carnage, thinking the world cringes, being reminded of what is around the corner. Out of sight is out of mind. Some people are not that warming to me or The Message. I'm guessing they'd rather put me out of sight because of my testimony exposing myself as a proclaimed Son of the Light so believed and not deceived. Only a prophet of God would produce, preach, teach, and reach people with The Message. When hearing from God, it usually started with "son," guessing that it is a Son of Light. Seems fitting to what's understood, believing everything is in tune with God's clock, time, and Revelation, being His prophet, believed and confirmed with outstanding assurance.

I am a messenger, Last Day Messenger, as understood correctly, regardless of the fact I was once addicted to hard drugs and crime to support the habit off and on in life until finally delivered. A major discrepancy, one would say? People change, especially when a call has been placed on their life. I am human, going down that road, taking witness to everything, using it now for the glory of the Lord, helping folks find a way out while understanding humanity in all its forms. God allowed that perspective, so I really knew the problem of the flesh, sin, and how to deal with those problems of today with real solutions.

Going into a second year taking Psychology with respectable grades for what classes were passing. Obviously, grammar was not one of them. I don't use hard drugs or steal anymore. The devil really beat me up in the process, disabling me physically. The goal is to tell people how to get out of the devil's grasp, in which many are trapped. Doing it a couple of times myself, getting out of the devil's grasp, I am sure I can touch other lives, feeling sanctified to do just that, praying much with thanks because I am saved from the wrath of sin with which this world will contend with, seeing it, seeing much. God has allowed me to see, being in a unique position in life, witnessing from a perspective, seeing what is going on in this life. Also, how it affected the world as well as my own life. Seems with that and what's believed is making an explosive impact. What do you think? Because surely, I am on to something. (Thank you, Jesus.)

What is said will offend some to the degree that they will try to put me out of sight and mind. There is a lot to say and it is to the whole world, and that's why I'm getting this out now. That is a big order, but it seems plausible with what God has in mind as it comes together. It will shine all the brighter in those dark places where sin hides in

people's lives, expecting opposition, because the enemy hates the light.

I need to take my place in the body, get with God's army, and feel more at ease. As of now, I am rejected, feeling like the one-man gang, so to speak. The body is stronger in numbers, knowing the devil has been meaning to do much harm to all of us, having many armies. This I know, having had a lot of close calls, literally by the skin of my teeth. Angels must have shown favor on my behalf, for there really is no other explanation except knowing God had His hand on me. Thank you, Jesus. It wasn't until this point in life that things came together, allowing me to grasp what my life is really about. The enemy also knows now, being served notice with the expression of this work. Surely, I would be tried to death by some for my beliefs, and that's why I'm coming full steam ahead, aiming to be successful in God's goals.

Spending a life between this world and the gates of hell, back and forth, surviving, now paving a way for others, spilling the proverbial beans, not hiding my true identity in Christ anymore. It was kept under wraps until I was ready to accept this destiny completely, handle the responsibility, and fulfill the call, added to God's perfect timing, and came together in sync, therefore released. There is a lot of work ahead, and I am feeling ready, finally, to get on with it. I cannot do it on my own. By the grace of God in Jesus Christ, I am still here, feeling rejected as of now because minds are too closed to accept what's being put down (including mine at times). It's their loss and the enemy's gain, feeling like hitting the jackpot with Trinity in life. The time is now getting real about life, showing everyone there is a God that loves them much, giving His only begotten Son, Jesus Christ, for atonement for every one of our sins brought to Him, providing the Holy Ghost, setting us free with life abundantly.

It is time to "move, move," as a drill sergeant barks, sensing urgency, knowing the time is near. Now that The Message is tangible, in the light for all to see, some will try putting out this light. Satan is dreading the coming day, extinguishing any light possible to exist in darkness, doing that evil deed as light is shined in that direction, doing my part, needing some help handling it. Seeing a much bigger part while under attack, knowing strength is in numbers. Satan hates the light. I have light, speaking light to the world. This sword of the Word is sharp, very sharp, called tried and true, a.k.a.—The Message. The body of Christ works congruent to how well we fellowship with one another, keeping ourselves as sharpened instruments in the good fight.

Hopefully, my one friend that I am trying to hold on to (added 2024 bad mistake or God allowed it to teach me well because if anything, he brought me down and will continue. I learned some things, but in the end was nothing but a drain and waste of time, always going against the grain when it really counted, acted up the most, diverging me from my goals. Regardless, I pray for him, I thank him, and only hope for the best and will not give up on him, just as God doesn't give up on us, regardless), comes to know what Jesus is about, looking to find true brothers and sisters in Christ. He appeared not saved and curious about the energy in my life and what's making me so lively. He thinks I'm back on some really good drugs. But I assure him it is the Holy Spirit putting Jesus Christ in the equation, the human equation, and my Salvation is covered by the Blood of Jesus, opening doors to a loving relationship with God. He does not quite understand, and neither does much of the world, and they will not until, well, they believe and receive.

Being that both of us are familiar with drugs, all the endorphins and dopamine that are released by certain drugs are natural chemicals

in our brain. I also explained how the Spirit releases these chemicals, hormones, and other natural sensations dealing with the body, like adrenaline, that have a loving feeling naturally throughout our body with great sensations no drug compares to. We are designed to praise and receive God's touch through worshiping, if we receive best known to me as the Holy Ghost.

I explained to him also that this is how to come before God with a clean slate. The Blood of Jesus Christ, the Son of God, was shed to save us from sin as a sacrifice which God accepts. God sees the Blood that we plead and not the sin. Adding Jesus to the equation keeps us in the Book of Life. Living a sin-free life keeps our slate clean since every sin has been forgiven, resulting in an exaltation of God. Keeping our slate polished and shiny will allow others and self to see the reflection of God in us/me. The more God is in us, the more we start looking and acting like Him. All this opens the door for an anointing from God's Holy Spirit to come rushing in ever so mightily.

I told him he will know it once the Spirit gets a hold of him. He is puzzled. Like a lot of folks, he doesn't know what he is missing. I am afraid he may not make it, along with so many others, though seeing a lot of progress in him. His life is being touched with the thought of Holy God witnessed by this prophet becoming a friend, allowing me to be me. He is a priceless friend in my life, hopefully drawing his life closer to God. Anymore, I have to be careful what company is kept, seeing that some just can't get on this level. God allows certain people in your life for reasons that may not be within our own reasoning. They say keep your friends close but your enemies closer. Life is not always pretty and is God's way, not ours, for His purpose. All we have is today, so you should make the most of it, cherish it, enjoy it while you can, for tomorrow isn't promised.

A lot of people do not receive. I would like to see him as a believer as well as others, and cannot give up on him or anyone, feeling that way about everyone. I want to turn my friend(s), as well as others, to the Cross so I will have more true brothers and sisters in Christ, doing God's work. Leave no one behind, not one. If that one is lost, then find them, for eternity is at hand. My prayers are with you all. It is written down so everyone can receive God's blessings if they will. That is where the book will come in, simplifying The Message (and the King James Version Holy Bible) for everyone regarding how life reflects upon it as testimony for today.

I'm feeling the heat, wishing I would have better prepared for this day. Evil seems to lurk everywhere, also anticipating the return of Christ that's coming ever sooner. Satan is trying to disrupt the plan; after all, that is his job—to pull off his plan. It is heading to all-out war sooner or later. BELIEVE THAT, for it is written. The enemy has also been preparing for such a time by those bent on jihad, for instance. Without being in tune with Christ's armor, I would have perished long ago, keeping silent, not having a real direction to go, but cannot be silenced anymore. Knowing where I want to go; I just did not see the way right then. Keep pressing forward, feeling I must move now, getting with the people of God and start training for the days to come, seeing destruction and death around every corner in my dreams, knowing the time is near—would have to be.

The Sons of Light conquer with the sharp Sword of the Word, penetrating with their mouth. The truth needs to be known, and I will shout it probably die doing it, praise God. My soul is all for it, and the Spirit within me has no fear. Watching this world crumble its way to hell, realizing we are much in need of awareness that we are in the end days, anticipating Jesus Christ's return. With this insight, as a Last Day Messenger, I feel it would be my job to get The Message out there,

feeling charged. Finding it no surprise that most of the preachers have abilities reaching the masses via television and W.W.W. It is for the churches to come together and wake up the body. Everyone has their part, no part small or big just as much as they take on, seeking support to work on the goals, the movement asking the church to recognize this title and be embraced for what it is worth.

Time is now running with what I have, motivated to spread the word written. I have lost the crowd that once was looking for new fellowship and feel confident to be that man seen as a messenger of the Lord. Not sure the world's ready for what has been said, feeling vulnerable because it is hard telling the good guys from the bad guys, along with some harsh experiences that have been witnessed. They're out to do me harm. People do not believe it is me or could be me, thinking it over, looking at the work before me, remembering all those dreams, and concluding it is so and many times did not believe it myself. Cannot deny all the Holy Spirit in my life, telling Satan he is a liar. My cup runneth over. Walking cautiously, taking account of everything around me, trying to keep God first.

Comments: If anything, I knew the Pastor and one other are children of God, and that's why I shared this letter, the very first letter to the church with a framed "The Message." Pastor activated progression in my walk with God and was the one that always, always had a prophetic word. Put a lot on the church, giving me a release regardless of whether they wanted to be a part of it or not, allowing me to get out what the Holy Spirit stirred within. God put them in my life for reasons starting to realize, recognized from the beginning, starting some time ago, that they have and will be a part of my life.

Knowing that not all things are meant to be, and accepting the reality of it all as a learning experience with each new day as the dream remains the same. I learned some realities through my experience as I

believed God was showing me something about the problems within the Church and myself today and how it gets divided for various reasons. I believe God has an ultimate place where fellowship will make way, putting my trust in Jesus to redeem me. It's all I have but is sufficient, as believed and received this destiny according to God as understood. God has given the vision and will to carry the assignment out with the concept of people to help. It is a team effort, finding those teammates—priceless. God gives people options, like being a player, coach, cheerleader, fan, water boy, or even to be on the opposing side. God knows all, allows all, controls all, and IS ALL!

I was reluctant to share with just anyone because I knew, once out there, I would have to defend myself and know how much some really do not like me because of what's written and what it represents. Putting my trust in very few. It's always been like that, helping walk out my call even through my greatest sins, needing to take my place in the body, hoping people understand from this point of view that this is a team effort. In essence I was in hiding, apparently waiting for the moment, learning how to survive and looking for a place to belong, knowing destiny has been waiting, thinking just to build it, seeing the possibilities.

I just could not reach out to anyone with it right then, though I had to get it out, and Pastor became "it" in my life at the time, writing the first book, which is the foundation of this book—practicing, I guess, learning the ropes. Others helped but put most of my time into their ministry, giving a release needed and why God pointed me in their direction. Spiritual warfare to the hilt accompanied every step of the way from the moment it was clear what my intentions were. Displayed some characters I could rewrite, much like this book, because my understanding is showing a side, getting better. We have a real enemy that should not be taken lightly. When one does is when much havoc

can develop in life, for I am a witness. Seeing a bright, bright future and insisting on being part of it, wanting everyone to be a part of it. That is a goal to open this door no man can shut.

Watch out! The King is near, ready to make His presence. That is The Message's purpose anyway—making people aware, doing my job. Would have to believe the title Last Day Messenger will not necessarily mean will see the last day or that it is actually the last day. It is the last of something that is coming, starting something new, getting closer as it is being preached about concerning the Day of the Lord. God's timing causes us to know that centuries could be considered a blink of God's eye, but consistent to the Word, has He not fulfilled what has been spoken!

Seeing a role my entire life has been educated and prepared to do. Have been behind enemy lines learning what keeps people (me) bound to that side, many times mingling with evil. Thank God, in Christ's name, made it back after straddling the fence most of my life, thankfully not getting caught up on the other side. Believing I am alive to do my part—this part. Along the way, I picked up insight regarding how the enemy moves upon people to sin and defeat their will. After battling with my own issues, becoming a conqueror (thank you, Jesus), I feel I can pave a way, conquering a way in their lives with Jesus, also feeling inspired to shine light on the path for others to see a way out of Satan's grip. Need to move now and materialize this duty to God and that purpose that is so believed. Everything makes better sense in the light, agreed?

Hoping the movement will be felt throughout the world. The Sons of Darkness will oppose it, and fighting would seem imminent. A Holy War it is! It is written, so prepare—I am. The Message and movement have potential to significantly change lives, significantly changing mine, hoping it changes yours ever more. People need to hear the

Word, allowing their soul opportunity—a way out of the grip. I am very much in love with the concept! Everyone can, with some obedience; that is the idea. Obedience is judged by our actions to God's direction. If we move at a snap of a finger, it makes our Master love us all the more, being responsive to His voice. Someday I will share this letter with the world, coming in the name of Jesus, the Son of the Highest, I cannot, will not, nor dare not deny.

Time seems to be becoming of the essence and feeling charged—really charged. There are great plans for The Message. The Message, a book called Last Days Message/Williams Testimony of Jesus Christ sentence for sentence of The Message explained, broken down to the best of this understanding to be written. Plus, the introduction exploiting the Holiness of its content and how it applies in life. A King James Bible and people with open arms will believe, resulting in great salvation, seeing bounty, bounty, bounty—all for the Lord's purpose. It is worth a try! Besides, it is the business of the Lord we serve to exalt Him any way we can. This is how it was chosen for me to do it, seeing a lot of potential and will act. Feeling as a groom waiting for the bride. It is a love affair that has been waiting for some time to be finalized with great expectations. It is all for Christ's Glory. (Holy, Holy, Holy is He. His love endures forever. [Repeat])

Need help, help keeping this movement alive and thriving. If the enemy had his way, it would have been uprooted quickly not that it wasn't attempted. Watch and see the opposition once loose. Having been putting The Message out there, some treat it like an article of war not just from Muslim society, but also an evil brood that seems to be prevalent here in my home area and have learned well from it. Living across from a mosque at one time, I felt the heat. I am practically a man by myself right now, looking for my part in the body of Christ as it comes together. We have a real enemy, and I will not stand down

anymore, denying my destiny in Christ. Standing alone, being exposed to the light, feeling vulnerable, not seeing the entire world embracing what is said. You will know them by their fruit.

Ask Father God to reveal His revelation to you and ask what your part will be in this movement. I have a feeling this movement will result in much salvation and also conflict because the enemy will come against it. It is not for me to judge God's business and what is about to come or how it comes, just the servant doing my part, believing, receiving, and doing my duty sharing the wealth, preparing for conflict and glory. No more hiding. It is "show time." As I'm finding out, light is hard to keep hidden in darkness. The light in my life conquers the darkness in this world. Getting antsy having a beautiful concept and would like it to grow, seeing how fruitful it will be. The time is now to put all this to work together while able.

I would like to travel via WWW, visiting the churches in mind, vocalizing the good news, and looking forward to fellowshipping with you all (?) and ready to preach. If anything, I do feel like a Last Day Messenger delivering The Message—hallelujah—having to wait, finding out more. I do not have a degree but have been taught through old school as a prophet of God. Words come to mind, put on paper with truth, light, and assurance to the best of this understanding, coming out effectively, touching to me anyway. It has been materializing, having a good grip on the things of God and like to write about it. It is starting to become apparent, as showing much passion for the Gospel of Jesus Christ, loving my job in the process, having a call being fulfilled.

Putting this vision on anyone's plate who is willing to eat because it's time to digest what is happening in the world and how God seems to be moving with fresh bread, hot out of the oven. Get it while it is hot and slap some butter on it—a meal fit for Elijah. Hope The

Message does not seem insignificant going out of my mind. There is a logjam envisioned, getting enormous, ready to release soon, seeing the ability to reach great numbers in a quick moment all thanks to the World Wide Web reaching far, my bow. The Sons of Darkness will become aware and do their part in an attempt to put out this light spoken of, so I am thoughtful of every move. I am one man right now in my belief, alone, finding a way to keep the light burning as much as possible, and that's why I'm reaching out to you, not knowing what the remedy was and asking God to reveal it to you.

Not a saint, and at one time in life was far from it—but working on it. A man that has been righting the many wrongs in my life and has come a long way. God has been drawing me closer and closer. I am one who overcame many ways all glory to Jesus Christ now ready to share my experiences. Life is making sense now while obeying, following through, basking in God's love, making a great example of what Jesus can do in a life. As life materializes before my eyes, I walk cautiously, hopefully not offending the Lord with bad behavior, being all I can be, achieving favor. Pray for me to be successful in God's endeavors and not be a failure already feeling successful, wondering how much more might occur, and needing fellowship with people that support holy behavior, knowing surely, I can't do this by myself. Much has been endured, bringing to my conclusions.

Working on a book (the first book), hoping it is ready before the end of this year. It seems like the same situation updating two years to the date later with the second book. Also see documentaries talking about "These Days Anymore." All this is destiny in mind. Once the enemy knows my intentions in the world, he will seek me out, wanting me harmed, and won't get me until... What can one do? Not fulfill my destiny in the Lord envisioned? Thinking not, and therefore why

continuing laboring (labor of love) for this word, getting blessed in the process (thank you, Holy Ghost), coming full steam ahead.

It is a concept that is to be birthed; ready or not, coming eagerly, and cannot contain it any longer and overjoyed to share the wealth found. It is my duty to share everything known about the Trinity. Let God touch your life with the truth so spoken. Let it be known what is needed through the Holy Spirit guiding us. The truth needs to be told. Seeing it, believing it, and receiving it greatly. With Jesus in the equation, there are no limits to seeing great things. Daring to say that God longs to be with us intimately of course, not on our terms unless the terms are also His. God indeed loves "us" very much.

Hoping a great wealth of anointing comes with this introduction to those who believe. Having a Holy Ghost of a time producing it. Love to write and looking forward to more, seeing time to deliver what's already here as more presentable so I can get credit. God is good and wants to be the most He can be in all of our lives. Open your mind and receive all which Christ seeks all of us children to come together, preparing His way. This, as mentioned, is a good start, blowing me away, and if I did not witness it, would never have believed it, still left a little puzzled. It has to be. Leaving you and me with this to evaluate, looking forward to fellowship in some fashion someday.

Cautiously reaching out to you, not wanting to mislead you, providing truth and light, leaving it up to you what to do with it—a responsibility not taken lightly. Having stopped in my tracks after realizing, reading the rhetoric before me and now before you, that I am a prophet of God, this is The Message and my calling to share the news as mentioned. I have to do it now before not being able to, because my physical being tells me I am opening a can of worms, speaking of a fight the world dreads coming surely as prophesied. It's

the Lord's battle, not necessarily mine, and I see fighting in the near future. I am a messenger preaching The Message, giving insight to what is coming as written.

May God bless all those who "believe." With that, I hope this letter will open doors God seeks to be opened. Ready or not, here comes Jesus is my understanding. Have run out of places to hide the light in my life, feeling it would be a sin not to share The Message, and will stand here now or forever hold my peace, place, crown, glory to the highest, shining amen.

39. 2ND LETTER TO THE CHURCH 10/2015 (EDITED)

Another Ministries

This is the way of sharing the great news, believing God is directing my steps. I am very pleased to present what's called the Last Day Message. I love Another Ministries and watch occasionally since it's available online, praise God, along with a few churches being part of my regiment, mostly via the web. Thanks for the great work keeping the Word of God preached. I love how you present with authority in your voice when preaching the Word. Also, I have seen your ministry in another vision and will leave it for another day when it actually comes to pass, knowing why God would show any difference.

Your ministry was one of the first ministries to take interest in the message "Believing is Receiving," and thank you for your support. That little bit of encouragement went a long way in helping me believe in myself a little more—thank you. I had a huge bout with doubt for a long time, finally having to let go and let God faithfully take control of my crazy life. It's not really crazy, but those hearing it might think it was crazy because, well... because that's more believable. That little bit of encouragement also kept me going because it doesn't come easy from a few others that were also reached out to, having experiences with wondering whether it was really God's family. I do see it's a lonely place being a prophet and learned people could care less what God is doing in life today concerning this call. They literally ran me off. Regardless, the disappointments are what molded this prophet for today with the Word God put in my hand to write about.

I had to experience it since it was prophetically seen from several dreams before happening concerning that moment in time, giving

assurance that it was all part of the plan. All that is asked is that individuals tell me straight what they think of this work before them, regardless of the content of the response. It's almost like pulling teeth or asking for a kidney to get a response from other Christian organizations. Why? I may never know. The content needs to be read from START TO FINISH, INCLUDING THE WRITER'S NOTES AT THE END, please, because you, Another Minister, among many others, were in mind when writing the writer's notes. I do believe you are the exception because God showed you as one of the churches that I am believed to reach out to. It's going to be interesting seeing how this pans out, but I'm putting my trust in God and the Holy Spirit.

This presentation is history in my eyes. Of course, beauty is in the eye of the beholder, and I'm hoping for some feedback from my peers and teachers. A lot of Spirit went into writing it, and I believe I should return some back to the reader. You will know it by its fruit; hopefully, you will get a jolt reading it anyway. Having remained hidden until this time, assuming at God's discretion, I saw the importance of remaining discreet, waiting for His timing, not necessarily mine. Also, it's not that I didn't try with a few churches and was thoroughly disappointed at what was witnessed, and I can't really blame them. Since I didn't completely believe in myself, I couldn't blame anyone else. I finally came to believe my position and can move more securely regardless of anyone else's approval. I have to go and want to go, so really, I don't have much choice unless giving up this destiny according to Christ!

Sentence 29, probably the hardest sentence for me to express, conveys some of the disappointments along with good experiences I had personally with the church. It was hard to write because I forgave them and moved on but believed it was meant to be included. I have another manuscript about my life coming soon with more personal

testimony regarding life and what influenced it. The testimony will be attached to this work before you that is always free on Facebook, for sale as a book (UPDATE 8/2020: books will be free or at cost to print only depending on quality IF they want; also, the website will publish the complete manuscript FREE). I have no intention of being specific about any church that may have brought me to my conclusions but will testify about my experiences with modern-day churches like some of the mega ones and how they are operated. Maybe, again, this prophet didn't belong.

Prophets are not usually a welcome sight, taking it that way anyway and not too dismayed. Maybe they think I am the false one and may never know what they thought because no one will take the time to express it. That's not like God's people saying nothing about something of this magnitude. It doesn't rent space in my head anymore because what matters is what God says about me, guessing, looking for confirmation. I believe God wanted me to share about my experiences, which were not all good, and why they were written. If receiving this letter means a favorable impression, that's not necessarily about your ministry talking generally about some personal experiences that have been endured and witnessed. It's known to me anyway what churches didn't make the cut under the current circumstances—let's put it that way.

God must have a place for me. You may already see my battles in life, realizing why I don't mix well with some. Maybe even my own place or domain can in some way be called God's House, being my Father has so many houses already, and I would like to exploit what is already here because we have some dynamite preachers that should be shared with the world. I would like to share with the world anyway, getting people in line with preaching that is tried, true, and of course WB approved. God mentioned seven churches in Revelation, and it

seems appropriate to have a service for every day of the week, keeping up with what God is doing from several varieties of His good preachers.

It's a great idea, as I am still looking for the remainder of churches to fill the order, and all thanks to web technology that makes it possible to have a new service daily. Wow is all one can say! I don't know? I really don't know, seeing no harm in believing such a great concept I would personally like to achieve through networking via the web. It seems plausible with a little effort. A good church service a day will surely keep the devil away. It's that crazy dream at work again that I keep pursuing it, believing Revelation is my guide. The devil attacks me with doubts like I don't belong because of the rejection experienced, thinking it's me not belonging in God's House. Funny how the mind can be our worst enemy.

It really gets confusing asking if that was really God's House and, if so, will it not be one of the seven churches that will certainly not be mentioned as an approved church? I guess it's not the church that needs a prophet though much could be said but sinners that don't know the church need this prophet as my part becomes understood. They need direction. Once getting those in, they need appropriate churches to keep them in and surely don't want to lead them to any disasters such as that witnessed, coming as a pathfinder for the lost, giving a variety for different folks.

Now that it is finished until further correction, which really lies in the grammar, not the substance I am at a loss, becoming considerably depressed. It happened like this when my first book came out (not available) also. I don't know if it's coming down off the saturation of anointing because the service is complete, or being chastised by God for not producing better work on His behalf, knowing that has to be an issue. A few other things crossed my mind as well, knowing I failed

miserably with the first book, provoking me to take a Grammar class before publishing any more work. I paid spiritually for some time for that error, assuring you it was a sight.

The book gave me the anchor to stand on in life and what life was becoming. It may have been poorly written, but it gave me something to believe in to be used as a stepping stone to a more finished product, like this, for instance. My impression was that it was a rough draft made public, having not much choice but to clarify what God was trying to say. Regardless, that baby flew with the word God was trying to convey but looked shabby, to say the least, and embarrassing. It was a necessary step that was made because there was no return once made public. I jumped in faithfully, learning how to stay afloat. It was a sink-or-swim moment because giving up or going back wasn't part of the script.

In deep, surviving, seeing where this river flows. My spirit was interrupted with much carnal disposition, being attacked consistently, aggressively, and productively, and I did not know how to handle it. This really showed in my work. This is all new, getting better acquainted, leaving a lot of wrinkles in the work. That is why I must receive help in writing a better finished product, knowing someone like a professional to correct it grammar-wise or just learn. It's practice while working on the foundation, giving me the stability to keep working it. As with anything in life, all I can say is I'm making steps closer to my destiny the enemy can't take.

Looking for more service as we communicate right now, besides the book that is being finished on the side. It's hard to believe in yourself if no one else will matter in your life, and that may be why I'm still single. I know wholeheartedly what is coming in the way of hardship, off and on the battlefield. This will be hitting soon. It will hit suddenly—World War 3. Not that the era hasn't already started

since the World Trade Center of 9/11, war on terrorism believed, but it will be on a bigger scale here in America and around the world. It already is a long war with the seven years of peace called by Obama, regardless of whether he calls it a war or not, coming suddenly just like our Lord and Savior will appear.

That is why I am sharing this NOW! We have way too many ingredients for the recipe of disaster mentioned in Revelation, coming from many angles and within. The world is a powder keg with much technology that can explode with the least spark. Telling you the truth, Jesus is coming soon, amen—believe that! Looking forward to seeing my Savior in the flesh, so it's not all depressing, knowing He is close and I have a job to do.

I heard Elijah was a depressed individual sometimes too, as some preachers have proclaimed, and I'm not too concerned about my own so much. Elijah is a powerful prophet favored by God, and I also feel as a prophet favored by God. Not sure how powerful the power is in the word and not necessarily mine, so I only take credit for typing it. It is depressing when flesh comes back from the spiritual realm, making a person chemically imbalanced, perhaps. It's all in theory, as I have taken an interest in psychology classes. I am not usually depressed.

Writing this letter to your ministry helped bring me back and see God's way of drawing me to do His work. I suppose because I am right in my element, content and in love when writing while able to express the Lord's work, changing gears in this ministry from producing to delivering. Now that it is getting done, I see what my life is going to be about, and... it's not all good, facing my fears with Jesus Christ on my side, turning it into glory for His purpose, defeating my enemies with His authority without fear. I don't give up believing in the authority of the Blood, knowing it's sufficient. We are way too

successful, conquerors with the Blood, and so won't live defeated, seeing my service now as a true messenger delivering The Message to the world, uniting father with son and son with father, though I see some of the obstacles already.

Believing this work will be according to what is said of Israel turning the hearts of His sons, the Jewish remnant, through the Blood of Jesus where The Message will also be preached (that is asking for trouble). This sounds biblical as well and will keep moving forward. Since God brought me up this way, accepting my life as the objective becomes clearer. "I am what God says I am" prophet and I do not have to make any more excuses for my behavior and why I carry myself this way. Finally accepting this role in my life and realizing what to do about it. It's not simple or clear discerning this direction, though I see some similarities according to Revelation, used as my guide drawing me in. Maybe it's a self-induced theory because sometimes I feel as if there's no way I can be that man. It feels much like the moment when Peter was out of the boat with Jesus and he was sinking because of his lack of faith taking his eyes off Jesus.

My message is: "If God can do ALL in my life, surely, He can do ALL in anyone's. God is no respecter of persons, none. What's for me is for you. We all have the chance at the same pay—it just depends upon how much work you are willing to put into enriching your life with Christ."

If anything, I'm usually happy-go-lucky, not letting this world get me down, ever. We have too much authority in this life over the devil because of the Blood, and we can refuse to allow him his way in our lives by pleading the Blood at anything the enemy throws at us. If anything, I am full of energy, focused on a positive direction in my life. Lately, I've realized this direction has a lot to do with the work before you, and I'm very concerned with what direction we are headed

in life sinking into what is perceived to be The Last Day Message, as so believed, seeing the job ahead of me. It's not really a welcome sight at all to the nonbeliever or believer alike. But I seem to be enjoying it very much, giving purpose that is being fulfilled.

The Elijah notion keeps me busy, having a lot going on for one person to grasp. In that sense, maybe Elijah and I have something in common. Knowing Elijah's life was sought after, I believe mine will be too, after expressing this rhetoric, opening a can of worms. Surely, I could use some help from my family to counsel me with this perception, PLEASE! Either way, I am in need of some support and spiritual counseling and don't know where to go. If God is in it, a person would think it wouldn't be so hard. That gets me really confused, not knowing what else to do once expressed to the church. It is a team effort.

I'm very thrilled doing the Lord's work but wondering where life will go next on the move, getting this out wherever that leads. I have a good idea of what I am supposed to do and see a lot of work ahead. A crazy dream is being fulfilled before my eyes. Never thought it would or could ever come to pass in my life, and I am eager to fulfill this duty, looking for direction. There is a page on Facebook called *Believing is Receiving Ministry* describing this work, also available for the public to read and review and update regularly. The book is getting closer to being finished, and I may have it professionally proofread to help identify mistakes.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions, comments, or suggestions. After you have completely read *ALL* of *The Message* broken down and the writer's note at the end, I hope you will give some insight, please, and I would appreciate it regardless of the substance of the reply. Thank you.

40. WRITER'S NOTES 2015 - PRESENT

I find my opinion—stressing the word *opinion* because I don't dare **add** anything to the Bible claimed as fact. We know what Revelation in the Bible says about those who add to or detract from the book. I don't believe the first white-horse rider of the Apocalypse is the Antichrist or False Prophet, as many (not all) believe. I wonder who taught them their knowledge, and I do not believe it was from God. God left it that way mysterious for a reason. Really, what else needs to be known? My own notion conflicts with teachings from people that It's the Antichrist or even the False Prophet of Revelation and I will not proclaim one way or another.

The Antichrist is a spiritual power that influences men to go against the Gospel of Jesus Christ, much like the Muslim Brotherhood, along with some other religions and people that are not according to the "true" Jesus Christ, by taking away from His purpose. Like bringing in a new world order under Sharia Law or any other way of life in conflict with the democracy of the United States—in God we do trust. I don't think that would fly in this Christian-developed democracy of the USA, though we see people trying to change the tides. There are many Antichrist people, some more effective than others, deceiving while enabling their faith which is anything that is not of Christ and the False Prophet in Revelation will direct people to follow the Antichrist according to scripture.

A certain Antichrist in this day and age will be making major decisions on behalf of a superpower that is influential in the world, going against the grain of Christianity and Judaism all the same, enabling those of their faith to do its will. The Bible says a particular

Antichrist figure who is against Christ sees a new world order becoming how to take over America.

This deal with the Iranians will only last three and a half years, if that is believed (originally written 2017). The Good Book says we win in the end, so we should not be too concerned, knowing this must take place rolling with the script. Not much else to do but prepare, like batten down the hatches, because we are in for a hell of a storm coming sooner or later, says this prophet. This deal was over before it started, and what poor excuses of representation are the dealmakers that banged out that piece of work. Very stupid wondering, "Why make a deal anyway?" We were not under the gun they were before making this deal. Now they are free to do their will while being enriched with finances. How perfect is that? Seeing people's motives through their actions, not just the mere words that politicians confess. A politician is anything that suits the purpose according to who and how much money can be put in their pocket (Biden 44). Or, more importantly, who sides with a faith that is not in accordance with how democracy is set up here in the United States under Christian values not Muslim all through votes. That's part of a new world order coming in disguise. (Obama 43) pandered to the things that weaken us as a nation like opening our borders, giving the non-working welfare, homes, health care, jobs, and the right to vote tainting the voting pool for a Democratic agenda, putting a hit job on America by tearing this country apart financially, religiously, racially, and morally, selling the USA out.

He wasn't there for the Christians who needed help out of Iraq because they were under persecution by ISIS, who flourished while he was in office. When it came to the Muslim faith, people couldn't get them in here fast enough. They could constitute a Trojan Horse to get the enemy's ideology and family in by the tens of thousands that will

attack our country from the inside politically, because our belief in Christ and how our society was developed is in conflict with their religion that's bent on Jihad and Communism to put this world in one order. Look at what's happening in 2023–25. Many of the ideologies are already here in America, attending our colleges, seeing the youth fighting against the very democracy this country was built on. Many are already here in America waiting for the right moment—especially after Biden/Obama allowed them in with open borders. We see a few jumping the gun, not able to wait, anxious to get this started. One thing time has taught me is that we can't be at peace with one another, and fighting is always the result, no matter how hard we try to keep the peace.

The Knights Templars, I believe strongly, came to this land after the early 1300s AD to escape persecution of their values and religion, running for their lives, creating a land under God to be free with the democracy this great country represents today. America is being robbed and taken over by putting in a people's faith that will vote for the "Democratic" agenda, which seems to be overthrowing America's way of life under Judeo-Christian values. That's what Muslims, Communists, and the Antichrist want to do to take over the world and the USA is the last frontier, and they're very focused on the task. If America ever fell, it would surely be the end of democracy in the rest of the world. This fight for power will not be pretty, as we saw with this virus in 2020, making a hell of an impact and wondering what is going to be next. They're dead serious, and so must I (we) be!

It's already happened, folks, and I doubt it will ever be corrected and that's why I believe this prophet is on the scene, sniffing out the other characters also mentioned concerning this time, knowing we all must be here and if not, soon will be. We see a man and his administration selling this country of God off in the process; vetoing

defense bills to pay for her protection is another good example. War is going to hit quickly, and these men and their political administration are welcoming it with charades—the new world order. What a fool or genius I'll call him, and those who support their direction, foolish. That's what bad mistakes will add up to one big mistake. He already signed the deal that is sold by enhancing the enemy, opening the doors for the inevitable, just as prophesied. Watch how quickly the other pieces will fall, just as spoken, and I stand by that even more today. Thank God for our new leader (Trump) reversing this, recognizing the consequences.

We technically never were out of war, the War on Terrorism since 9/11, when my home country, the USA, was attacked. Remember that, and who called for peace during those seven years, giving the enemy a big boost to develop more structurally? The next president (Trump 45–47) will have no choice but to fight, no matter how many peace deals are brokered. It is by strength we keep the peace! We are in for a rude awakening. This deal with the Iranians will surely be broken, having dire consequences—watch and see. You can mark my words on that. The deal was already violated (if it ever was being followed) before finishing writing this book (2nd book 2018). We are seeing it unfold as I speak.

Out of a small passage in Revelation, King James Version: 6:2 — And I saw, and behold a white horse: and he that sat on him had a bow; and a crown was given unto him: and he went forth conquering, and to conquer.

How a man that was "given" a crown, riding a white horse, who has a bow and went out conquering equals the Antichrist or False Prophet will forever bewilder me. The devil conquers NOTHING God hasn't "already" given him dominion over. God wouldn't "give" a crown to the prince of this world, would He? Satan and his cronies are

surely defeated and not conquerors by any means, except the power "YOU" (yes, you people) give to them. White stands for holiness and doesn't make the correlation either. If anything, the Blood of Christ conquers. Christ is the only conqueror in this world—not Satan, the Antichrist, or any other notion or delusion man has come up with.

I am a conqueror in Christ and will go out conquering more with "this" word before you. So, help me God, it is the duty I believe I am ordained to do. I can say it is already done, going out to conquer more! The meaning in The Message would be considered my arrow, all 33, already shot and in progress to its target(s), and W.W.W., for starters, is the bow, believe impacts life from here on out, regardless of whether people embrace it or not. Just seems to fit, and I can't help the irony.

The Message can be considered a two-edged sword of the Word, which can be called tried and true. Just like the first half, the message is tried (Jesus), and the other half is true (a witness's testimony mine about Jesus and what was inspired to also include), going out battling evil with this sword of the Word being victorious. I believe this sword to be powerful, ready for spiritual warfare. What do you think? The truth cuts like a two-edged sword.

Because of the Word preached, I'll be subjected to fight because of my belief in Jesus Christ, regardless of any other notions that entertain my thoughts concerning my view. It's a possibility shared with myself, as well as others exploring the truth about what's going on. It is not taught as a principle because I really don't know or apparently anyone else does either concerning this specific issue. Revelation has started that I do know though I am wondering exactly what that consists of concerning whom, what, why, and how. Time is always a revealer and will be revealed in due time.

I would like to know who came up with the notion of Antichrist or False Prophet or... Because it's not in the Bible that way and maybe

left mysterious for a reason. It surely seems from a carnal source and doesn't make sense (to me) either. God kept it hidden, and I believe man made up an illusion to suffice their own curiosity, teaching things they could not be certain about much like any other religion man starts, proclaimed as the way that's taught as a principle of man's imagination. People were tortured and threatened to be killed at one time because they proclaimed the world is round. The Catholic Church really didn't know during the Inquisitions and before (not to mention in the times of the 1300s, when Knights Templars were being tortured endlessly, killed, robbed), making stuff up as they went for evil's sake, stiff in their beliefs obviously until overwhelming evidence proved them wrong. I wonder how many other things they had wrong that are taught as principle still today? Some people are just not of God and show their evilness for the sake of their religion and land they stole by wiping out the owners and coveting their riches. Well, not all of it, for some were sharp to the plot and those who could made escape. I believe the Knights Templars came here to America eventually, and why was it so secret and mysterious what came of them?

I don't care what preacher, prophet, or person of God preaches and teaches that rhetoric, because it's someone's opinion that's "ADDED" to the Bible. I will always ask who told them that, knowing it's from man because the Word of God doesn't say. I am assured any person will say it was from a man they heard it from whether from himself or fifty others, including himself also knowing the enemy is out to deceive and I know the truth is out there must be! It's not in the Bible that way, and I wouldn't be surprised if it was of Catholic origin to begin with. Catholicism seems to "ADD" things that don't make sense, coloring the Bible up to their expectations, making it something it is not by distorting truth with their doctrine not in line with my belief that is written in the King James. And now it makes sense why some would call my ministry of the devil, because it was the very them who

oppose this very word today. An enemy that comes to conquer doesn't have to be Antichrist or False Prophet, but PROPHET(?), setting the record straight, would imagine a thorn in some sides that stated any difference exploring the truth, WHATEVER IT IS searching for the rest of this destiny...

I would suggest to any preacher, teacher, prophet, or minister that if he or she wholeheartedly believes and knows without a doubt that the first White Horseman of Apocalypse is the Antichrist because why else preach it, teaching it as a word from God? Surely "I" would not dare play a dangerous game like that, because I really don't know and only have theories as being revealed. My theories opening my mind to exploring the truth. Anyone is already in error if he is ADDING (+) to the Bible because of their opinion of what the Word of God means, preaching or teaching it as fact or principle, which I surely don't but give objective insight. Be careful what is said while in the pulpit about things of which you are not certain. I have my opinions, and they are stated as just that: my opinion which is open for discussion and or debate because it is an important time in our history to have the truth and nothing but the truth whatever the truth is as we search for revealing God's mysteries that will be revealed in the end days because the Bible tells us so, amen!

Stay tuned for "These Days Anymore!"

W.B.J